
This meeting is hereby noticed pursuant to
California Government Code Section 54950 et. seq. and

California Governor’s Executive Orders N-29-20 and N-33-20 
The BCVWD Board of Directors will attend via teleconference 

To access the teleconference:
Please dial 712-770-4010 and Enter Code 754421

Meeting materials are available on the BCVWD’s website: 

Action may be taken on any item on the agenda. Information on the following items is 
included in the full Agenda Packet. 
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All meetings will be held via teleconference until further notice, unless otherwise 
indicated. 

note date change due to holiday

teleconference pending
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Erica Gonzales Erica Gonzales 
2020.06.05 16:29:35 -07'00'
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Item 2d 

STAFF REPORT 
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T 213.626.8484 
F 213.626.0078 
Fed. I.D. No. 95-3292015 

350 South Grand Avenue 
37th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90071 

CCONFIDENTIAL

This material is subject to the attorney-client privilege and/or attorney work product protection, or otherwise is 
privileged or confidential.  Do not disclose the contents hereof.  Do not file with publicly-accessible records. 

DAN JAGGERS, GENERAL MANAGER 
Beaumont- Cherry Valley Water District 
560 Magnolia Avenue 
Beaumont, Ca  92223-2258 

May 8, 2020 
Invoice # 226673 

Re:   GENERAL COUNSEL SERVICES 

For professional services rendered through April 30, 2020:

Current Legal Fees .......................................................................................................... $6,210.00 
Current Client Costs Advanced ............................................................................................ $39.85 

TOTAL CURRENT FEES AND COSTS ................................................................................. $6,249.85

Balance Due From Previous Statement ........................................................................... $4,774.50

TOTAL BALANCE DUE FOR THIS MATTER ..................................................................... $11,024.35

TERMS:  PAYMENT DUE UPON RECEIPT 

PLEASE RETURN THIS PAGE WITH YOUR REMITTANCE TO 

RICHARDS, WATSON & GERSHON 
350 South Grand Avenue, 37th Floor 

Los Angeles, CA 90071 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-13 PAGE 1 OF 13 

Meeting held via teleconference pursuant to  
California Government Code Section 54950 et. seq. and  

California Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 

President Covington began the meeting at 6:05 p.m.

President Covington led the pledge.  

Invocation was given by Director Slawson 

//
//
//
//
//

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 29 of 530



BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-13 PAGE 2 OF 13 

The following Consent Calendar items were approved with one motion: 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-13 PAGE 3 OF 13 
2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 31 of 530



BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-13 PAGE 4 OF 13 

The Board adopted Resolution 2020-10 Authorizing a Mid-Year Amendment to the 
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget and authorized staff to set aside an allocation 
of funds for the ongoing costs of the Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) and 
the Unfunded Pension Liability accounts by the following roll call vote: 

The Board adopted Resolution 2020-11 Proclaiming the Week of May 17 to May 
23, 2020 as Special Districts Week within the Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water 
District and approved the letter of support for Assembly Concurrent Resolution 179 
Proclaiming Special Districts Week in the State of California by the following roll 
call vote: 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-13 PAGE 5 OF 13 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-13 PAGE 6 OF 13 

The Board approved the comment letter to the State Water Resources Control 
Board (SWRCB) and directed staff to forward the letter under the signature of 
President John Covington a by the following roll call vote: 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-13 PAGE 7 OF 13 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-13 PAGE 8 OF 13 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-13 PAGE 9 OF 13 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-13 PAGE 10 OF 13 

Financial Impact of the COVID-19 Crisis on U.S. Drinking Water 
Utilities
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-13 PAGE 11 OF 13 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-13 PAGE 12 OF 13 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-13 PAGE 13 OF 13 

All the following meetings will be held via teleconference unless otherwise 
indicated. President Covington read the following announcements: 

President Covington adjourned the meeting at 9:08 p.m. 

DRAFT UNTIL APPROVED   DRAFT UNTIL APPROVED 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-28 PAGE 1 OF 14 

Meeting held via teleconference pursuant to  
California Government Code Section 54950 et. seq. and  

California Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 

President Covington began the meeting at 6:05 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance was led by Director Williams. 

Invocation was given by Director Ramirez. 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-28 PAGE 2 OF 14 

Continued from April 8, 2020 Regular Meeting
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-28 PAGE 3 OF 14 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-28 PAGE 4 OF 14 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-28 PAGE 5 OF 14 

A motion to waive the second reading and adopt Ordinance 2020-01 Providing for 
Compensation of the Members of the Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District Board of 
Directors and Superseding Ordinance 2007-01 failed by the following roll call vote: 

The Board approved the execution of the letter in support of Assembly Bill 2182 
Related to Nonvehicular Air Pollution and directed staff to forward it to the California 
Assembly Committee on Natural Resources and designated elected officials by the 
following roll call vote: 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-28 PAGE 6 OF 14 

The Board authorized the General Manager to execute a one (1) year contract, with 
an optional General Manager approved extension of one (1) year, for Landscape 
Maintenance Services in an amount not to exceed  $61,686.00 together with an 
approximate contingency of 10% for a total amount not to exceed $67,900.00 per year, 
with Urban Habitat Landscape Contractors by the following roll call vote: 

Director Ramirez was not present on the teleconference call for the roll call vote. 
Director Ramirez re-joined the teleconference call directly after the vote and before 
the beginning of Item 5. 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-28 PAGE 7 OF 14 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-28 PAGE 8 OF 14 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-28 PAGE 9 OF 14 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-28 PAGE 10 OF 14 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-28 PAGE 11 OF 14 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-28 PAGE 12 OF 14 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-28 PAGE 13 OF 14 
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BCVWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 2020-05-28 PAGE 14 OF 14 

None added. 

All the following meetings will be held via teleconference unless otherwise indicated. 
President Covington read the following announcements: 

teleconference confirmed

President Covington adjourned the meeting at 9:35 p.m.

DRAFT UNTIL APPROVED   DRAFT UNTIL APPROVED 
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Item

STAFF REPORT 
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Item

STAFF REPORT 
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General Provisions

Payment
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Item

STAFF REPORT 
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NOTICE TO THE REGISTRAR OF VOTERS
(ELECTIONS CODE §§ 10509, 10522; W.C. § 71451)

GENERAL DISTRICT ELECTION, NOVEMBER 3, 2020

I certify that the enclosed map of the district boundaries and divisions is true and correct as of this date, 
and is submitted in compliance with Section 10522 of the California Elections Code for use in the 
General District Election to be held on November 3, 2020, or that there have been no changes to the 
boundaries as of the last General District Election.

Dated: Contact Person:

Sign:
(District Secretary)

(DISTRICT SEAL)

DISTRICT: PHONE:

ADDRESS: FAX:

MAILING ADDRESS: E-MAIL:

LIST NAMES OF DISTRICT DIRECTORS WHOSE TERMS EXPIRE ON DECEMBER 4, 2020

NAME OF DIRECTOR DIVISION NUMBER
(IF APPLICABLE)

The following section applies only if a Director(s) was/were appointed to fill a vacancy in an 
office, which is not normally scheduled to be voted on this year (Short term).

NAME DIVISION
(If applicable)

DATE
APPOINTED DIRECTOR REPLACED

STATEMENT OF ECONOMIC INTERESTS: The Government Code now requires all candidates to file 
a Form 700 with the Registrar of Voters by the nomination period deadline. If the candidate has previously filed 
an initial, assuming office, or annual statement for the same office sought within 60 days before the nomination 
deadline then the candidate does not have to file the Form 700 again.

CANDIDATE’S STATEMENT: Who is to pay the cost of the printing and handling of statement? 
Please check appropriate box. CANDIDATE DISTRICT

NOTICE OF ELECTION published by Registrar of Voters in
(Insert name of Local Newspaper)

CANDIDATES may obtain nomination documents from the Registrar of Voters, 2720 Gateway Drive, 
Riverside, CA 92507, or from the District Secretary located at:

(Insert Location Name, Address, and Business Hours)

DISTRICT MAP: Attach 34” x 42” map showing district boundaries and divisions, if applicable.

Enclosed Map Contains Boundary/Division Changes YES NO 
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Item

STAFF REPORT 
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o

o

o

o

o

o
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Government Auditing Standards 
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Significant Conclusions and Issues

Communication Letter, 
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,
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Significant Accounting Policies 

Significant Accounting Estimates 
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Financial Statement Disclosures  
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Basic Financial 
Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local 
Governments  Basic Financial Statements—and Management's 
Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments: Omnibus 

Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities
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Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial 
Guarantees

Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 90 of 530



2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 91 of 530



GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor’s Report

Government Auditing Standards 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

deficiency in internal control

material weakness

significant deficiency

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 92 of 530



Compliance and Other Matters 

Government Auditing Standards. 

Government Auditing Standards 
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A Century of Service, 
Quality, and Stewardship

1919 – 2019

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2019
Beaumont, California

Subject to Changenge
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District 
Beaumont, California 

Board of Directors as of June XX 2020

 

The goal of the District is to provide for a healthy, safe and enriched quality of life throughout the District 
boundaries through watershed stewardship and thorough management of water resources in a practical, cost-

effective, and environmentally sensitive manner for current and future generations.

Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Investment Policy - 

Reserve Policy - 

Draft
Subject to Change
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Purchasing Policy

Draft
Subject to Change
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Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 115 of 530



Draft
Subject to Change

10
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Draft
Subject to Change

11
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Government Auditing Standards
Minimum 

Audit Requirements for California Special Districts

Draft
Subject to Change
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Opinion

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information

Other Information

Prior Year Comparative Information 

Draft
Subject to Change
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Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Statement of Net Position 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Statement 

Statement

Statement of Cash Flows 

Statement

Statement 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Basic Financial Statements

Basic Financial Statements
Required Supplementary Information, 

Required Supplementary 
Information

Draft
Subject to Change
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Basic Financial Statements,

Assets 

Draft
Subject to Change
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Assets (Continued) 

Liabilities 

Draft
Subject to Change
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Net Position 

Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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This page intentionally left blank  

Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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This page intentionally left blank

Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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Draft
Subject to Change
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economic resources 
measurement focus accrual basis of accounting

operating non-operating

Subject to Change 
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Note 2 - Cash and Investments 

Note 5 - Capital Assets 

Draft
Subject to Change 
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Note 8 - Unearned Revenues 

Note 9 - Compensated Absences 

Note 3 - Accounts Receivable 

Draft
Subject to Change 
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fair value

Draft
Subject to Change 
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Draft
Subject to Change 
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Draft
Subject to Change 
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deposits

investments 

Draft
Subject to Change 
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Draft
Subject to Change 
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Draft
Subject to Change 
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Statement of Net Position

Draft
Subject to Change 
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Draft
Subject to Change 
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Draft
Subject to Change 
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A. Plan Description

Subject to Change 
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B. Employees Covered 

C. Funding Policy

D. Net OPEB Liability 

Draft
Subject to Change 
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D. Net OPEB Liability (Continued) 

Change in Assumptions 

E. Discount Rate 

F. Changes in the OPEB Liability 

G. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

Subject to Change 
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G. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate (Continued) 

H. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Trend Rates 

I. OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Draft
Subject to Change 
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OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows /Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

Draft
Subject to Change 
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Draft
Subject to Change 
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A. General Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan Description 

Benefits Provided 

Draft
Subject to Change 
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A. General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued) 

B. Net Pension Liability

Draft
Subject to Change 
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B. Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability 

Long-term Expected Rate of Return 

Draft
Subject to Change 
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B. Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Change of Assumptions 

Draft
Subject to Change 
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B. Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Discount Rate

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

C. Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 

Draft
Subject to Change 
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C. Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

Draft
Subject to Change 
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C. Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Continued) 

Subsequent Events 

Recognition of Gains and Losses 

D. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions

Draft
Subject to Change 
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D. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions (Continued) 

Subject to Change 
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D. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions (Continued) 

E. Payable to the Pension Plan 

Draft
Subject to Change 
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Draft
Subject to Change 
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Draft 
Subject to Change 
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Draft
Subject to Change 
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Notes to Schedule:

Draft
Subject to Change 
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Draft
Subject to Change 
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Draft 
Subject to Change 
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This page intentionally left blank

Draft 
Subject to Change 
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Source:  Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District

Draft 
Subject to Change 
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Note:

Source:  Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District

Subject to Change 
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Draft
Subject to Change 
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Source:  Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District

Draft 
Subject to Change 
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Notes:

Source:  Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District

Draft 
Subject to Change 
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Source:  Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District

Draft 
Subject to Change 
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Notes:

Source:  Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District

Draft 
Subject to Change 
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Notes:

Source:  Riverside County Economic Development Agency
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 County of Riverside General Plan 

 Land Use Element 
 

Page LU-46 Chapter 3 

DATE: 03/11/2014 

Table LU 4 Land Use Designations Summary 

Foundation
Component  

Area Plan Land Use 
Designation 

Building
Intensity Range 
(du/ac or FAR) 

1, 2,3

Notes

Agriculture Agriculture (AG) 10 ac min. 
Agricultural land including row crops, groves, nurseries, dairies, poultry farms, processing plants, and 
other related uses. 
One single-family residence allowed per 10 acres except as otherwise specified by a policy or an overlay. 

Rural

Rural Residential (RR) 5 ac min. 

Single-family residences with a minimum lot size of 5 acres. 
Allows limited animal keeping and agricultural uses, recreational uses, compatible resource development 
(not including the commercial extraction of mineral resources) and associated uses and governmental 
uses. 

Rural Mountainous 
(RM) 10 ac min. 

Single-family residential uses with a minimum lot size of 10 acres. 
Areas of at least 10 acres where a minimum of 70% of the area has slopes of 25% or greater. 
Allows limited animal keeping, agriculture, recreational uses, compatible resource development (which 
may include the commercial extraction of mineral resources with approval of a SMP) and associated uses 
and governmental uses. 

Rural Desert (RD) 10 ac min. 

Single-family residential uses with a minimum lot size of 10 acres. 
Allows limited animal keeping, agriculture, recreational, renewable energy uses including solar, 
geothermal and wind energy uses, as well as associated uses required to develop and operate these 
renewable energy sources, compatible resource development (which may include the commercial 
extraction of mineral resources with approval of SMP), and governmental and utility uses. 

Rural
Community 

Estate Density 
Residential (RC-EDR) 2 ac min. Single-family detached residences on large parcels of 2 to 5 acres. 

Limited agriculture, intensive equestrian and animal keeping uses are expected and encouraged. 
Very Low Density 

Residential (RC-VLDR) 1 ac min. Single-family detached residences on large parcels of 1 to 2 acres. 
Limited agriculture, intensive equestrian and animal keeping uses are expected and encouraged. 

Low Density Residential 
(RC-LDR) ½ ac min. Single-family detached residences on large parcels of ½ to 1 acre. 

Limited agriculture, intensive equestrian and animal keeping uses are expected and encouraged. 

Open Space 

Conservation (C) N/A The protection of open space for natural hazard protection, and natural and scenic resource preservation. 
Existing agriculture is permitted.  

Conservation Habitat 
(CH) N/A Applies to public and private lands conserved and managed in accordance with adopted Multi Species 

Habitat and other Conservation Plans. 

Water (W) N/A 
Includes bodies of water and natural or artificial drainage corridors. 
Extraction of mineral resources subject to SMP may be permissible provided that flooding hazards are 
addressed and long term habitat and riparian values are maintained. 

Recreation (R) N/A Recreational uses including parks, trails, athletic fields, and golf courses. 
Neighborhood parks are permitted within residential land uses. 

Rural (RUR) 20 ac min. 
One single-family residence allowed per 20 acres. 
Extraction of mineral resources subject to SMP may be permissible provided that scenic resources and 
views are protected. 

Mineral Resources 
(MR) N/A Mineral extraction and processing facilities. 

Areas held in reserve for future mineral extraction and processing. 
Estate Density 

Residential (EDR) 2 ac min. Single-family detached residences on large parcels of 2 to 5 acres. 
Limited agriculture and animal keeping is permitted, however, intensive animal keeping is discouraged. 

Very Low Density 
Residential (VLDR) 1 ac min. Single-family detached residences on large parcels of 1 to 2 acres. 

Limited agriculture and animal keeping is permitted, however, intensive animal keeping is discouraged. 
Low Density Residential 

(LDR) ½ ac min. Single-family detached residences on large parcels of ½ to 1 acre. 
Limited agriculture and animal keeping is permitted, however, intensive animal keeping is discouraged. 

Community 
Development Medium Density 

Residential (MDR) 2 - 5 du/ac 
Single-family detached and attached residences with a density range of 2 to 5 dwelling units per acre. 
Limited agriculture and animal keeping is permitted, however, intensive animal keeping is discouraged. 
Lot sizes range from 5,500 to 20,000 sq. ft., typical 7,200 sq. ft. lots allowed. 

Medium High Density 
Residential (MHDR) 5 - 8 du/ac Single-family attached and detached residences with a density range of 5 to 8 dwelling units per acre.  

Lot sizes range from 4,000 to 6,500 sq. ft. 
High Density 

Residential (HDR) 8 - 14 du/ac Single-family attached and detached residences, including townhouses, stacked flats, courtyard homes, 
patio homes, townhouses, and zero lot line homes. 

Very High Density 
Residential (VHDR) 14 - 20 du/ac Single-family attached residences and multi-family dwellings. 

Highest Density 
Residential (HHDR) 20+ du/ac 

Multi-family dwellings, includes apartments and condominium. 
Multi-storied (3+) structures are allowed. 
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Land Use Element

Chapter 3 Page LU-47 

DATE: 03/11/2014 

Table LU 4 Land Use Designations Summary 

Foundation
Component  

Area Plan Land Use 
Designation 

Building
Intensity Range 
(du/ac or FAR) 

1, 2,3

Notes

Community 
Development

Commercial Retail (CR) 0.20 - 0.35 FAR 
Local and regional serving retail and service uses.  The amount of land designated for Commercial Retail 
exceeds that amount anticipated to be necessary to serve the County's population at build out. Once build 
out of Commercial Retail reaches the 40% level within any Area Plan, additional studies will be required 
before CR development beyond the 40% will be permitted.   

Commercial Tourist 
(CT) 0.20 - 0.35 FAR Tourist related commercial including hotels, golf courses, and recreation/amusement activities. 

Commercial Office 
(CO) 0.35 - 1.0 FAR Variety of office related uses including financial, legal, insurance and other office services. 

Light Industrial (LI) 0.25 - 0.60 FAR Industrial and related uses including warehousing/distribution, assembly and light manufacturing, repair 
facilities, and supporting retail uses. 

Heavy Industrial (HI) 0.15 - 0.50 FAR More intense industrial activities that generate significant impacts such as excessive noise, dust, and 
other nuisances. 

Business Park (BP) 0.25 - 0.60 FAR Employee intensive uses, including research & development, technology centers, corporate offices, 
“clean” industry and supporting retail uses. 

Public Facilities (PF) < 0.60 FAR Civic uses such as County administrative buildings and schools. 

Community Center (CC) 5 - 40 du/ac 
0.10 - 0.3 FAR 

Includes combination of small-lot single family residences, multi-family residences, commercial retail, 
office, business park uses, civic uses, transit facilities, and recreational open space within a unified 
planned development area.  This also includes Community Centers in adopted specific plans. 

Mixed Use Planning 
Area 

This designation is applied to areas outside of Community Centers.  The intent of the designation is not 
to identify a particular mixture or intensity of land uses, but to designate areas where a mixture of 
residential, commercial, office, entertainment, educational, and/or recreational uses, or other uses is 
planned. 

Overlays and Policy Areas
Overlays and Policy Areas are not considered a Foundation Component.  Overlays and Policy Areas address local conditions and can be applied in any Foundation 
Component.  The specific details and development characteristics of each Policy Area and Overlay are contained in the appropriate Area Plan. 

Community Development Overlay 
(CDO) 

Allows Community Development land use designations to be applied through General Plan Amendments within specified 
areas within Rural, Rural Community, Agriculture, or Open Space Foundation Component areas.  Specific policies related 
to each Community Development Overlay are contained in the appropriate Area Plan. 

Community Center Overlay (CCO) Allows for either a Community Center or the underlying designated land use to be developed. 
Rural Village Overlay (RVO) and 
Rural Village Overlay Study Area 
(RVOSA) 

The Rural Village Overlay allows a concentration of residential and local-serving commercial uses within areas of rural 
character. 

The Rural Village Overlay allows the uses and maximum densities/intensities of the Medium Density Residential and 
Medium High Density Residential and Commercial Retail land use designations. 

In some rural village areas, identified as Rural Village Overlay Study Areas, the final boundaries will be determined at a 
later date during the consistency zoning program.  (The consistency zoning program is the process of bringing current 
zoning into consistency with the adopted general plan.) 

Watercourse Overlay (WCO) The Watercourse Overlay designates watercourses, including natural or controlled stream channels and flood control 
channels.

Specific Community Development 
Designation Overlay 

Permits flexibility in land uses designations to account for local conditions.  Consult the applicable Area Plan text for 
details.

Policy Areas Policy Areas are specific geographic districts that contain unique characteristics that merit detailed attention and focused 
policies. These policies may impact the underlying land use designations. At the Area Plan level, Policy Areas 
accommodate several locally specific designations, such as the Limonite Policy Area (Jurupa Area Plan), or the Scott 
Road Policy Area (Sun City/Menifee Valley Area Plan).  Consult the applicable Area Plan text for details. 

NOTES:
1 FAR = Floor Area Ratio, which is the measurement of the amount of non-residential building square footage in relation to the size of the lot.  Du/ac = dwelling units per acre, which is the measurement of the amount of 
residential units in a given acre. 
2 The building intensity range noted is exclusive, that is the range noted provides a minimum and maximum building intensity. 
3 Clustering is encouraged in all residential designations.  The allowable density of a particular land use designation may be clustered in one portion of the site in smaller lots, as long as the ratio of dwelling units/area 
remains within the allowable density range associated with the designation.  The rest of the site would then be preserved as open space or a use compatible with open space (e.g., agriculture, pasture or wildlife habitat).  
Within the Rural Foundation Component and Rural Designation of the Open Space Foundation Component, the allowable density may be clustered as long as no lot is smaller than ½ acre.  This ½ acre minimum lot size 
also applies to the Rural Community Development Foundation Component.  However, for sites adjacent to Community Development Foundation Component areas, 10,000 square foot minimum lots are allowed.  The 
clustered areas would be a mix of 10,000 and ½ acre lots.   In such cases, larger lots or open space would be required near the project boundary with Rural Community and Rural Foundation Component areas. 
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Table LU-5 
Population per Square Mile 

Area Plan Designation 

Population per Square Mile
Western Riverside County Excluding 

REMAP
Eastern Riverside County Including 

REMAP
Minimum Projected Maximum Minimum Projected Maximum

Open Space-Rural 0 50 100 0 48 94 

Agriculture, Rural 
Mountainous, Rural Desert 0 289 577 0 273 540

Rural Residential 166 249 500 196 294 587 

Estate Density Residential 393 687 916 356 622 830 

Very Low Density Residential 1,341 1,341 1,916 1,393 1.393 1,991 

Low Density Residential 2,472 2,967 5,934 2,464 2,957 5,917 

Medium Density Residential 4,168 7,294 12,155 3,937 6,889 11,483 

Medium High Density 
Residential 12,056 15,673 22,391 10,030 13,039 18,627 

High Density Residential 18,240 25,080 30,867 16,663 22,912 28,200 

Very High Density Residential 35,363 42,941 54,654 27,805 33,764 42,971 

Highest Density 
Residential/Community Center 59,827 89,741 105,577 44,303 66,455 78,181 

Agriculture

One of Riverside County's most important land uses in terms of historic 
character and economic strength is its widespread and diverse agriculture lands. 
Agriculture production is one of the largest industries in terms of dollar value in 
the County and competes successfully in the global economy. It is clear that 
agricultural uses provide important employment opportunities for many County 
residents. Agricultural uses also preserve a lifestyle choice that is synonymous 
with the County's history and character. In fact, it is agriculture that defines the 
unique character of many communities in Riverside County, and helps to define 
the edges of and provide separation between developed areas. Many people are 
drawn to Riverside County for the very character that agricultural uses provide 
and there is a solid commitment to ensuring that these uses remain an integral 
part of the County's future. The importance of agricultural uses and the 
sensitivity of development in and around agricultural areas is reflected in the 
RCIP Vision: 

"Agricultural land that remains economically viable, either as 
a permanent or temporary economic resource, is well 
protected by policies, ordinances and design regulations 
applicable to new development that may be planned nearby." 

However, as mentioned in this Vision Statement, there is a potential for 
agricultural uses to conflict with adjacent uses. This is due to mounting growth 
pressures near and within significant agricultural regions. Many existing 

Valle Vista Orchards 
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APN(s)

Riverside County Parcel Report

MAPS/IMAGES

401071024

PARCEL

Previous APN

APN

Owners

Address

Legal Description

Mailing Address

Lot Size

Property
Characteristics

                                           Not Available Online

401-071-024-3

000-000-000

NOT AVAILABLE 
401-071-024

737 ORANGE AVENUE
BEAUMONT  CA 92223  92223

401-071-024

Subdivision Name:
Recorded Book/Page:

Lot/Parcel:

Tract Number:
Block:

401-071-024

0

 Recorded lot size is 0.54 acres
401-071-024

0000
0
0
SPECIAL

Number of Baths:
Number of Bedrooms:
Construction Type:

Year Constructed:
401-071-024

Zoning Classifications 
(ORD. 348)

Land Use 
Designations

Supervisorial District

City Boundary

CONSTRUCTION

0
UNKNOWN

Garage Type:
Property Area (sq ft):
Roof Type:
Number of Stories:
Pool: NO
Central Cool: NO
Central Heat: NO

MARION ASHLEY, DISTRICT 5

Contact the city for more information

RC-VLDR

R-A-1 0Zoning: CZ Number:

Page 1 of 2 on 12/12/2018 9:51:59 AM
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Maps, permit information and data are to be used for reference purposes only. Map features are approximate, and are not necessarily accurate to 
surveying or engineering standards. The County of Riverside makes no warranty or guarantee as to the content (the source is often third party), 
accuracy, timeliness, or completeness of any of the data provided, and assumes no legal responsibility for the information contained on this map. Any 
use of this product with respect to accuracy and precision shall be the sole responsibility of the user.

Permit Approved Date

Plan Check Approved DateApplication Date
Septic Permits

PERecord Id

Record Id

Permit Paid Date
Well Water Permits

Final Inspection Date

Well Finaled Date

Approved Date

* DISCLAIMER *

Status

Case

Case Case Description

Status

Survey Cases

Transportation Cases

Case Description
Administrative Cases

Case Description

PLUS PERMITS & CASES

Building and Safety Cases

Planning Cases

Status

Status

Case

Fire Cases

Status

Case Description

Case DescriptionCase

Status

Case Description

Case

Case

DEPARTMENT of ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH PERMITS

Case Status
Code Cases

Case Description

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

CV1802766 OPEN

FHAZ1404677 CLOSED
FHAZ1501214 CLOSED

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Page 2 of 2 on 12/12/2018 9:51:59 AM
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APN(s)

Riverside County Parcel Report

MAPS/IMAGES

401071038

PARCEL

Previous APN

APN

Owners

Address

Legal Description

Mailing Address

Lot Size

Property
Characteristics

                                           Not Available Online

401-071-038-6

401-071-023

NOT AVAILABLE 
401-071-038

P O BOX 653
BEAUMONT  CA  92223

401-071-038

Subdivision Name:
Recorded Book/Page:

Lot/Parcel:

Tract Number:
Block:

401-071-038

0

 Recorded lot size is 7.79 acres
401-071-038

0000
0
0
SPECIAL

Number of Baths:
Number of Bedrooms:
Construction Type:

Year Constructed:
401-071-038

Zoning Classifications 
(ORD. 348)

Land Use 
Designations

Supervisorial District

City Boundary

CONSTRUCTION

0
UNKNOWN

Garage Type:
Property Area (sq ft):
Roof Type:
Number of Stories:
Pool: NO
Central Cool: NO
Central Heat: NO

MARION ASHLEY, DISTRICT 5

Contact the city for more information

RC-VLDR

R-A-1 0Zoning: CZ Number:

Page 1 of 3 on 12/12/2018 9:45:38 AM
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Status

Case

Case Case Description

Status

Survey Cases

Transportation Cases

Case Description
Administrative Cases

Case Description

PLUS PERMITS & CASES

Building and Safety Cases

Planning Cases

Status

Status

Case

Fire Cases

Status

Case Description

Case DescriptionCase

Status

Case Description

Case

Case

DEPARTMENT of ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH PERMITS

Case Status
Code Cases

Case Description

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

CV1003932 CLOSED
CV1802764 OPEN

FHAZ0101360 CLOSED
FHAZ0200379 CLOSED
FHAZ0302805 CLOSED
FHAZ0400959 CLOSED
FHAZ0500576 CLOSED
FHAZ0703980 CLOSED
FHAZ0802979 CLOSED
FHAZ0901258 CLOSED
FHAZ1000602 CLOSED
FHAZ1100675 CLOSED
FHAZ1201599 CLOSED
FHAZ1301849 CLOSED
FHAZ1404680 CLOSED
FHAZ1501217 CLOSED
FHAZ1603048 CLOSED
FHAZ1610735 CLOSED
FHAZ1700912 CLOSED
FHAZ1800685 CLOSED
FHAZ9102051 CLOSED
FHAZ9301297 CLOSED
FHAZ9400384 CLOSED
FHAZ9503070 CLOSED
FHAZ9602930 CLOSED
FHAZ9705196 CLOSED
FHAZ9802665 CLOSED

CFG03351 CFG FOR EA39884 PAID
EA39884 EA FOR PM32167 APPROVED
PDB03590 HABITAT ASSESSMENT FOR NARROW ENDEMICS APPROVED
PM32167 SCHED H DIVISION OF 7.7 AC INTO 4 1-AC PCLS W/1 RE APPROVED

FPM32167 DIVIDE 7.79 ACRES INTO 4 PARCELS PEND
CORRECTION

MAP32167 ISSUED

N/A N/A N/A
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2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 205 of 530



Maps, permit information and data are to be used for reference purposes only. Map features are approximate, and are not necessarily accurate to 
surveying or engineering standards. The County of Riverside makes no warranty or guarantee as to the content (the source is often third party), 
accuracy, timeliness, or completeness of any of the data provided, and assumes no legal responsibility for the information contained on this map. Any 
use of this product with respect to accuracy and precision shall be the sole responsibility of the user.

Permit Approved Date

Plan Check Approved DateApplication Date
Septic Permits

PERecord Id

Record Id

Permit Paid Date
Well Water Permits

Final Inspection Date

Well Finaled Date

Approved Date

* DISCLAIMER *

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
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APN(s)

Riverside County Parcel Report

MAPS/IMAGES

401071039

PARCEL

Previous APN

APN

Owners

Address

Legal Description

Mailing Address

Lot Size

Property
Characteristics

                                           Not Available Online

401-071-039-7

401-071-023

NOT AVAILABLE 
401-071-039

737 ORANGE AVENUE
BEAUMONT  CA  92223

401-071-039

Subdivision Name:
Recorded Book/Page:

Lot/Parcel:

Tract Number:
Block:

401-071-039

0

 Recorded lot size is 2.33 acres
401-071-039

0000
0
0
SPECIAL

Number of Baths:
Number of Bedrooms:
Construction Type:

Year Constructed:
401-071-039

Zoning Classifications 
(ORD. 348)

Land Use 
Designations

Supervisorial District

City Boundary

CONSTRUCTION

0
UNKNOWN

Garage Type:
Property Area (sq ft):
Roof Type:
Number of Stories:
Pool: NO
Central Cool: NO
Central Heat: NO

MARION ASHLEY, DISTRICT 5

Contact the city for more information

RC-VLDR

R-A-1 0Zoning: CZ Number:
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Permit Approved Date

Plan Check Approved DateApplication Date
Septic Permits

PERecord Id

Record Id

Permit Paid Date
Well Water Permits

Final Inspection Date

Well Finaled Date

Approved Date

Status

Case

Case Case Description

Status

Survey Cases

Transportation Cases

Case Description
Administrative Cases

Case Description

PLUS PERMITS & CASES

Building and Safety Cases

Planning Cases

Status

Status

Case

Fire Cases

Status

Case Description

Case DescriptionCase

Status

Case Description

Case

Case

DEPARTMENT of ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH PERMITS

Case Status
Code Cases

Case Description

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

CV1802765 OPEN

FHAZ0101361 CLOSED
FHAZ0200378 CLOSED
FHAZ0302806 CLOSED
FHAZ0400958 CLOSED
FHAZ0500577 CLOSED
FHAZ0802981 CLOSED
FHAZ0901259 CLOSED
FHAZ1000603 CLOSED
FHAZ1100676 CLOSED
FHAZ1201600 CLOSED
FHAZ1301850 CLOSED
FHAZ1404681 CLOSED
FHAZ1501218 CLOSED
FHAZ1603049 CLOSED
FHAZ1610734 CLOSED
FHAZ1700913 CLOSED
FHAZ1800686 CLOSED
FHAZ9102052 CLOSED
FHAZ9400385 CLOSED
FHAZ9503069 CLOSED
FHAZ9602931 CLOSED
FHAZ9705195 CLOSED
FHAZ9802666 CLOSED

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
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Maps, permit information and data are to be used for reference purposes only. Map features are approximate, and are not necessarily accurate to 
surveying or engineering standards. The County of Riverside makes no warranty or guarantee as to the content (the source is often third party), 
accuracy, timeliness, or completeness of any of the data provided, and assumes no legal responsibility for the information contained on this map. Any 
use of this product with respect to accuracy and precision shall be the sole responsibility of the user.

* DISCLAIMER *
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Item 10 

STAFF REPORT 
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Page 1 

BEAUMONT – CHERRY VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

PLAN OF SERVICES  

for 

Parcel Map No. 28348 

Introduction 

This Plan of Services covers an area of approximately 30.25 acres consisting of Parcels 1 
through 16 as shown on Parcel Map (PM) No. 28348 recorded in Parcel Map Book 201 on 
pages 72 through 74, records of Riverside County, CA (hereinafter the “Project Area”). The 
Project Area is located south of Fourth Street, east of Risco Circle, and west of Viele Avenue in 
the city of Beaumont; in the north half of the southwest quarter of Section 9, Township 3 
South, Range 1 West, San Bernardino Base and Meridian. The Annexation Area includes the 
following Assessor’s Parcel Numbers:  

 417-220-009  417-220-014  417-220-015 
 417-220-017  417-220-022  417-220-026 
 417-220-028  417-220-036  417-220-037 
 417-220-038  417-220-039  417-220-041 
 417-220-042   

The area covered by this Plan of Services is shown on Figure 1 – Project Area. The Project 
Area is within the service area of the City of Beaumont for wastewater treatment and is being 
annexed to the Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District (the “District”) for domestic and non-
potable water services. The Project Area is within the District’s sphere of influence. 

Domestic Water Demand, Source, and Facilities 

According to the District’s 2015 Urban Water Management Plan, the District’s service area 
encompasses approximately 28 square miles, predominantly in Riverside County, including the 
city of Beaumont and the unincorporated community of Cherry Valley. The District also owns 
1,524 acres of watershed land in Edgar Canyon (a portion of which is in San Bernardino 
County), where it operates some wells and reservoirs. The District has a service population of 
approximately 48,400 people with 16,985 service connections. The District’s service area 
consists mainly of single-family residential customers, with a smaller number of multi-family 
residential, commercial, industrial, institutional/governmental, landscape, and agricultural 
irrigation connections. 

Existing and proposed land uses for the Annexation Area and the estimated average daily 
domestic water demand are presented in Table 1 – Estimated Average Daily Domestic 

Demand for the Annexation Area based on Existing Land Uses and Entitlements, below, 
and Table 2 – Estimated Average Daily Domestic Demand for the Annexation Area Based 

on Existing Use for Developed Parcels, and Beaumont General Plan Land Use 

Designation for the Rest of the Parcels, which begins on the page following Table 1. 
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Table 1 – Estimated Average Daily Domestic Demand for the Annexation Area based on 

Existing Land Uses and Entitlements with Pending Applications 

Parcels as 
shown on PM 

No. 28348 

Acreage 
(per PM No. 

28348) 
Existing/Proposed 

Land Use1 

Average Daily 
Water Demand 

(in GPD2) 
Estimated 

EDUs6 

1 1.21 Truck and Trailer 
Parking for Trailers 
Awaiting Loading 
and Unloading of 
Food Products 

(Approved by the City of 
Beaumont Planning 

Commission on May 8, 
2018.) 

03 03 

2 1.29 Vacant 
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

N/A4 N/A4 

3 1.66 Vacant 
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

N/A4 N/A4 

4 1.62 Vacant 
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

N/A4 N/A4 

5, 6, 7, 10, 11 7.10 ACSS Inc., 
Steel Fabricator 

(approximately 50,000 
SF building) 

Already 
receiving service 
from the District 

N/A 

8 1.19 Vacant 
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

N/A4 N/A4 

9 1.20 Vacant 
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

N/A4 N/A4 

12 4.22 Vacant 
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

N/A4 N/A4 

13 2.38 Beaumont 
Wastewater 

Treatment Plant, 
pond facility 

05 05 
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Parcels as 
shown on PM 

No. 28348 

Acreage 
(per PM No. 

28348) 
Existing/Proposed 

Land Use1 

Average Daily 
Water Demand 

(in GPD2) 
Estimated 

EDUs6 

14 2.29 Robertson’s Ready 
Mix, materials and 
supplies storage 

05 05 

15 2.05 Robertson’s Ready 
Mix, materials and 
supplies storage 

05 05 

16 4.04 Vacant 
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

N/A4 N/A4 

Total for the Annexation Area 0 0 

Notes: 
1. Land Use based on the Beaumont Planning Department Staff Report for Minor Plot Plan PP2018-0094 and 

the ACSS website (https://acssinc.weebly.com/about-us.html). 
2. GPD = gallons per day. 
3. Parcel 1 is a parking lot and does not require domestic water service. 
4. Average daily demand and estimated EDUs are shown as N/A for Parcels 1, 2, 3, 4, 8, 9, 12, 13, and 16 

because no uses are proposed at this time. 
5. Average daily demand and estimated EDUs are shown as 0 for Parcels 13, 14, and 15 because current 

uses on those parcels do not require water service. 
6. EDU = equivalent dwelling unit. 

 

As shown above in Table 1, based on existing land uses, the proposed annexation would not 
result in an increased domestic water demand.  
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Table 2 – Estimated Average Daily Domestic Demand for the Annexation Area 

Based on Existing Use for Developed Parcels, and 

Beaumont General Plan Land Use Designation for the Rest of the Parcels 

Parcels as 
shown on PM 

No. 28348 

Acreage 
(per PM No. 

28348) 

Existing Use 
/General Plan 

Designated Land 
Use1 

Average Daily 
Water Demand 

(in GPD2) 
Estimated 

EDUs6 

1 1.21 Truck and Trailer 
Parking for Trailers 
Awaiting Loading 
and Unloading of 
Food Products 

(Approved by the City of 
Beaumont Planning 

Commission on May 8, 
2018.) 

Vacant/Industrial  
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

03 03 

2 1.29 Vacant/Industrial  
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

2,5804 4.4 

3 1.66 Vacant/Industrial  
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

3,3204 5.7 

4 1.62 Vacant/Industrial  
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

3,2404 5.6 

5, 6, 7, 10, 11 7.10 ACSS Inc., Steel 
Fabricator 

(approximately 50,000 
SF building) 

Already 
receiving service 
from the District 

0 

8 1.19 Vacant/Industrial  
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

2,3804 4.1 

9 1.20 Vacant/Industrial  
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

2,4004 4.1 

12 4.22 Vacant/Industrial  
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

8,4404 14.6 
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Parcels as 
shown on PM 

No. 28348 

Acreage 
(per PM No. 

28348) 

Existing Use 
/General Plan 

Designated Land 
Use1 

Average Daily 
Water Demand 

(in GPD2) 
Estimated 

EDUs6 

13 2.38 Beaumont 
Wastewater 

Treatment Plant, 
pond facility 

05 05 

14 2.29 Robertson’s Ready 
Mix, materials and 
supplies storage 

05 05 

15 2.05 Robertson’s Ready 
Mix, materials and 
supplies storage 

05 05 

16 4.04 Vacant/Industrial  
(No use proposed 

at this time.) 

8,0804 13.9 

Total for the Annexation Area 30,440 52.5 

Notes: 
1. Land Use based on information in the Beaumont Planning Department Staff Report for Minor Plot Plan 

PP2018-0094, the ACSS website (https://acssinc.weebly.com/about-us.html), and the Beaumont General 
Plan (http://beaumontca.gov/DocumentCenter/Home/View/66) 

2. GPD = gallons per day. 
3. Parcel 1 is a parking lot and does not require domestic water service. 
4. Average daily demand is calculated for Parcels 1, 2, 3, 4, 8, 9, 12, 13, and 16 based on the Beaumont 

General Plan land use designation of industrial and 2,000 gallons/day/acre, which is the factor used for 
industrial/commercial developments in the BCVWD Potable Water System Master Plan, adopted January 
2016.  

5. Average daily demand and estimated EDUs are shown as 0 for Parcels 13, 14, and 15 because current 
uses on those parcels do not require water service. 

6. EDU = equivalent dwelling unit. Estimated EDUs for Parcels 1, 2, 3, 4, 8, 9, 12, 13, and 16 are based on 
580 GPD/EDU. 

 

As shown in Table 2, the proposed annexation would result in an increased average water use  
of approximately 30,440 gallons per day, which is equivalent to approximately 52.5 new EDUs. 
However, Parcel 1 is the only parcel seeking water supply/service from the District. The other 
parcels identified in Table 2 will need to obtain a “Will Serve” letter from the District for each 
respective parcel’s future development based on its respective project.  

The District’s 2015 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) states the District has over 16,000 
connections and delivers  just over 9,000 acre-feet per year (AFY) of potable water. Demand 
for non-potable (landscape) supplies is 514 AFY. In total, 9,792 AF were used within the District 
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in 2015. The 2015 UWMP projects the service population will almost double by 2040 and 
according to Table 4-2 of the 2015 UWMP, the 2040 projected potable and raw water demand 
is 25,381 AFY. Of the projected 2040 potable and raw water demand, approximately 22,000 
AFY is projected to serve residential, commercial, industrial, institutional/governmental, 
agricultural, and other (i.e., metered construction and street sweeping water, etc.) uses; 398 
AFY raw water to supplement the non-potable water system; 500 AFY in projected system 
losses; and 2,500 AFY of imported raw water for groundwater recharge (banked for future 
extractions during dry periods). 

The source of potable water supply for the District is groundwater from 24 wells (1 well on 
standby) in Little San Gorgonio Creek (Edgar Canyon) and Beaumont Basin (also known as the 
Beaumont Storage Unit or the Beaumont Management Zone). The District facilitates the 
adjudication by replenishing what is pumped from the Beaumont Basin with imported State 
Project Water from the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA), some which is used to 
recharge groundwater. As of the end of 2017, the District has “banked” approximately 
32,295.7 acre-feet of water into the Beaumont Basin (about a 3-year supply). The 12,899 AFY 
of water used within the District in 2017 was sourced as follows: 

 1,270.4 AFY from groundwater from the Little San Gorgonio (Edgar Canyon),  

 2,790.6 AFY of unused Adjudication overlyer allocation 

 11,650 AFY from Groundwater from the Beaumont Basin, and 

 13,590 AFY purchased/imported water from the SGPWA, which includes: 

o 8,860.1 AFY used for Production Replenishment, and 
o 4,729.9 AFY transferred to banked groundwater storage. 

The Annexation Area will connect to an existing District domestic water pipeline in 4th Street; 
thus no new off-site facilities are required. Land Use within the Annexation Area is consistent 
with the future development projections used in the District’s UWMP and BCVWD White 
Papers 1 through 7 related to the regional supply, which are included as Attachment A. 

Non-Potable Water 

Non-potable water will be used for landscape irrigation. The District has over 40 miles of non-
potable water transmission and distribution pipelines in place. This system includes a 2 million 
gallon recycled (non-potable) water reservoir. There are approximately 300 existing landscape 
connections to the recycled water system receiving about 1,300 acre-feet of water (per 2015 
records). Additionally, District Well 26, can pump into either the potable or non-potable water 
system, and is currently pumping into the non-potable system to supplement it. In addition to 
current sources of water, the District anticipates increasing the use of recycled water, storm 
water capture, urban storm runoff capture, and additional groundwater supplies to meet future 
water demand. Year 2040 non-potable water supplies are projected to be 4,406 AFY. 

Existing and proposed land uses for the Annexation Area and the estimated average daily non-
potable water demand are presented in Table 3, on the following page.  
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Table 3 – Estimated Average Daily Non-Potable Demand for the Annexation Area 

Based on Existing Uses 

Parcels as 
shown on PM 

No. 28348 

Acreage 
(per PM No. 

28348) 
Landscape 
Demand1 

Average Daily 
Water Demand 

(in GPD2) 
Estimated 

EDUs6 

1 1.21 Truck and Trailer 
Parking for Trailers 
Awaiting Loading 
and Unloading of 
Food Products 

(Approved by the City of 
Beaumont Planning 

Commission on May 8, 
2018.) 

4163 0.73 

2 1.29 Vacant 
(No landscaping 

proposed at this time.) 

N/A4 N/A4 

3 1.66 Vacant 
(No landscaping 

proposed at this time.) 

N/A4 N/A4 

4 1.62 Vacant 
(No landscaping 

proposed at this time.) 

N/A4 N/A4 

5, 6, 7, 10, 11 7.10 ACSS Inc. 
Steel Fabricator 
(approximately 

50,000 SF building) 

N/A5 N/A5 

8 1.19 Vacant 
(No landscaping 

proposed at this time.) 

N/A4 N/A4 

9 1.20 Vacant 
(No landscaping 

proposed at this time.) 

N/A4 N/A4 

12 4.22 Vacant 
(No landscaping 

proposed at this time.) 

N/A4 N/A3 
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Parcels as 
shown on PM 

No. 28348 

Acreage 
(per PM No. 

28348) 
Landscape 
Demand1 

Average Daily 
Water Demand 

(in GPD2) 
Estimated 

EDUs6 

13 2.38 Beaumont 
Wastewater 

Treatment Plant, 
pond facility 

(No landscaping 
proposed at this time.) 

06 06 

14 2.29 Robertson’s Ready 
Mix, materials and 
supplies storage 

(No landscaping 
proposed at this time.) 

06 06 

15 2.05 Robertson’s Ready 
Mix, materials and 
supplies storage 

(No landscaping 
proposed at this time.) 

06 06 

16 4.04 Vacant 
(No landscaping 

proposed at this time.) 

N/A4 N/A4 

Total for the Annexation Area 416 0.7 

Notes: 
1. Land Use based on information in the Beaumont Planning Department Staff Report for Minor Plot Plan 

PP2018-0094 and the ACSS website (https://acssinc.weebly.com/about-us.html) 
2. GPD = gallons per day. 
3. Average daily demand for Parcel 1 is based on the MAWA and ETWU Calculations for the parking lot. The 

ETWU is 151,821 gallons/year, which equals approximately 416 GPD. Estimated EDUs for Parcel 1 is 
based on 580 GPD/EDU 

4. Average daily demand and estimated EDUs are shown as N/A for Parcels 1, 2, 3, 4, 8, 9, 12, 13, and 16 
because no uses are proposed at this time. 

5. Not receiving non-potable water service from the District. 
6. Average daily demand and estimated EDUs are shown as 0 for Parcels 13, 14, and 15 because current 

uses on those parcels do not require water service. 
7. EDU = equivalent dwelling unit. 

 

State Legislation 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
The District as Lead Agency adopted a Notice of Exemption (NOE) for the proposed 
annexation. A copy of the filed NOE is included as Attachment B. 
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Financing 

Public financing for the development of the Project Area is not proposed. Development of the 
Project Area will be owner financed. 
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Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 

560 Magnolia Avenue 

Beaumont, CA 92223 

951-845-9581  www.bcvwd.org 

 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District  White Paper No. 1 
 1 January 2018 

DATE:  September 6, 2017 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Dan Jaggers, Interim General Manager  

SUBJECT: Discussion of the Analysis of State Project Water (SPW) Requirements for 
SGPWA and BCVWD – White Paper No. 1 

 
This white paper is the first of a series of white papers discussing San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency (SGPWA) and Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District’s (BCVWD’s) imported water 
needs to year 2050 – essentially build-out.  Subsequent white papers will expand on this initial 
forecast and identify funding sources and possible strategies to secure and fund the future 
imported water needs. 

Background: 

There has been much discussion at past BCVWD and SGPWA Board meetings and presentations 
about imported water supply, the need for more “Table A” water, Nickel Water, Sites Reservoir, 
etc., but there has not been much analysis presented by the SGPWA as to the region’s needs 
and BCVWD’s specific needs with respect to the proposed water supply opportunities. Some of 
these needs include: 

 What are SGPWA’s regional needs for imported water and where will this water come 
from? 

 What is the effect on BCVWD’s imported water demands without recycled water supply? 
What is the ripple effect on SGPWA? 

 What is the impact of demand reduction due to more efficient housing and landscaping in 
combination with rising costs for water?   

 What planned participation should BCVWD have in future water supply opportunities?   

This White Paper provides information to BCVWD Board Members and others so they have a 
better understanding of our current and future water supply needs when they make decisions and 
set policy for the District’s and the Region’s future. 

BCVWD Engineering Staff has reviewed the SGPWA’s supply needs taken from their 2015 Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) and some of the additional supply sources they were or are 
considering and developed a set of bar graphs that illustrate how their demands and supply 
sources might look from now to 2050.   
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Table 2-2, shown below, extracted from SGPWA’s 2015 UWMP, shows BCVWD’s demands for 
2010 and 2015.  The data is correct, but is misleading. 

 

During 2010 BCVWD was able to pump 6,802 acre-ft/year (AFY) of “temporary surplus” from the 
Beaumont Basin without replacement obligations.  This reduced BCVWD’s demand for imported 
water and a portion of the 5,727 acre-ft (AF) shown above was “banked” for future use.  So the 
“5727 AF” in Table 2 would not be BCVWD’s “normal” demand on the SGPWA. 

The 2015 demand of 2,773 AF was reflective of reduced water consumption due to the mandated 
water conservation measures and the reduced amount of SPW available to SGPWA that year 
due to the low State Water Project Allocation (20% in 2015).  Under “normal conditions” BCVWD’s 
imported water demand in 2015 would have reflected a number closer to 7,565 AF and SGPWA 
SPW demands would have been closer to 9,000 (AFY). 

Table 2-4, extracted from SGPWA’s 2015 UWMP, shows BCVWD’s imported water demands and 
the SGPWA’s total projected demands.  The demands given to the SGPWA by BCVWD were 
adjusted slightly by BCVWD in the preparation of BCVWD’s 2015 UWMP. 

 
Since the SGPWA UWMP only has forecasts to 2040, BCVWD made some estimates of the 
SGPWA’s demands for 2045 and 2050 by extrapolating the reported demands from 2040.  The 
extension to 2050 was done to identify water supply needs beyond the limits of the current 
UWMPs. 

Some Basic Assumptions 

1. SWP reliability in any given year is 62% to 64%; SGPWA used 62% in their UWMP which 
was the basis for this analysis.  Their “Table A” amount is 17,300 AFY.  “Table A” refers 
to the amount of water in SGPWA’s contract with the Department of Water Resources 
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(DWR).  It is used by DWR to allocate available water supplies to State Water Contractors 
such as SGPWA.  There is no guarantee that full “Table A” is available every year (100% 
allocation).  It has averaged 66.7% over the last 25 years; so the reliability percentages 
above are reasonable.  This means that SGPWA can only count on approximately 10,700 
AFY of SPW in any given year. 

2. SGPWA is collecting a “fee” to purchase water to bring their “Table A” to 100% reliability.  
BCVWD believes this will happen over the years and the assumption in this analysis is 
that the SGPWA will have 100% reliable “Table A” by 2050 through gradual purchases of 
“Table A” water rights or other long term supply options.  It may occur sooner than this, 
and if it does, that will improve the water supply situation. 

3. In SGPWA’s UWMP there is reference to “Yuba Accord” water.  SGPWA has a long term 
agreement to purchase water from the Yuba County Water Agency through DWR.  Over 
the years SGPWA has received about 300 AFY.  It is assumed this will continue into the 
future. 

4. SGPWA’s UWMP states they are in final negotiations with San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District (Valley District, formerly “Muni”) for 5,000 AFY of “Table A” in 
years when Valley’s Board declares a surplus.  SGPWA states that this would be on the 
average of 2 out of 5 years (40% of the time), so it is assumed that 2,000 AFY can be 
obtained in any one year and this will continue in the future. 

5. SGPWA has been in negotiations with a) Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency 
(AVEK) for water from the Nickel Farms (AVEK Nickel Water), for 1,700 AFY for 20 years 
with a first right to extending it another 20 years; b) a confidential individual or organization 
in the Southern Central Valley for 1,000 AFY to improve SPW reliability; and c) a 
confidential organization for 50,000 AF over a 10 year period (5,000 AFY) just to name a 
few.  The AVEK Nickel Water is not subject to the DWR SWP reliability issues. 

6. SGPWA has made a commitment of 10,000 AF and BCVWD has committed to 4,000 AF 
to the Sites Project Authority to fund Phase I of the Sites Reservoir Study; The Sites 
Reservoir has been preliminarily modeled using the Cal SIM model and its yield is 
determined to be 500,000 AFY; but only 250,000 AFY is actually guaranteed to the project 
participants at this time.  Portions of the remaining 250,000 AFY may be under the control 
of the resource agencies for the benefit of fish and migratory birds1.  Any unused portion 
of the 250,000 AFY, after the resource agencies “buy in,” will revert back to the project 
participants.  The Sites Project Authority participants requested more than 250,000 AF of 
the “guaranteed” water and so the Authority developed and allocated two classes of water: 
Class 1 and Class 2.  Class 1 water is guaranteed if the project moves forward.  After 
Phase I study is complete and all of the project participants, including the resource 
agencies, are committed, any remaining Class 2 water will be converted to Class 1 for 
each project participant.  The Authority believes this might be as much as 50% of a 
participant’s Class 2 water. 

                                                
1 Sites Project Authority (2017). Sites Reservoir Project, Program Administrator Position: Request for 
Qualifications and Proposal, June 23. 
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The SGPWA agreement with the Sites Authority is for 14,000 AF which included BCVWD’s 
4,000 AF share (28.571%).  The split is shown below in Table 1. 

Table 1 
Original Agreement 

 Total, AF 
SGPWA, 

AF BCVWD, AF 
Class 1 7,966 5,690 2,276 
Class 2 6,034 4,310 1,724 
Total 14,000 10,000 4,000 

Sometime after the original offer to SGPWA, one of the original participants decided not 
to participate, freeing up 10,000 AF Class 1 water which was then allocated to all of the 
participating State Water Project/Central Valley Project Contractor Participants.  
SGPWA’s share of the reallocation was about 8.33%.  The result of this reallocation is 
shown in Table 2.  SGPWA and BCVWD’s Class 2 water allocation were then reduced 
accordingly so the total participation remained the same. 

Table 2 
Adjusted Agreement 

 
Total, 
AF 

SGPWA, 
AF BCVWD, AF 

Class 1 8,799 6,285 2,514 
Class 2 5,201 3,715 1,486 
Total 14,000 10,000 4,000 

Discussions with SGPWA indicates there may be another participant that withdrew.  Staff 
reviewed the minutes of the Authority’s board meeting and determined that the agency 
that withdrew was Westlands Water District.  Westlands had 11,380 AF of Class 1 water, 
which would result in a reallocation to SGPWA of about 949 AF.  This should result in a 
final adjusted agreement shown in Table 3. 

Table 3 
Final Adjusted Agreement after Westland Withdrawal 

 Total, AF 
SGPWA, 

AF 
BCVWD, 

AF 
Class 1 9,748 6,963 2,785 
Class 2 4,252 3,037 1,215 
Total 14,000 10,000 4,000 

The final project yield could range from the Class 1 water amounts in Table 3 to a likely 
maximum amount shown in Table 4 which is based on 50% of Class 2 being converted to 
Class 1 as stated above. 

Table 4 
Final Probable Maximum Yield of Sites Water 

 
Total, 

AF 
SGPWA, 

AF BCVWD, AF 
Class 1 11,874 8,481 3,393 

It is possible, depending on the resources agencies funding, that the Class 1 water 
amounts shown in Table 4 could be greater, i.e., the resource agencies fund less of the 
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project.  It is also a very remote possibility that the full 500,000 AFY yield could be 
allocated to the project participants.   

The project schedule for Sites estimates completion is approximately 2029.  For purposes 
of this analysis it is assumed that water would not be available until 2035. 

7. BCVWD’s demands were extracted from their 2015 UWMP, (Table 6-26), with the 2045 
demand extended forward to 2050.  These demands were founded in the 2016 Potable 
Water Master Plan. 

8. BCVWD’s imported water demands were based on BCVWD using the following local 
sources: 

 Edgar Canyon Groundwater – 2,200 AFY 
 Beaumont Basin Groundwater, including forbearance water,  
 Recharged captured stormwater from MDP pipeline (Grand Avenue) and 

recharged urban runoff from water quality basins  
 Recycled Water 
 Non-potable groundwater from mouth of Edgar Canyon and San Timoteo 

Creek 

The quantities and more details can be found in Table 6-26 of BCVWD’s 2015 UWMP. 

SGPWA Imported Water Supplies to 2050 

Figure 1 shows a stacked bar graph of the various sources of imported water supply that the 
SGPWA already has, has committed to, or is in serious negotiations for.  Figure 1 assumes the 
yield from Sites Reservoir is based on the Total Likely Maximum Yield of 11,874 AF shown in 
Table 4.  This assumes conversion of 50% of Class 2 water to Class 1 water.  This represents a 
likely upper bound for Sites Reservoir water.  There is no adjustment for reliability.  Also shown 
in Figure 1 are the SGPWA’s total demands for imported water from their UWMP appropriately 
extended along with BCVWD’s imported water demands. 

Also shown are BCVWD’s need for imported water if recycled water from YVWD and the City of 
Beaumont are not available.  Figure 1 shows that the Sites Reservoir is essential to meeting 
SGPWA’s demands to 2050.  Figure 1 and the figures to follow show there is a significant 
deficiency in 2030.  It will be imperative that SGPWA secure a short term supply to meet that 
demand until Sites Reservoir comes on line or use retail water agencies water in storage, develop 
a banking program for any available water to cover the shortfall, or some combination of same. 

Figure 2 shows SGPWA’s sources of imported water assuming none of SGPWA’s Sites Reservoir 
Class 2 water is converted to Class 1 water.  This is a likely lower limit of supply from sites and 
represents a reduction of about 18%.  There is no other adjustment for reliability.  In Figure 2, 
SGPWA’s 2045 and 2050 demands slightly exceed the available water supply.  This is nothing to 
be alarmed about at this time; it is still 25 to 30 years away and sufficient time exists to secure 
additional supplies if needed.  There will likely be some conservation measures that will bring the 
“demand curve” down.  For example, new sources of imported water are very expensive.  This 
will be reflected in the water rates and result in a reduction in demand.   
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The status of Sites Reservoir should be known by 2020, or sooner, if it will move forward.  At this 
time it is not known if the Sites Reservoir yield will be subject to the reliability issues experienced 
SWP.  BCVWD staff has posed this question to the Sites Project Authority, but to date the 
Authority has not responded.  To see the impact of reduced reliability, a worst case scenario, 
Figure 3 was prepared.  It is based on receiving only 62% of the minimum Class 1 water, i.e., no 
conversion of Class 2 water to Class 1 water.  Figure 3 shows that SGPWA will need additional 
water sources even as Sites Reservoir comes on line.  With conservation, it is possible that the 
need for an additional source(s) can be deferred for a few years.  In any case, it is imperative that 
the Sites Reservoir yield reliability be determined as soon as possible as this is critical to long 
term water supplies for the SGPWA. 

 
Figure 1 

SGPWA Imported Water Sources and Demands 
(Sites Reservoir at Maximum Class 1 Water) 
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Figure 2 

SGPWA Imported Water Sources and Demands 
(Sites Reservoir at Minimum Class 1 Water) 

 
Figure 3 

SGPWA Imported Water Sources and Demands 
(Sites Reservoir at Minimum Class 1 Water with only 62% Reliability) 
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BCVWD’s Long Term Imported Water Needs 

BCVWD Engineering Staff analyzed BCVWD’s long term water supply situation similar to the 
analysis presented above for SGPWA.  The assumptions presented above for SGPWA were also 
applicable to BCVWD; but BCVWD has some additional constraints since they are only a portion 
of SGPWA’s demand.  Additional assumptions: 

 BCVWD’s share of SGPWA’s “Table A”, “Table A” reliability enhancement, Yuba Accord 
Water, AVEK Nickel Water, Sites Reservoir Water, etc. is based on BCVWD’s portion of 
the SGPWA’s total demand.  BCVWD’s share of the demand can be extracted from the 
SGPWA 2015 UWMP and is 85.9% in 2020 declining to 64.5% by 2040 and projected, by 
BCVWD to be 60% by 2050.   

 BCVWD has committed to 4,000 AF from Sites Reservoir. 

Figure 4 shows BCVWD’s long term imported water supply.  There are three (3) demand lines 
plotted: 

 Demand for imported water assuming local water resource projects (stormwater capture 
etc.) and recycled water from YVWD and City of Beaumont are utilized. 

 Demand for imported water without recycled water. 
 Demand for imported water assuming conservation.  A 20% reduction in BCVWD total 

water demand was assumed by 2040 and 25% by 2050.  The imported water supply is 
about 58% of BCVWD’s total supply, so the reduction in imported water demand will only 
be 58% of the conservation reduction.  

The Sites Reservoir supply is based on having maximum Class 1 water, 3,393 AFY from Table 4 
above along with BCVWD’s share of SGPWA’s 8,481 Sites Reservoir supply.  This probably 
represents a likely maximum supply from Sites Reservoir.  It shows that under this scenario and 
assuming recycled water use, BCVWD will have more than adequate water supply to 2050 and 
beyond.  The plot further shows that the “50,000 AF for 10 years” currently being considered, may 
not be needed if Sites Reservoir is completed. 

Figure 4 and the figures to follow show a short-fall in 2030, but that can be overcome by banking 
additional water between now and 2030 and using that water to meet demands until Sites 
Reservoir is fully functional. 

Figure 5 shows BCVWD’s imported water supply and demands under the same assumptions as 
Figure 4, but with Sites Reservoir yielding the minimum Class 1 supply.  This is a likely minimum 
supply.  The plot shows that BCVWD will likely have adequate water supply to 2045 and with 
conservation, well beyond 2050. 

Figures 4 and 5 show that BCVWD have adequate imported water supplies until 2025 assuming 
SGPWA secures AVEK Nickel Water and continues to aggressively purchase water rights to bring 
their Table A to 100% reliability.  This will provide some time to determine if Sites Reservoir will 
be implemented.  If Sites Reservoir is not implemented, additional sources of imported water are 
needed.  BCVWD will be about 4,000 AFY “short” in 2035 without Sites Reservoir. 
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Figure 6 represents a worst case scenario with Sites Reservoir at minimum Class 1 water and 
62% reliability.  Figure 6 shows that with conservation, even under this worst case, BCVWD will 
be able to meet its demand till 2050. 

 
Figure 4 

BCVWD Imported Water Sources and Demands 
(Sites Reservoir Yield at Maximum Class 1 Water) 
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Figure 5 
BCVWD Imported Water Sources and Demands 

(Sites Reservoir at Minimum Class 1 Water) 

 
Figure 6 

BCVWD Imported Water Sources and Demands 
(Sites Reservoir at Minimum Class 1 Water and 62% Reliability) 

Conclusions 

1. Recycled water and maximization of local water resources by BCVWD is crucial to 
meeting long term water demands and minimizing BCVWD’s dependence on imported 
water. 

2. The SGPWA must secure Nickel Water and other long term contracts to bring their “Table 
A” amount from 62-64% reliability to 100% reliability.  The figures in this report assume 
“Table A” will be 100% reliable by 2050. 

3. Sites Reservoir is critical to meeting long term water demands.  It is essential to determine 
if Sites Reservoir yield is subject to reliability reductions. 

4. Water conservation should be encouraged to minimize the need for imported water. 
5. These water demand and supply scenarios should be revisited periodically, certainly at 

least every five years. 
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DATE:  November 15, 2017 

TO:  Dan Jaggers, General Manager 

FROM: Joe Reichenberger PE, Senior Engiineer  

SUBJECT: Role of Groundwater Storage and Banking in Meeting State Project Water (SPW) 
Requirements for SGPWA and BCVWD – White Paper No. 2 

 
This white paper summarizes a presentation to BCVWD’s Board of Directors on October 11, 
2017 continuing the discussion of San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA) and Beaumont 
Cherry Valley Water District’s (BCVWD’s) imported water needs to year 2050 – essentially 
build-out.  This white paper focusses on the role of groundwater storage in overcoming short 
term deficiencies between imported water demand and imported water supply. 

Background: 

White Paper No. 1 identified BCVWD and SGPWA imported water requirements over the next 
30 years or so based on the respective agencies’ 2015 Urban Water Management Plans 
(UWMPs).  White Paper No. 1 also listed a number of sources of imported water (“water 
portfolio”) and the timing of the leasing, purchasing, or construction of these sources.  Since the 
leasing and/or purchasing of the various sources in the portfolio will not be able to match the 
demand exactly, there will be times in the future that supplies will either exceed demand or be 
less the demand.  Banking and groundwater storage in the Beaumont Groundwater Basin 
(Beaumont Basin) can be used advantageously as a strategy to better balance supply and 
demand. 

The Beaumont Basin is an adjudicated groundwater basin, operated on a long-term safe yield 
basis, and managed by the Beaumont Basin Watermaster.  When the Beaumont Basin was 
adjudicated, a minimum volume of 200,000 acre-ft (AF) was provided for banking (conjunctive 
use) of imported water available during wet years for used during dry years when imported 
water supply is reduced.  Groundwater banking can also be used on a short term to partially 
overcome the reduced reliability of the SPW. 
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The Adjudication and Groundwater Storage 

The Adjudication allocated the basin safe yield to the overlying parties.  The Basin’s 
appropriator parties (BCVWD, City of Banning, Yucaipa Valley Water District, and South Mesa 
Water Company) were assigned no rights except that in the event the overlying parties did not 
use the entire safe yield, the unused portion was reallocated to the appropriator parties based 
on an allocation percentage in the Adjudication and credited to the appropriator’s groundwater 
storage account.  The appropriator parties were given credit, acre-ft for acre-ft, for supplying 
recycled water and/or potable water to the overlying parties or their successors which also went 
into the appropriator’s groundwater storage account.  The appropriator parties could only pump 
stored groundwater or banked imported water without a replacement or replenishment 
obligation. 

The current storage accounts in the Beaumont Basin are as follows: 

City of Banning   80,000 AF 
City of Beaumont   30,000 AF 
BCVWD    80,000 AF 
South Mesa Water Company  20,000 AF 
Yucaipa Valley Water District  50,000 AF 
Morongo Band of Mission Indians 20,000 AF 
SGPWA    10,000 AF 
Total     290,000 AF 

At the end of calendar year 2016 there was a total of 101,425 AF of water in storage; about 35% 
“full.”  Having a total capacity of 290,000 AF available for storage will be an advantage in 
overcoming short term shortages in SPW availability.  Figure 1 shows the accumulation in 
storage from all of the parties and BCVWD.  BCVWD had 27,565 AF of the total.  These totals 
are increasing in 2017 as more SPW was available from SGPWA.  BCVWD projects over 
33,000 AF in BCVWD’s storage account by the end of 2017.  This represents about three years 
of BCVWD’s total current annual water demand and about five times BCVWD’s annual imported 
water requirements. 

The Water Portfolio 

SGPWA has contract with the Department of Water Resources (DWR) for 17,300 AF of SPW 
(Table A).  However, that amount of water is not available year-in – year-out.  In any given year, 
DWR forecasts that only about 60 to 64% of a State Water Contractor’s Table A can be counted 
on.  A reliability of 62% was used by SGPWA in their 2015 UWMP.  It is possible this could be 
reduced to 60% at some point in the future.  Figure 2 shows the SWP Table A allocations since 
1992.  The average over the 25 year period was 66.7%, slightly larger than DWR’s projection.  
DWR’s projection is lower because it considers future development condition rather than 
historical deliveries.  But Figure 2, nevertheless, does show the variability from year to year.  
BCVWD is easily able to accommodate this variation through the banked groundwater. 
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Historical Water in Storage BCVWD Projected to End of 2017 

Figure 1 
Historical Groundwater in Storage in the Beaumont Basin 

 
Figure 2 

Historic DWR SWP Delivery Allocations 
At the time of this analysis SGPWA was considering the following water sources for its portfolio 
in addition to its Table A at about 60 to 64% reliability: 

 Table A reliability recovery to 100% reliability by 2050 
 Antelope Valley-East Kern (AVEK) for water from the Nickel Farms (AVEK Nickel 

Water), 1,700 AFY for 20 years with a first right to extending it another 20 years 
 San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (Valley District, formerly “Muni”) for 5,000 

AFY of “Table A” in years when Valley’s Board declares a surplus.  SGPWA states that 
this would be on the average of 2 out of 5 years (40% of the time), so it is assumed that 
2,000 AFY can be obtained in any one year and this will continue in the future. 
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 “Yuba Accord” water.  SGPWA has a long term agreement to purchase water from the 
Yuba County Water Agency through DWR.  Over the years SGPWA has received about 
300 AFY (as stated in their 2015 UWMP.  It is assumed this will continue into the future. 

 SGPWA has made a commitment of 10,000 AF and BCVWD has committed to 4,000 AF 
to the Sites Project Authority to fund Phase I of the Sites Reservoir Study.  White Paper 
No.1 described in the detail the yield from Sites Reservoir which SGPWA and BCVWD 
can count on.  There is some uncertainty to the final allocation of the yield from Sites 
Reservoir depending on finalization of the participants and the extent to which the 
resources agencies participate.  This is discussed in White Paper No. 1.  The results of 
this uncertainty in presented in Table 1, below, which shows a likely minimum yield of 
Class 1 water to SGPWA and BCVWD and a probably maximum yield if some of the 
Class 2 water is not fully taken by the resources agencies and the remaining portion of 
Class 2 water is reallocated to the project participants as additional Class 1 water. 

Table 1 
Sites Reservoir Minimum and Maximum Yield to BCVWD and SGPWA  

Condition Total, 
AF 

SGPWA, 
AF BCVWD, AF 

Minimum Yield, adjusted 
without Westlands WD Class 1 9,748 6,963 2,785 
Probable Maximum Yield Class 1 11,874 8,481 3,393 

It is possible, depending on the resources agencies funding, that the Class 1 water 
amounts shown in Table 1 could be greater, i.e., the resource agencies fund less of the 
project.  It is also a very remote possibility that the full 500,000 AFY yield could be 
allocated to the project participants instead of only 250,000 AFY, the basis of the amounts 
in Table 1.  At this point it is not known if the yields from Sites Reservoir, in Table 1 above, 
will be subject to the reliability factor of 62% like the current Table A SPW. 

 White Paper No. 1 included a discussion on the SGPWA’s discussion with a confidential 
organization for 50,000 AF over a 10 year period (5,000 AFY).  This source is no longer 
under consideration in this White Paper No. 2. 

 The California Water Fix is not considered in this White Paper No. 2. 

Year-by-Year Analysis of SGPWA Imported Water Supply and Demand 

Based on the water supply portfolio presented above, BCVWD expanded the analysis in White 
Paper No.1 to a year-by-year analysis to determine the benefit and effectiveness of 
groundwater banking, and subsequent extraction, in meeting short term differences between 
imported water supply and demand. 

BCVWD Staff analyzed three possible scenarios: 

 A “best case” scenario where the maximum possible amount of Class 1 water is 
secured from the Sites Reservoir.  
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 The most likely scenario where supply is assumed to be between the “best” and 
“worst” case; for this case the minimum amount of Class 1 water is secured from the 
Sites Reservoir at 100% reliability.  

 A “worst case” scenario where the minimum amount of Class 1 water is secured from 
the Sites Reservoir at 62% reliability 

In all three cases, the imported water supply sources and amounts are identical until the 
Sites Reservoir comes on line. 

In all of the analyses to follow, the SGPWA imported water demand was extracted from the 
Agency’s 2015 UWMP adjusted and projected to year 2050 as described in White Paper No. 
1.  The analyses also assume that the current Table A 62% reliability will be gradually 
brought to 100% reliability through water purchases by SGPWA from 2020 through 2050. 

Other assumptions include: 

 AVEK Nickel Water delivery starts in year 2020 and continues to year 2040 and the 
agreement is extended for another 20 years to beyond 2050. 

 SBVMWD water is available every year (2,000 AFY). 
 Yuba Acord water is available every year (300 AFY) 
 Sites Reservoir water delivery starts in year 2035 
 Water conservation and demand reduction from new landscape ordinances, more 

efficient plumbing and appliances in new homes is not reflected in the demands 
 BCVWD’s imported water requirements provided to SGPWA reflect the use of 

recycled water shown in Table 2 below.  If recycled water is not available or used, 
BCVWD’s and SGPWA’s imported water demands would increase accordingly. 

Table 2 
Projected BCVWD Recycled Water Use  

Year 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050 

BCVWD Recycled 
Water, AFY 

0 2,196 2,193 3,387 3,882 4,406 5,000 5,000 

SSGPWA Best Case Scenario 

Figure 3 shows the SGPWA Demand from White Paper No.1, projected to 2050, showing the 
sources of imported water from the water portfolio year by year.  Figure 3 also shows that 
demand for imported water exceeds the supply from 2017 to 2020, and from year 2026 through 
year 2035 at the time when Sites Reservoir water deliveries will be available.  Under the Best 
Case scenario, Sites Reservoir will meet the demands through 2050. 

Figure 4 shows the annual surplus/deficit in imported water supply and demand and the 
accumulated surplus/deficit in the imported water supply over time beginning in year 2015 under 
the best case scenario.  This assumes SGPWA and its member agencies, e.g., BCVWD, City of 
Banning, YVWD, will bank water during years when the imported water supply exceeds 
demands. 
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Figure 4 shows that even though there are deficiencies between imported water supply sources 
and imported water demand from years 2017 to 2020 and years 2024 to 2035, the maximum 
accumulated deficit or shortfall was only 22,000 AF.  Once Sites Reservoir water deliveries 
occur, this accumulated deficit is quickly refilled.  The Beaumont Basin can easily accommodate 
the 22,000 AF deficiency where the SGPWA and its member agencies have a total of 290,000 
AF of allocated storage capacity in the Beaumont Basin.  As of the end of 2016, the SGPWA 
and its members had over 100,000 AF in storage and projected increase further in 2017 due to 
the wet year in Northern California.  Assuming normal water years, this cumulative volume will 
increase.  But the strategy has to be to import as much water as the contracts allow and bank 
any surplus in the Beaumont Basin.   

 
Figure 3 

SGPWA Imported Water Supply and Demand – Best Case 

SSGPWA Most Likely Scenario 

Figure 5 shows the SGPWA Demand and the sources of imported water from the water portfolio 
year by year in the Most Likely Case.  It is assumed that Sites Reservoir water deliveries are the 
minimum yield amount from Table 1.  Figure 5 also shows that demand for imported water 
exceeds the supply from 2017 to 2020, and from year 2026 through year 2035 at the time when 
Sites Reservoir water deliveries will be available.  This is similar to the “Best Case” analysis 
presented in Figures 3 and 4 above.  Under the Best Case scenario, Sites Reservoir will only 
meet the demands through 2042 but the shortfall by year 2050 is very small and will easily be 
accommodated by the likely reduction in demand due to conservation and more efficient 
plumbing and appliances as described above. 
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Figure 4 

SGPWA Imported Water Supply Surplus/Deficit – Best Case 

 
Figure 5 

SGPWA Imported Water Supply and Demand – Most Likely Case 
Figure 6 shows the annual surplus/deficit in imported water supply and demand and the 
accumulated surplus/deficit in the imported water supply over time beginning in year 2015 under 
the Most Likely Case scenario.  This assumes SGPWA and its member agencies, e.g., 
BCVWD, City of Banning, YVWD, will bank water during years when the imported water supply 
exceeds demands. 
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Figure 6 

SGPWA Imported Water Supply Surplus/Deficit – Most Likely Case 
Figure 6 shows that even though there are deficiencies between imported water supply sources 
and imported water demand from years 2017 to 2020 and years 2024 to 2035, the maximum 
accumulated deficit or shortfall was only 22,000 AF similar to the “Best Case” analysis.  The 
Beaumont Basin can easily accommodate the 22,000 AF deficiency as discussed above in the 
“Best Case” analysis.  Once Sites Reservoir water deliveries occur, this accumulated deficit is 
partially refilled.   

Figure 6 shows that there will be adequate water supply until about 2040 or so and that unless 
there is a reduction in the demand due to conservation, which is likely to occur over time, the 
accumulated deficit will not be fully replenished.  If demand reduction does not occur, additional 
water supply will be needed beyond Sites Reservoir.  This could be the California Water Fix or 
other sources. 

SSGPWA Worst Case Scenario 

Because of the uncertainty with respect to the reliability of the yield of Sites Reservoir, BCVWD 
took a very conservative approach to bracket the “lower end” or “Worst Case” scenario.  This 
Worst Case scenario was based on the minimum yield from Sites Reservoir as shown in Table 
1 with a 62% reliability factor applied.  This assumed Sites Reservoir would be subject to the 
same reliability of the State Water Project as a whole.  Figure 7 shows the SGPWA imported 
Water Supply and Demand forecast to year 2050.  As can be seen from Figure 7, there is a 
continuous shortfall from year 2024 through year 2050 even with Sites reservoir.  By the year 
2050 the shortfall is about 7,000 AFY about 22%.  Some or all of this deficiency will likely be 
made up by conservation and reduction demand.   
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Figure 7 

SGPWA Imported Water Supply and Demand – Worst Case 
Before Sites Reservoir deliveries begin in 2035 the delivery capability and reliability will be 
known.  This could be as early the middle to late 2020s which should provide sufficient time to 
secure other imported water sources; perhaps the California Water Fix may make up some of 
the deficiency. 

Figure 8 shows the annual surplus/deficit in imported water supply and demand and the 
accumulated surplus/deficit in the imported water supply over time beginning in year 2015 under 
the Worst Case scenario.  This assumes SGPWA and its member agencies, e.g., BCVWD, City 
of Banning, YVWD, will bank water during years when the imported water supply exceeds 
demands. 

 
Figure 8 

SGPWA Imported Water Supply Surplus/Deficit – Worst Case 
The strategy of using the Beaumont Groundwater Basin to store surplus imported water is a 
good strategy until more is known about the yield and reliability of Sites Reservoir yield and the 
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status of California Water Fix.  As shown in Figure 8, the accumulated deficiency by the time 
Sites Reservoir is on line (year 2035) is 22,000 AF, same as the “Best” and “Likely” scenarios.  
However even with Sites Reservoir, there will be significant accumulated deficiency by year 
2050, (75,000 AF), which would be a concern if allowed to continue.  But with some 
conservation and demand reduction the accumulated deficiency would be reduced.  Based on 
the storage capacity in the Beaumont Basin, the drop in water storage from year 2035 to year 
2050 is manageable. 

Year-by-Year Analysis of BCVWD Imported Water Supply and Demand 

A similar year-by-year analysis of BCVWD’s imported water supply and demand was 
completed.  The assumptions presented above for SGPWA were also applicable to BCVWD; 
but BCVWD has some additional constraints since they are only a portion of SGPWA’s demand.  
Additional assumptions pertinent to BCVWD: 

 BCVWD’s share of SGPWA’s “Table A”, “Table A” reliability enhancement, Yuba Accord 
Water, AVEK Nickel Water, Sites Reservoir Water (separate from BCVWD’s 28.571% as 
stated in White Paper No. 1), etc. is based on BCVWD’s portion of the SGPWA’s total 
demand.  BCVWD’s share of the demand can be extracted from the SGPWA 2015 UWMP 
and are 85.9% in 2020 declining to 64.5% by 2040 and projected, by BCVWD to be 60% 
by 2050.  These percentages were applied to the above listed sources in making 
projections of imported water supply and demand in the following figures. 

 BCVWD has committed to 28.571% of the final allocation to SGPWA from Sites Reservoir 
(2,785 to 3,393 AFY minimum and maximum Class 1 yield as shown in Table 1 above). 

As with the SGPWA analyses presented above, the imported water sources and amounts are 
identical under all three scenarios up until Sites Reservoir comes on line. 

BBCVWD Best Case Scenario 

Figure 9 shows BCVWD’s long term imported water supply for the Best Case scenario; it assumes 
Sites Reservoir yield at its probable maximum yield per Table 1 above.  There are three (3) 
demand lines plotted: 

 Demand for imported water assuming local water resource projects (stormwater capture, 
etc.) and recycled water from YVWD and City of Beaumont are utilized.   This was 
extracted from Table 6-26 in BCVWD’s 2015 UWMP, projected to year 2050, and includes 
the purchased imported water for banking for wet year-dry year mitigation. 

 Demand for imported water without recycled water. 
 Demand for imported water assuming conservation.  A 20% reduction in BCVWD total 

water demand was assumed by 2040 and 25% by 2050.  The imported water supply is 
about 58% of BCVWD’s total supply, so the reduction in imported water demand will only 
be 58% of the conservation reduction.  
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Figure 9 

BCVWD Imported Water Supply and Demand – Best Case 
Figure 9 clearly shows that BCVWD will be able to meet its year 2050 imported water demand 
assuming the recycled water amounts, presented in Table 2 above, are available and utilized.  
Without recycled water, BCVWD’s demand for imported water in year 2050 will exceed the 
available supply by about 3,500 AFY.  With conservation, BCVWD will be able to meet its year 
2050 imported water demands easily and for many years beyond 2050. 

Figure 9 shows a shortfall of supply from year 2017 to year 2020 and year 2025 to year 2035.  
Figure 10 shows the accumulated surplus/deficit for the entire period of study assuming the use 
of recycled water.  The maximum accumulated deficit is only 13,600 AF which occurs in year 
2035 just as Sites Reservoir is coming on line.  This is easily accommodated as BCVWD is 
projected to have over 33,000 AF in storage at the end of 2017 even after an extended drought 
period.  BCVWD’s Beaumont Basin storage account can accommodate up to 80,000 AF. 

BBCVWD Most Likely Scenario 

Figure 11 shows BCVWD’s imported water supply and demand under the Most Likely scenario 
with Site’s reservoir at the minimum amount of Class 1 water from the Sites Reservoir at 100% 
reliability as shown in Table 1. Even under this scenario BCVWD can easily meet its imported 
water requirement in year 2050 without conservation and demand reduction.  With conservation, 
as described above for Best Case Scenario, BCVWD will be able to meet its imported water 
demands well beyond year 2050. 
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Figure 10 

BCVWD Imported Water Supply Surplus/Deficit – Best Case 

 
Figure 11 

BCVWD Imported Water Supply and Demand – Most Likely Case 
Figure 11 shows there is a deficit of supply from year 2025 to year 2035.  Figure 12 shows the 
accumulated surplus/deficit for the period of study.  The maximum deficit, 13,600 AF, occurs in 
2035 just before Sites Reservoir comes on line.  This can easily be met with groundwater from 
BCVWD’s Beaumont Basin groundwater storage account which has capacity to 80,000 AF.  As 
of the end of 2017, BCVWD’s groundwater in storage is projected to be 33,000 AF.  Figure 12 
shows that there will be an aggregate surplus from 2017 to about year 2025.  It is projected 
another 6,000 AF will be added to BCVWD’s storage account by 2025 bringing BCVWD’s 
groundwater storage account up to 39,000 AF.  .It is possible that more groundwater will be in 
storage if hydrologic conditions are favorable.   
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Figure 12 

BCVWD Imported Water Supply Surplus/Deficit – Most Likely Case 
The storage account will decline to year 2035 when Sites Reservoir comes on line as shown in 
Figure 12.  BCVWD’s storage account would still have 19,400 AF in storage at this time.  Figure 
12 shows that BCVWD’s storage account would continue to increase from year 2035 on. 

BBCVWD Worst Case Scenario 

Figure 13 shows BCVWD’s imported water supply and demand under a Worst Case Scenario 
where the minimum amount of Class 1 water is secured from the Sites Reservoir but at 62% 
reliability.  Under the Worst Case Scenario, BCVWD imported water supply will be about 2,300 
AFY “short” in year 2050 assuming local water resources and recycled water is available and 
used.  Figure 13 shows that with conservation as described previously for Best Case Scenario, 
the imported water demand in year 2050 will be met.  The amount of water available from Sites 
Reservoir and whether it is subject to the SWP reliability reduction will be known before is 
constructed which will provide opportunity to secure water from other sources. 
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Figure 13 

BCVWD Imported Water Supply and Demand – Worst Case 
Figure 14 shows the surplus/deficit on both an annual basis and cumulative to year 2050.  The 
cumulative deficiency reaches 13,600 AF just before Sites Reservoir is on line, but then due to 
the inadequacy of imported water supply, the cumulative deficiency increases each year, 
eventually reaching about 42,000 AF by year 2050. 

 
Figure 14 

BCVWD Imported Water Supply Surplus/Deficit – Worst Case 
As discussed above for the Most Likely Scenario, BCVWD’s Beaumont Basin groundwater 
storage account would have 19,400 AF in storage just before Sites Reservoir comes on line.  
Banked groundwater in BCVWD’s storage account could meet the demand for a few years after 
Sites Reservoir comes on line but not for an extended period under this Worst Case Scenario. 
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Figure 14 shows that under the Worst Case Scenario, BCVWD will have enough water in 
storage to meet the demands up until Sites Reservoir comes on line.  Beyond then, additional 
imported water sources will need to be in place. 

Conclusions 

 Sites Reservoir and/or California Water Fix is critical to meeting long term 
water demands. 

 Over the next decade, the feasibility, yield, reliability, costs, and construction 
schedule for Sites Reservoir and the California Water Fix will be better known. 

 Because of the uncertainties of Sites Reservoir and the California Water Fix, 
SGPWA should secure projects like AVEK Nickel Water and other short and long 
term contracts as they become available and the demand in the service area 
continues to develop. This water can be banked to meet short-term demands during 
dry years and will provide water to make up for short term deficiencies while 
agreements are being developed and additional water sources, e.g. Sites Reservoir, 
are brought on line. 

 Groundwater banking and subsequent extraction is critical to meeting deficiencies 
between imported water supply and demand until agreements can be executed and 
water supply projects come on line.  As much imported water as is available should 
be banked. 

 If Sites Reservoir and/or the California Water Fix are not implemented or delayed, 
SGPWA must move aggressively to replace these essential sources. 

 Recycled water and maximization of local water resources is crucial to meeting long 
term water demands, minimizing BCVWD’s and other SGPWA member agencies’ 
dependence on imported water. 

 Water conservation should be encouraged to minimize the need for imported water. 
 Imported water demand and supply should be revisited periodically. 
 A complete strategy for funding of the water portfolio should be prepared to set forth 

a comprehensive fund strategy for new water including the following minimum 
components: 

o Capacity fees 
o Rates 
o Tax based contributions 
o Others 
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DATE:  December 20, 2017 

 

TO:  Dan Jaggers, General Manager 

FROM: Joe Reichenberger PE, Senior Engiineer  

SUBJECT: Water Supply Portfolio Unit Costs– White Paper No. 3 

 
This white paper summarizes a presentation to BCVWD’s Board of Directors on November 8, 
2017 continuing the discussion of San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA) and Beaumont 
Cherry Valley Water District’s (BCVWD’s) imported water needs to year 2050 – essentially 
build-out.  This white paper focusses on imported water portfolio, the costs for the various water 
sources and some funding strategies. 

Background: 

White Paper No. 1 identified BCVWD and SGPWA imported water requirements over the next 
30 years or so based on the respective agencies’ 2015 Urban Water Management Plans 
(UWMPs).  White Paper No. 1 also listed a number of sources of imported water (“water 
portfolio”) and the timing of the leasing, purchasing, or construction of these sources.  Since the 
water purchases and leases do not always exactly match the demands, White Paper No. 2 
evaluated the feasibility of using groundwater storage and banking as a strategy to overcome 
temporary deficiencies between the demand for imported water and the supply.   

SGPWA’s water supply (current and planned) comes from the following sources: 

 State Water Project (SWP) Current Table “A” Water 
 Increased Table “A” Water Reliability Through California Water Fix  
 Sites Reservoir Project 
 Yuba Accord Water 
 AVEK, Nickel Farms Water through the Antelope Valley East Kern Water Agency 

(AVEK-Nickel) 
 San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (SBVMWD) Water 
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 Current Table A Supply 

The SWP provides approximately 4.2 million AFY in total Table “A” water supply (100% 
capacity) to the 29 state water contractors; San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA) is one 
of the state water contractors.  The long-term water supply contracts to each of the 29 
contractors sets forth a maximum amount of water a contractor may request each year for the 
SWP, and these water amounts are written in the contracts in a list format known as “Table A.”   

 “Table A” or “Table A water” represents a portion or all of the annual Table A amount requested 
by the SWP water contractors and approved for delivery by the Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) based on hydrologic conditions, current reservoir storage, and the combined requests 
from the SWP contractors.  Under certain water year conditions, DWR is not able to deliver the 
quantity of water requested by the SWP contractors.  In those years, a proportional amount s 
allocated and delivered according to the contracts by prorating the amount in proportion to each 
SWP contractor’s annual Table A amount.  Table A amounts are also used to allocate other 
water supplies. 

Of the 4.2 million AFY, SGPWA’s Table “A,” amount is 17,300 Acre-Feet (approximately 0.41% 
of the total 4.2 million AF supply).  In 2017 the SGPWA will pay an estimated $23,060,018 
(includes taxes and water rates) to the SWP for entitlement to 17,300 AF of the Table “A” water 
(from DWR Bulletin 132-17).  The current SWP Table “A” water supply is assumed to be 60% to 
64% reliable. Therefore, the SGPWA receives only approximately 10,400 AFY of Table “A” 
water from the SWP on an average annual basis.   

The estimated $23 million above includes transportation and energy charges (DWR “pass 
through” costs).  SGPWA currently charges $317/AF with includes the DWR pass through costs 
plus other costs.  A summary of the costs included in the $317/AF, extracted from the SGPWA’s 
recent rate study, is presented in Table 1.1 

The DWR energy and transmission charges (“transportation costs) are estimated to be 
$260/AF. 

With this annual supply, the water is forecast to be delivered at an approximate cost of $2,220 
per AF based future projected payments (includes capital cost and $260/AF Transportation 
cost). 

The California Water Fix 

The SWP planning began in earnest in the mid-1950s and was authorized in the Burns-Porter 
Act, also known as the California Water Resources Development Bond Act, passed by vote of 
the people in November, 1960 (Proposition 1).  Construction on most of the basic facilities of the 
SWP was completed by 1975.  Due to cost considerations, and initial project water demands 
lower than design capacity, a number of planned facilities were scaled down or deferred.  Many 
have not been constructed to date.  One of those projects was the Cross-delta Facility known as 

                                                
1 SGPWA (2009). Final Draft – Water Rate Study, David Tausig Associates, Inc., February 2. 
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the Peripheral Canal.  The SWP is not able to live up to its original design capacity due to many 
factors beyond the scaled down, deferred, or not constructed facilities.   

Table 1 
Costs in SGPWA’s Water Rate 

Cost Item Cost, $/AF 

Agency Operational Expenses $10.00 

Agency Administrative Cost $3.50 

SBVMWD Pass Through $8.00 

Yuba Water Purchases $3.86 

New Water Purchase $22.00 

Rate Stabilization  $11.00 

Subtotal $57.36 

Rate Charged by SGPWA $317.00 

DWR Pass Through $259.64 ($260) 

The Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta levees are vulnerable to seismic shaking; the Delta 
ecosystem continues to decline; flooding and saline water intrusion into the Delta impacts the 
water quality delivered to municipal and agricultural users; climate change, whether short-term 
or extended long-term, will cause increased water levels in the Delta further stressing vulnerable 
levees.  The SWP dams and reservoirs were designed about 50 years ago with the hydrology of 
the times.  Climate change, whether short term (50 or 100 years) or long term 500 or more 
years, will impact the operation of the SWP.  Precipitation, which used to fall as snow and be 
stored in snowpack, will be in the form of rain which the reservoirs were not designed to 
accommodate.  More and water will be lost to the ocean in future years. 

The California Water Fix (CWF), intended to address some of these issues, proposes a dual 
gravity tunnel conveyance system from north of the Delta extending south to the Clifton Court 
Forebay.  At the southerly end of the tunnels a new Clifton Court Pumping Facility would lift 
water from the tunnels into Clifton Court Forebay.  The water would be pumped from Clifton 
Court Forebay by the State and Federal Central Valley Project pumps as they now do.  About 
9,000 cfs would be diverted from the Sacramento River into the tunnels and around the Delta 
improving water supply reliability and export water quality TDS.  The cost of the CWF is 
estimated to $ 16.7 billion (2017 costs) with an estimated $64.4 million in annual operation and 
maintenance costs.2  It is possible that the dual tunnels may be scaled back or phased.  The 
project from initiation of design through commissioning is projected to take eighteen years.  So if 
it started in 2020, it would not be complete until 2038.  During that time, the reliability of the 
SWP would gradually decline as described later in this section.  The principal elements of the 
CWF are shown in Figure 1. 

                                                
2 Wheeler Ridge-Maricopa Water Storage District, California Water Fix Business Case Analysis 
Spreadsheet. 
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All State Water Contractors were requested to provide non-binding resolutions of support for the 
CWF.  As of October 17, 2017, twelve Contractors, including SGPWA and many of large 
agencies, e.g., Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan), Kern County 
Water Agency, Santa Clara Valley Water District, voted to support the CWF.  Many of those 
agencies that did not take a formal vote are anticipated to participate commensurate with their 
existing State Water Contracts.  Although five of the 29 State Water Contractors ended their 
participation in the CWF; the remaining 24 contractors hold almost all of the original Table A 
(97.2%).  

The estimated $16.7 billion cost for the CWF (2017 dollars) is anticipated to be shared 55% with 
State Water Contractors and 45% with federal Central Valley Project Contractors.  Assuming 
the 55/45 split and the fact that SGPWA has 0.41% of the Total SPW Table A, SGPWA would 
be paying about $38 million for the CWF (based on 0.41%) or $39.4 million based on 0.43%.  
See discussion below.  Financing for the CWF is proposed over a 40-year period at a possible 
interest rate of 4%.  Annual capital cost payments by SGPWA would be about $2.0 million 
including bond issuance costs; annual O&M costs would be about $150,000 plus transportation 
costs, estimated to be about $260/AF currently. 

The reliability of the SWP Table “A” water is projected to degrade over time to 48% without the 
California Water Fix (CWF) due to a variety of reasons.  The CWF is projected to increase the 
future reliability of the SWP by 14% (DWR study) to 17.62% (Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California [Metropolitan] study) resulting in an increase the overall reliability to 62% or, 
in the best case, 65.62%. This is about what the current reliability is.  It should be noted that the 
reduction in reliability will occur gradually over time from the current 60 to 64% reliability to 48%. 

Without CWF, SGPWA’s reliable Table A would be 8,304 AFY (based on 48% of 17,300 AFY).  
The reliable Table A supply for SGPWA would increase to 10,726 AFY at 62% reliability or 
possibly as much as 11,352 AFY based on Metropolitan’s study (65.62% reliability).  Potentially 
then, the CWF would result in an increase from 2,422 AFY to 3,048 AFY reliable supply.  With 
the firm withdrawal of five of the contractors mentioned above, SGPWA’s percentage of the 
CWF “yield” chould slightly more than 0.41%, perhaps maybe as high as 0.43% of the yield 
based on SGPWA’s share of the total Table A of the participating 24 contractors. 

To put a price on Table “A” water going forward from now, the estimated future annual cost of 
$24.2 million estimated by DWR for SGPWA from Bulletin 132-17 will be used; it should be 
noted this cost includes transportation charges of about $260/AF.  The SGPWA’s pre-CWF cost 
for 8,304 AFY is calculated as shown in Table 2 

The cost of SGPWA water with CWF based on the original SWP contract at 48% reliability with 
the CWF at 14 % to 17.62% additional reliability is summarized in Table 3. 

The additional annual amount of water due to increased reliability brought about by the CWF 
ranges between 2,422 and 3,048 AFY; the annual cost for this incremental amount of water is 
$2.2 million ($2.0 million + $0.15 million) as shown in Table 3; resulting in a unit cost of about 
$887/AFY to $705/AFY respectively for the increment, not including DWR pass-through 
transportation costs.   
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Figure 1 

California Water Fix Facilities 
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Table 2 
Estimated Cost for SGPWA Table A Water without CWF Going Forward 

(based on 8,304 AFY) 

Item Cost 

Total Annual Payment pre-CWF $24.2 million 

DWR Transportation Charges @ 8,304 AF 
$260/AF 

$2.16 million 

Annual Payment less DWR Transportation 
Charges 

$22.04 million 

Pre-CWR Cost per AF without DWR 
Transportation 

$2,654/AF 

DWR Transportation Charges @ $260/AF $260/AF 

Total SGPWA Pre-CWF Cost per AF incl. DWR 
Transportation Cost 

$2,914/AF 

Table 3 
Estimated Cost of SGPWA Table A Water with CWF Going Forward 

Item 
SWP @ 62% Reliability  

(10,726 AFY) 
SWP @ 65.62% 

Reliability 
(11,352 AFY 

Total Annual Payment pre-CWF $24.2 million $24.2 million 

DWR Transportation Charges @ $260/AF $2.8 million $3.0 million 

Annual Payment less DWR Transportation 
Charges 

$21.4 million $21.2 million 

Annual Capital Cost of CWF plus bond issuance 
costs 

$2.0 million $12.0 million 

Annual O&M Costs for CWF $0.15 million $0.15 million 

Total Annual Payment with CWF $23.6 million $23.4 million 

Cost per AF with CWF but without DWR 
Transportation Costs 

$2,200 $2,060 

DWR Transportation Charges @ $260/AF $260 $260 

Total with CWF, Cost per AF incl. DWR 
Transportation Cost 

$2,460 $2,320 

These costs are based on the current assumptions that the contractors currently involved in the 
SWP and CVP remain unchanged.  There may be an opportunity for the SGPWA to secure 
more Table “A” supply through purchase or long term leases from the CWF in the event that 
more contractors from the SWP or CVP withdraw their support and associated financing of the 
project.  Costs presented previously are melded SWP and CWF costs. However, any additional 
supply available may result in a decreased overall melded cost (SWP component reduction). 
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Sites Reservoir Supply 

Sites Reservoir is a proposed reservoir that would be located at the site of a cattle ranch in the 
eastern foothills of the Central Valley about 78 miles northwest of Sacramento.  See Figure 2.  
Sites Reservoir is not on any major stream; all water must be pumped into the reservoir. Sites 
Reservoir was part of the original California Water Project, but was deferred.  Because of 
dwindling water supplies, new interest has arisen in the reservoir. The reservoir would have a 
surface area of about 14,000 acres and store between 1.27 and 1.81 million acre-feet 
depending on final project. The estimated water yield would be between 470,000 to 640,000 
acre-feet per year, depending on yearly rainfall and environmental regulations, according to 
DWR. 

Flood flows in the Sacramento River, over and above that needed to meet the demands of 
existing water rights holders, would be captured and pumped into Sites Reservoir.  During the 
drought year of 2014-15 Sites would have captured 410,000 AF; if Sites were operational in the 
2015-16 season it would have captured over 1 million AF, which was lost to the ocean.  On an 
average year Sites will add 500,000 AF to Delta flows; during critical dry years, Sites would add 
about 250,000 to 300,000 AF of water. 

Water would be delivered to a forebay 
reservoir (Holthouse Reservoir expanded 
from the existing Funks Reservoir) through 
the existing Tehama-Colusa and Glenn-
Colusa irrigation canals, and from a new 
pumping station on the Sacramento River. 
The water would then be boosted into Sites 
Reservoir.  The water would then be 
released into the Sacramento River, 
augmenting natural flows and releases 
from other reservoirs.  Electric power would 
be generated upon release of the water into 
the Sacramento River.  Refer to Figure 3. 

Sites Reservoir is projected to cost $4.7 
billion, (October, 2015 Costs), with annual 
operating and monitoring costs of $26 
million, according to DWR.3 

The Sites Reservoir Project is projected to 
supply 14,000 AFY of Class 1 water (9,748 
AFY) and Class 2 water (4,252 AFY) to the 
SGPWA with a reliability of 75% to 100%4.  
It is possible the amount of Sites Reservoir 

                                                
3 Sites (2017). Basis of Estimate for Sites Authority Project Alternative D, Working Draft, Subject to 
Change, prepared by AECOM, June, page E-5 
4 See White Paper No. 1, Table 3. 

 

Figure 2 
Sites Reservoir General Location 
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Class 1 water may increase from the 9,748 AFY to perhaps as much as 11,874 AFY depending 
on the resources agencies’ participation in the project.  It is possible that maybe even 14,000 
AFY will be available, but that is very optimistic. 

If the Sites Project is ultimately considered to be part of the SWP the reliability will most likely be 
100%. If the project is ultimately not considered to be a part of the SWP there may be a loss of 
up to 25% as this portion of the supply may be lost through the Delta.  Therefore, the Sites 
Reservoir Project could supply between 7,311 AFY, (75% of 9,748 AFY), and 11,874 AFY or 
maybe even more.  Table 4 shows a possible allocation of Sites Reservoir project costs to 
SGPWA.  It should be pointed out this is very preliminary and is based on SGPWA’s Class 1 
Water Amount to the Total Class 1 Water Amount (250,000 AFY). 

 
Figure 3 

Sites Reservoir Project Operating Schematic 
Table 4 

Possible SGPWA Allocation of Sites Reservoir Project Costs 
(All costs in thousands) 

Item Cost or % Remark 

Sites Reservoir Construction Cost $4,700,000 2015 cost 

Interest During Construction $789,000 AECOM 2017 study 

Total Costs, Oct 2015 $5,489,000  
Escalation to 2017 6.6% per ENRCCI 

2017 Capital Costs $5,851,274  
Percent Water Supply Joint Powers Agency 
Funded 75% 

AECOM 2017 Study estimated 
from 54% to 59% 

Annual OM&R and Monitoring Cost $26,000 2015 Costs 

Escalation to 2017 6.6% per ENRCCI 

2017 OM&R and Monitoring Costs $27,700  
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Table 4 Continued 

Sites Reservoir Project Cost Allocation  
(All costs in thousands) 

Item Cost or % Remark 

2017 Capital Costs $5,851,274 above 

Sites Project Authority Share 60% From AECOM Analysis 

Cost Funded  by Sites Project Authority $3,510,800  
Interest Rate 4%  
Number of Years 40  
Capital Recovery Factor, 4%, 40 year 0.05052  
Annual Capital Cost,  $295,600  
SGPWA Requested Participation, AF 14,000  
SGPWA Allocated Class 1 Yield, AFY 9,748  
Total Sites Allocated Class 1 Yield, AFY 250,000  

SGPWA Share of Yield and Cost 0.039 
Based on fraction of Class 1/Total 
Class 1 

SGPWA Share of Annual Cost $6,916  
SGPWA Share of OM&R and Monitoring 
Costs, not including DWR transportation pass 
through charges $648  

SGPWA Total Annual Cost $7,565  

Table 5 shows the unit cost, $/AF, for SGPWA for the range of possible yields from the Sites 
Reservoir Project under various scenarios, with and without the 25% loss and, with and without, 
the transportation charges.  As can be seen in Table 5, under the likely scenario, Sites 
Reservoir Project Water will cost between $1,035 /AF and $776AF for the likely amount with 
and without loss.  The unit cost could be lower if more water is made available. 

Table 5 
SGPWA Estimated Cost of Sites Reservoir Water  

Cost per Acre-ft, No Transportation Cost 

Scenario 

No Loss 25% Loss 

Yield 
AFY 

$/AF Yield 
AFY 

$/AF 

Likely Amount, AFY 9,748 $776 7,311 $1,035 

Probably Maximum, AFY 11,874 $637 8,906 $849 

Maximum, AFY 14,000 $540 10,500 $720 

Yuba Accord Water 

Through Yuba Dry Year Transfer Program, the official name for Yuba Accord Water, SGPWA 
can purchase additional supplemental water from Yuba County Water District under an 
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agreement.5  There are four categories of water in the agreement: Component 1, Component 2, 
Component 3 and Component 4, with each category having its own specific price per AF, 
varying from $25/AF to $125/AF depending on dry, normal, wet, or critical year water conditions 
and not including DWR pass through transportation costs.  Going forward it is difficult to predict 
future hydrologic conditions, the amount to be purchased by SGPWA, or the price.  It varies 
from year to year.  The SGPWA estimates that about 300 AFY, on the average, of Yuba Accord 
Water can be obtained.6  For purposes of this white paper a conservative cost of $125/AF will 
be used (not including DWR pass through transportation costs) or $385/AF with pass through 
transportation costs. 

San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (SBVMWD Water) 

The SGPWA is in the process of finalizing negotiations or has completed negotiations with 
SBVWD to purchase up to 5,000 AFY of SBVMWD’s Table A water in years that SBVMWD’s 
Board of Directors declares a surplus.  The availability of SBVMWD surplus water depends on 
hydrologic and groundwater conditions within SBVMWD’s service area per SBVMWD 
Ordinance 79.  SGPWA has the right of first refusal on the first 5,000 AFY of surplus water.  
Assuming SGPWA exercises the right, it must first offered in equal shares to the two agencies 
that are in both SBVMWD and SGPWA, i.e., Yucaipa Valley WD and South Mesa Water 
Company.  Any water “left over,” SGPWA can be offered to other SGPWA retailers. The 
agreement is for a term of 15 years, but SGPWA intends to renegotiate the terms and extend to 
some point in the future. 

SGPWA estimates, based on past hydrologic conditions this is likely to occur about two years 
out of every five, or 40% of the time.  This is equivalent to 2,000 AFY in any one year.  The term 
of this agreement will be at least 15 years from now or about 2032.7 

SBVMWD has set rates for selling water to “outside” agencies based on the DWR’s final Table 
A allocation as shown in Table 68. 

The point of delivery to SGPWA is the Devil Canyon Afterbay. The cost of the water in Table 6 
does not include DWR’s pass through cost for energy or the cost SGPWA would pay to pump it 
from Devil Canyon to Cherry Valley.  This cost was presented previously in Table 1.  It is 
assumed the cost in Table 1 includes DWR’s pass through costs for transportation to SBVMWD 
(Devil Canyon) plus the cost to pump from Devil Canyon to SGPWA, i.e., $260/AF.  

 
 
 

                                                
5 DWR (2008). Agreement for the Supply and Conveyance of Water by the Department of Water 
Resources for the state of California to the Participating State Water Contractors under the Dry Year 
Water Purchase Program, March 31. 
6 Refer to Table 3-1 of SGPWA 2015 UWMP 
7 SGPWA 2015 UWMP 
8 SGPWA Proposed Surplus Water Sale Agreement with San Bernardino Municipal Water District (“Valley 
District”). 
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Table 6 
Cost to Purchase Surplus Water from SBVMWD 

Final SWP DWR 
Table A Allocation 

Cost, $/AF 

0 - 20% $400 

21 - 40% $300 

41 – 60% $200 

61 - 100% $100 

To develop and average cost for future water purchases, the last ten years of Table A 
allocations was used in conjunction with the rate associated with that allocation percentage 
presented in Table 6.  The average cost for the ten-year period was determined to be $240/AF.   
not including DWR’s pass through transportation charges ($260/AF).  Total cost, including the 
pass through cost would be $500/AF. 

AVEK-Nickel Water 

In June 2017 SGPWA Board of Directors approved an agreement with the Antelope Valley-East 
Kern Water Agency (AVEK) for 1,700 AFY for 20 years with the right of first refusal to extend it 
for a second 20 years.  The water rights on the Kern River originally belonged to the Nickel 
Family LLC that were sold to Kern County Water Agency (KCWA) and subsequently leased to 
other parties in various amounts.  One portion (1,700 AFY) is under the control of AVEK, which 
offered the water to SGPWA.  This water is not subject to the reliability issues of the SPW.  Per 
the agreement SGPWA must take all of the 1,700 AF each year or pay for 1,700 AF if the 
SGPWA does not take all of it in any one year. 

The cost of AVEK-Nickel water has three component charges plus the cost to pump to 
SGPWA9: 

 Purchase of the water, currently $716.29/AF 
 Replenishment charge, currently $300/AF 
 Administrative charge, currently $5/AF 

The total current 2017 cost is $1,021.29/AF at the Tupman Turnout west of Bakersfield, but 
does not include the cost to pump it from there to SGPWA.  The SGPWA estimates the 
pumping cost at $247/AF, bringing the total cost to $1,268.29/AF, round to $1,270/AF.  It is 
important to note that water purchase charge and the replenishment charges are subject to a 
3% per year escalation or the Consumer Price Index (CPI) change for the Los Angeles, Orange 
and Riverside Counties, whichever is greater.  For discussion purposes the SGPWA uses 3% 
per year.  Over the initial 20-year period, the water will average $1,370/AF, not including the 

                                                
9 SGPWA (2017). Memorandum, Consideration and Possible Action to Enter into a Water Supply 
Agreement with Antelope Valley East Kern Water Agency, June 19. 

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 282 of 530



  Costs and Funding Strategies 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District  White Paper No. 3 
 12 January 2018 

pumping costs.  Using an initial (2017) pumping cost of $247, the current cost, delivered to 
SGPWA would be $1,617/AF.  It is likely the pumping costs will increase over time also. 

SGPWA Water Portfolio Per AF Cost Summary 

A summary of the range of cost for various SGPWA water sources are presented in Table 7.  
The transportation costs have not been increased over time.  It is likely those costs will increase 
slightly over time. 

Table 8 contains a summary of Unit Costs ($/AF) for various water sources for SGPWA under 
differing scenarios of reliability and water loss etc.  Also included are the total amount of water 
beyond the SGPWA’s current Table A with and without the CWF.  Without the CWF the amount 
of additional water varies from 19,651 AFY to 26,340 AFY; with the CWF the amount of 
additional water ranges from 22,037 AFY to 29,352 AFY or about 2,500 to 3,000 AFY more.  
The difference with and without the CWF is due to the decrease in reliability over time from the 
current 62% to 48%.  The weighted average cost for the water supply will range from $1525/AF 
to $2,067/AF. 

 Table 7 
Summary of Unit Cost for SGPWA Portfolio Water Sources 

  Capital Cost Range 
Transportation 

Cost  Total Cost/AF 

Water Supply Portfolio 
Lowest 
Cost/AF 

Highest 
Cost/AF 

Lowest 
Cost/AF 

Lowest 
Cost/AF 

Highest 
Cost/AF 

Existing SGPWA Table 
"A" $1,960 $1,960 $260 $2,220 $2,220 

Future Table "A" w/o 
California Water Fix $2,654 $2,654$ $260 $2,914 $2,914 

Future Table "A" with 
California Water Fix (a) $2,060 $2,200 $260 $2,320 $2,460 

Sites Reservoir Project 
(b) $600 $1,148 $260 $860 $1,408 

Yuba Accord Water $125 $125 $260 $385 $385 

AVEK, Nickel Water (c) $1,370 $1,370 $247 $1,617 $1,617 

SBVMWD $240 $240 $260 $500 $500 

(a) Cost depends on reliability increase, see text discussion presented previously 
(b) Depends on final yield and if 25% loss through Delta occurs 
(c) Average cost over 20 years based on 3% per year escalation 

Funding Alternatives 

White Paper No. 4 will discuss possible funding strategies and funding alternatives to consider.  
Possibilities include: 

 A single-component capacity fee for long-term water supplies. 
 A two-component capacity fee that would pay for interim supplies as well as a 

permanent supply (if it can be found). 
 The water rate charged to retail water customers. 
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 Withdrawals from reserves. 
 General fund tax revenues. 
 State Water Project tax (if new supplies are designated to be from the State Water 

Project) 
 Creation of a standby charge for the entire service area or various Improvement Districts 

within the service area. 
 Creation of new Improvement Districts, along with a water rate of standby charge, that 

would place the burden of funding new supplies on newly developed areas.  
 

Table 8 
Summary of Unit Cost and Additional Water Supply for SGPWA 

Water Supply Source 

Amount 
Without 

Reliability 
Factor 
(AFY) 

Reliability Factor Opportunity for 
Purchase with 

Reliability Factor 

Probable Cost Range 

Min Max Min AFY Max AFY Lowest 
Cost/AF 

Highest 
Cost/AF 

Existing SGPWA Table "A" 17,300 60% 60% 10,380 10,380 $2,220 $2,220 

Future Table "A" w/o 
California Water Fix 

17,300 48% 48% 8,304 8,304 $2,914 $2,914 

Future Table "A" with 
California Water Fix 

17,300 62% 65.62% 10,726 11,352 $2,320. $2,460 

Sites Reservoir Project 14,000 75% 100% 7,311 14,000 $860 $1,408 

Yuba Accord Water 300 100% 100% 300 300 $385 $385 

AVEK, Nickel Water  1,700 100% 100% 1,700 1,700 $1,617 $1,617 

SBVMWD 2,000 100% 100% 2,000 2,000 $500. $500 

Water Supply w/o CWF, 
AFY 

 
   19,615 26,304 

  

 Blended Cost w/o CWF 
     

$1,525 $1,955 

Water Supply with CWF, 
AFY 

 
 22,037 29,352   

Blended Cost with CWF     $1,606 $2,067 

Conclusions 

The SGPWA’s water supply portfolio has many cost variables which will require a very robust 
approach to ensure that the anticipated cost associated with each water supply component is 
properly funded.  BCVWD, along with the other water retail agencies and stakeholders in the 
region, must come to a high level understanding of the portfolio component costs and the 
funding tools being employed or potentially employed by the SGPWA to ensure the delivery of 
necessary water supplies to the region at the lowest melded cost.  Through this understanding 
BCVWD will strive to ensure that the most efficient methods of funding are being employed 
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moving forward.  BCVWD recommends that the SGPWA develop a funding strategy and identify 
specific fund vehicles for each component of the water portfolio. 
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DATE:  December 20, 2017 

 

TO:  Dan Jaggers, General Manager 

FROM: Joe Reichenberger PE, Senior Engineer  

SUBJECT: Water Supply Portfolio Funding Requirements – White Paper No. 4 

 
This white paper summarizes a presentation to BCVWD’s Board of Directors on December 7, 
2017 at an Engineering Workshop.  This continues the discussion of San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency (SGPWA) and Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District’s (BCVWD’s) imported water 
needs to year 2050 – essentially build-out.  This white paper focusses on imported water 
portfolio funding requirements.  The next white paper will discuss funding alternatives and 
strategies. 

Background: 

White Paper No. 1 identified BCVWD and SGPWA imported water requirements over the next 
30 years or so based on the respective agencies’ 2015 Urban Water Management Plans 
(UWMPs).  White Paper No. 1 also listed a number of sources of imported water (“water 
portfolio”) and the timing of the leasing, purchasing, or construction of these sources.  Since the 
water purchases and leases do not always exactly match the demands, White Paper No. 2 
evaluated the feasibility of using groundwater storage and banking as a strategy to overcome 
temporary deficiencies between the demand for imported water and the supply.  White Paper 
No. 3 identified the preliminary unit costs, ($/AF), for the various sources of water in the 
SGPWA portfolio, current and planned, including California Water Fix (CWF), Sites Reservoir 
(Sites), Yuba Accord Water, San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (SBVMWD Water), 
and AVEK-Nickel Water. 

White Paper No. 3 showed that the future costs for water supply will range from as low as 
$385/AF to almost $3,000/AF depending on the source.  On a blended (weighted) average, the 
cost ranges from $1,525/AF to $2,067/AF depending on assumptions related to the CWF. 
Possible funding alternative were identified in White Paper No. 3 but not discussed or analyzed. 

White Paper No. 4 sets forth BCVWD staff’s analysis of current and future funding requirements 
for the water portfolio identified in the previous white papers.  A follow-on white paper discusses 
possible funding alternatives and strategies which might be used to secure the regional water 
supplies over the next several decades. 
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SGPWA’s water supply, current and planned, comes from the following primary and 
supplementary sources: 

Primary: 

 State Water Project (SWP) Current Table “A” Water 
 Increased Table “A” Water Reliability Through California Water Fix (CWF) 
 Sites Reservoir Project (Sites) 

Supplementary: 

 Yuba Accord Water 
 AVEK, Nickel Farms Water through the Antelope Valley East Kern Water Agency 

(AVEK-Nickel) 
 San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (SBVMWD) Water 
 Temporary Table A Supplies obtained through short term agreements 
 Possible Transfer of Other State Water Project Rights/Supplies 
 Article 21 Water and Turnback Pool Water when available 

Primary Water Supply Costs 

This White Paper assumes that the Department of Water Resources (DWR) will implement the 
CWF and Sites Reservoir and administer the financing similar to the method of financing and 
charging for the current SWP.  If the SGPWA participates in CWF and Sites, there will be two 
types of annual costs associated with each source: 

 Capital (construction and project costs) funded through Bond Debt Service 
 Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Costs 

BBond Debt Service 

The original SWP has been funded through bonded indebtedness and very likely the follow-on 
CWF and Sites Reservoir projects would be similarly funded through bonds, though this is still 
uncertain.  The capital or project costs associated with each project would be distributed 
proportionately to each of the State Water Contractors involved via some form of bonds either 
General Obligation and/or Revenue Bonds.  This would be a State decision.  General obligation 
bonds are voted on by the people of the State of California; the initial general obligation bond 
($1.75 billion) for the SWP was approved through Proposition 1 in 1960.  These bonds have 
various life terms (typically around 40 years) and are typically issued every year a project is in 
its construction phase. The bonds ultimately result in annual charges or debt payments that last 
for the life term of the Bond.  Revenue bonds are funded from water sales and other similar 
revenues and do not require voter approval. 

Project revenues from SWP contractor payments required under their long-term contracts are 
deposited into two accounts for accounting purposes: 

 Central Valley Water Revenue Funds where all revenues pledged to revenue bonds are 
placed 
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 California Water Resources Development Bond Fund – Systems Revenue Account 
where all other SWP operating revenues area placed.  Use of these funds is limited to 
paying operating costs and debt service. 

OOperations and Maintenance (O&M) Costs 

Operations and maintenance costs are accumulated and paid on an annual basis. The costs 
cover operation, maintenance, and power costs plus a deposit to a replacement account 
(OMP&R).  Power costs are the largest component of the OMP&R Costs.  The replacement 
account has been used to fund replacement of SWP facilities over the years.  In this series of 
White Papers O&M costs are synonymous with OMP&R costs and the terms are used 
interchangeably. 

SGPWA Current Revenue (Payment) Requirements 

SGPWA’s Table A SWP amount assuming 100% reliability is 17,300 AFY or approximately 
0.41% of the total SWP Table A (all contractors) of 4.1 million AFY.  The costs to be paid by 
SGPWA to the DWR are the total of the following components: 

 Delta Water Charge: 
o Capital Cost Component 
o Minimum OMP&R Component 

The Capital Cost Component of the Delta Water Charge is the cost applied to each acre-
foot of SPW the contractor receives from the SWP to repay all of the outstanding 
reimbursable costs of the Project Conservation Facilities including appropriate interest to 
the end of the repayment period (2035).  The Project Conservation Facilities include 
Oroville Dam, Lake Oroville, and the dams and lakes on streams above Lake Oroville; 
Oroville Power Facilities, a portion of the California Aqueduct from the Delta to the Dos 
Amigos Pumping Plant, San Luis Dam and Reservoir and Gianelli Pumping-Generating 
Plant. 

The Minimum OMP&R Component are those costs of operation, maintenance, power 
and replacement that are independent of the amount of water delivered, i.e., fixed 
operation and maintenance costs. 

 Transportation Charge: 
o Capital Cost Component 
o Minimum OMP&R Component 
o Variable OMP&R Component 

The Capital Cost Component of the Transportation Charge is for the facilities to transport 
water to the vicinity of each contractor’s turnout and the annual charge represents each 
contractor’s proportionate share of the reimbursable capital costs of the Project 
Transportation Facilities.  The Project Transportation Facilities include, among others, 
the North Bay and South Bay Aqueducts, the remainder of the California Aqueduct from 
the Delta to Dos Amigos Pumping Plant, all facilities south including the dams and lakes 
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in Southern California, and the Off-aqueduct Power Facilities costs (Reid Garner Unit 4, 
Bottlerock Powerplant, and South Geysers Powerplant)1. 

The Minimum OMP&R Component are those costs of operation, maintenance, power 
and replacement that are independent of the amount of water delivered, i.e., fixed 
operation and maintenance costs. 

The Variable OMP&R Component includes those costs that depend on the amount of 
water delivered – typically power costs. 

 Water System Revenue Bond (WSRB) Surcharge 

This is the revenue bond surcharge to the Delta Water Charge and the transportation 
capital cost component to each contractor to cover financing costs of the WSRB in 
accordance with an amendment to all of the water supply contracts signed by all of the 
contractors. 

The Bulletin 132 series “Management of the California State Water Project,” issued annually, 
provides a detailed summary of water deliveries for the given year as well as an accounting of 
all of the charges to each contractor up to the given year.  DWR provides a projection of 
charges from the given year to year 2035, the end of the current bond payments.  SGPWA will 
pay an estimated $23,594,607 in 2018 which includes the Delta Water Charge, Transportation 
Charge and WSRB Surcharge.  Table 1 presents a summary of SGPWA’s projected 2018 SWP 
charges.  It is important to note these are projections and subject to change from year to year. 

SGPWA Historical SWP Payments to DWR 

Figure 1 shows a timelines of the SWP Construction from 1957 to 2010.  The timeline is a bit 
out of date and shows East Branch Extension Phase II as “future.”  It is essentially complete as 
of 2017. 

Figure 2 shows SGPWA historical payments for capital financing and total OMP&R for the SWP 
from inception through 2015.  SGPWA’s contract with DWR is dated November 16, 1962 with a 
term of 75 years extending to 2037.  The SGPWA began making payments in 1964 with 
payments minimal until the start of EBX Phase I in 1998; other increases occurred with the 
construction of EBX I improvements and EBX Phase 2.  These payments include DWR’s Pass-
through transportation charges. 

After 2015, the amounts are projected and contained in DWR’s Bulletin 132.  The projected 
payments for OMP&R are based on 10,380 AFY.  The projected payments level off at about $17 
million for capital and $7 million for OMP&R from 2018 to 2035, at total of just over $24 
million/year.  Again these could change depending on the amount of water actually delivered to 
SGPWA.   

                                                
1 DWR invested in several power plant projects which have on-going liabilities.  Reid Gardner in Moapa, 
NV (coal fired) which has shut down; Bottle Rock (geothermal) in Napa, CA, operated for a few years 
then ran out of steam; and South Geysers in Napa, CA which was constructed, but never operated due to 
lack of steam. 
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DWR does not currently anticipate financing SWP capital costs beyond 2035 or when the 
contracts expire.  This has caused DWR to issue bonds with shorter life terms in order for them 
to be fully paid off by 2035 which has resulted in a dramatic increase in the size of bond debt 
payments as bond issue dates get closer to 2035.  For purposes of this analysis, it is assumed 
that SGPWA’s capital financing will be complete by 2035, the last projection in the Bulletin 132 
series, “Management of the State Water Project.”   

Table 1 
SGPWA’s Projected 2018 SWP Charges 

Cost Item Amount Bulletin 132-17 Source 

Transportation Facilities Capital  $16,270,264 Table B-15 

Transportation Facilities Minimum 
OMP&R 

$ 3,302,187 Table B-16A 

Transportation Facilities Minimum 
OMP&R for Off-aqueduct Power  

$      10,165 Table B-16B 

Transportation Facilities Variable 
OMP&R 

$  2,377,151 Table B-18 

Subtotal Transportation Facilities Total 
OMP&R 

$  5,689,503  

Subtotal Transportation Charge  $21,959,767  

Delta Water Charge $  1,201,839 Table B-21 

WSRB Surcharge $     433,001 Table B-22 

Total Transportation, Delta Water 
Charge and WSRB Surcharge 

$23,594,607 Table B-23 

Projected Delivery based on 60% 
Reliability, AFY 

10,380(a) Table B-5B 

Total Cost $/AF $2,270  

Estimated DWR Pass Through 
Transportation Charges 

$260  

Estimated Capital Cost Component $/AF $2,010  

(a) This will decrease to about 48% of Table A or 8,304 AFY over time without CWF 

A number of contractors, including SGPWA, have requested an extension of the long-term 
contracts beyond 2035.  In May 2013, DWR and the SWP Contractors initiated negotiations to 
develop contract amendments to extend the term and change certain financial provisions on the 
long-term water supply contracts.  In June 2014, the parties reached a general agreement on 
principles for an amendment.  Under the Agreement in Principal, contracts would extend to 
December 31, 2085.  Payment provisions for capital cost and other costs would be amended 
from an amortization basis to an annual “pay as you go” basis, with sufficient revenue to allow 
DWR to operate the SWP in a fiscally sound manner including the collection of annual debt 
service to cover all of the bonds.  The Agreement in Principle provides for an increase in DWR 
operating reserves, establishment of accounts to fund certain water resources development 
system expenses chargeable to the SWP Contractors, and the establishment of a finance 
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committee consisting of DWR and contractor representatives to serve as a forum for 
discussions on DWR financial policies. 

 
Figure 1 

Timeline of SWP Construction 
 

 
Figure 2  

SGPWA Historical and Projected Capital and OMP&R Costs for SWP to 2035 
But before any long-term contract amendment is adopted, DWR must complete a CEQA review 
and deliver a presentation to the California Legislature in an informal hearing.  In 2015, DWR 
has started preparing a draft Environmental Impact Report for the contract amendment.  For 
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purposes of this white paper, a conservative approach will be taken and no contract extension 
refinancing is assumed.  

Figure 3 shows SGPWA projected payments for the SWP after 2035.  Under current conditions, 
capital cost bond debt payments will theoretically end in 2035.  After 2035 the capital cost, i.e., 
debt service for the SWP including EBX Phases I and II, will be completely paid off, and the only 
cost which SGPWA will pay is for the fixed and variable OMP&R which are estimated to be 
$8.14 million per year, the same as projected by DWR in Bulletin 132 for year 2035.  It is based 
on 10,380 AFY annual delivery and it is assumed this cost would continue on indefinitely.  Again 
this can vary from year to year depending on the amount of water delivered to SGPWA as well 
any changes in power and other costs over time.   

 
Figure 3 

SGPWA Historical and Projected Capital and OMP&R Costs for SWP to 2099 

The California Water Fix (CWF) 

The California Water Fix (CWF) is described in detail in White Paper No. 3 and involves 
construction of dual water tunnels under the Delta to convey Sacramento River water to the 
south side of the Delta to Clifton Court Forebay and the Banks Pumping Plant.  Without the 
CWF the reliability of the SWP Table “A” water is projected to degrade to 48% over time 
resulting is only 8,304 AFY on the average for SGPWA.  The CWF is projected to increase the 
future reliability of the SWP by 14% (DWR study) to 17.62% (MWD study) which would increase 
the overall reliability to 62% or in the best case 65.62% -- about what the reliability currently is.2

                                                
2 Due to some opposition in the scope and cost of the dual tunnel project, there has been some 
discussion to reduce the scope and cost by constructing only one tunnel.  The impact on the reliability 
increase due to CWF “reduced” is not known but will be assumed to be no change from 14% to 17.62%. 
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White Paper No. 3 summarized the cost of the SGPWA Table A water going forward with and 
without the CWF.  These costs are summarized below. 

Table 2 
Summary of Unit Costs with and without CWF 

Item Without CWF at 
48% Reliability 

With CWF at 62% 
Reliability 

With CWF at 
65.62% Reliability 

Water Available to SGPWA, AFY 8,304 10,726 11,352 

Pre-CWF, Cost, $/AF without DWR Pass 
Through Transportation Charge 

$2,654 -- -- 

With CWF, Cost, $/AF without DWR 
Pass Through Transportation Charge 

-- $2,200 $2,060 

DWR Pass Through Transportation 
Charge, $/AF 

$260 $260 $260 

Total Cost, $/AF $2,914 $2,460 $2,320 

The reliability percentage recovered, in terms of incremental AFY, resulting from the CWF would 
come at a component cost of $705/AF to $887/AF based on incremental increases of 3,048 
AFY and 2,422 AFY respectively.  These costs, as well as the costs in Table 2, are based on 
the assumption that the contractors currently involved in the SWP and Central Valley Project 
(CVP) will remain unchanged.  There may be an opportunity for the SGPWA to secure more 
Table “A” supply through a potential transfer of State Water Project rights/supplies among State 
Water Project Contractors in the event that more contractors from the SWP or CVP withdraw or 
reduce their support and associated financing of the project. 

The capital cost of the CWF was identified in White Paper No. 3 to be $16.7 billion (2017 
dollars)  and annual operating costs estimated at $64.4 million, with the participating SWP 
contractors responsible for 55% of the cost and the CVP contractors the remaining 45%.  .  The 
SGPWA share of the total SWP Table A is 0.41%.  But not all of the SWP contractors are 
participating and it is likely that SGPWA’s share would increase to 0.43%.  For purposes of this 
preliminary analysis, 0.43% will be the assumed SGPWA share of CWF costs. 

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan) did an extensive financial 
review of the CWF to determine the impact of the costs on their rate payers.  This analysis 
provided the basis for the analysis of the impact of CWF on the SGPWA.  Table 3 presents a 
summary of the costs.  SGPWA’s share of the capital and O&M costs is $2.15 million. 
  

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 293 of 530



  Funding Alternatives and Strategies 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District  White Paper No. 4 
 9 December 2017 

Table 3 
Summary of CWF Costs and Bonds 

Cost Item Total Project SWP Contractor 
Share 

SGPWA Share 

Project Cost Share 100% 55% 0.43% of SWP 
Contractor Share 

Capital Cost (2017) $16.7 billion $9.15 billion $39.4 million 

O & M Cost (2017) $64.4 million $35.4 million $150,000 

Interest Rate 4% 

Bond Term 40 years 

Bond Issuance Cost, (added to 
capital cost) 

$500,000/issue 

Annual Bond Payment  $463 million $2 million 

Total Payment Including O&M  $498.4 million $2.15 million 

Start of Project 2019 

Project Fully Operational 2033 

Escalation of Costs None – all 2017 dollars 

Bonds Issued Start in 2019 and step gradually to 2033 to cover design and 
construction 

Last Bond Payment  2073 

Figure 4 shows SGPWA’s funding requirements for the CWF.  These costs would be in addition 
to the funding requirements shown in Figure 3 above.  In as much as the CWF brings the 
reliability back to about current levels, it is assumed that DWR’s projected “pass through” 
transportation costs to convey the water to SGPWA are included in the annual payment, 
(approximately $8 million), shown in Figure 3 beyond year 2035.  Figure 4 shows that the costs 
for CWF would be paid until year 2073 or so. 

Sites Reservoir Project 

The Sites Reservoir Project is described in detail in White Paper No. 3.  The project consists of 
a 1.27 to 1.81 million AF reservoir in foothills northwest of Sacramento.  The purpose of the 
reservoir is to capture and store high flows in the Sacramento River.  These high flows would 
otherwise flow out to the ocean.  In addition to the dam construction, there are some pipelines to 
convey the water to Sites Reservoir and back to the Sacramento River where it can flow to the 
SPW Contractors who participated in the project.  Pumping-generating stations would be 
constructed to pump water into Sites Reservoir and recover electrical power when the water is 
released back to the Sacramento River. 

White Paper No. 3 contained a breakdown of the Sites Reservoir cost.  Table 4 below presents 
an updated summary to bring 2015 Sites Reservoir costs to 2017, the base for the other cost 
estimates in this white paper.  In addition a consultant, AECOM, completed a study in 2017 that 
estimated the interest during construction to be $789,000, bringing the total 2015 construction 
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cost to $5.489 billion.  Escalation from 2015 to 2017, about 6.6% per Engineering News Record 
Construction Cost Index (ENRCCI), brings the cost in 2017 dollars to $5.851 billion.  The 2015 
dollar estimate of the annual OMP&R for the Sites Reservoir was $26.0 million or $27.7 million 
in 2017 dollars using the ENRCCI as above. This is summarized in Table 4. 

 
Figure 4 

SGPWA Funding Requirements for CWF 
For purposes of this White Paper, and to be conservative due to the uncertainty of funding etc., 
the Sites Project Authority contribution is assumed to be 75%, (in lieu of the 59% shown in 
Table 4), of both the capital and the annual OMP&R costs to keep it simplified. 

 Table 4 
Sites Reservoir Cost Summary 

(All Costs are in thousands) 

Item Cost or % Remark 

Sites Reservoir Construction Cost $4,700,000 2015 cost 

Interest During Construction $789,000 AECOM 2017 study 

Total Costs, Oct 2015 $5,489,000  
Escalation to 2017 6.6% per ENRCCI 

2017 Capital Costs $5,851,274  
Percent Water Supply Joint Powers Agency 
Funded 75% 

AECOM 2017 Study estimated 
from 54% to 59% 

Annual OM&R and Monitoring Cost $26,000 2015 Costs 

Escalation to 2017 6.6% per ENRCCI 

2017 OM&R and Monitoring Costs $27,700  

The total cost for Sites Reservoir in Table 4 will be shared with other project beneficiaries: 
Water Storage Improvement Program (WSIP), federal funding, and Non-Prop.1 Eligible Benefits 
(Sites Project Authority).  Federal funding is projected to be about for ecosystem improvement 
and flood control benefits.  WSIP funding request was to cover other public purposes.  If 
granted, the WSIP funding would provide sufficient matching funds to fully cover the capital cost 
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for all the project’s public benefit categories and 100% funding for other elements such as 
Oroville cold water pool, Yolo Bypass., and recreation.  WSIP funding would also provide the 
remaining funding needed after the federal contribution above.  

AECOM prepared an allocation analysis in 2017 evaluating several methodologies: present 
value of capital and OM&R Costs, present value of capital costs only, and total annual costs.  
The range of participation for federal funding was 13%-14%, WSIP funding 28%-32% and Sites 
Joint Powers Authority 54-59%.  A summary is shown in Table 5.  For purposes of estimating 
the Sites Project Costs to be funded by the Sites Joint Powers Authority, 60% will be used. 

Table 5 
AECOM’s Sites Reservoir Project Cost Allocation  

Funding Source Percent of Present 
Value of Total 
Capital Cost (a) 

Percent of Total 
Capital and 
OMP&R (b) 

Total  
Annual Costs (c) 

Federal non-reimbursable 14% 13% 13% 

WSIP 32% 28% 28% 

Sites Project Authority  54% 59% 59% 

(a) Based on AECOM Report Table A10-3 
(b) Based on AECOM Report Table A10-4 
(c) Based on AECOM Report Table A10-2 

The Sites Reservoir Project costs shown in Table 4 above are allocated to the Sites Project 
Authority and the SGPWA in Table 6.  The annual costs for the SGPWA do not include the 
DWR Pass-through transportation costs, currently $260/AF, as this cost is assumed to be 
included in the water rate charged by SGPWA.  Figure 5 shows the projected capital cost bond 
debt and O&M costs for SGPWA.  These costs would be over and above the costs shown in 
Figures 3 and 4 for the years 2035 to 2075. 
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Table 6 

Sites Reservoir Project Cost Allocation  
(All costs in thousands) 

Item Cost or % Remark 

2017 Capital Costs $5,851,274 Table 4 

Sites Project Authority Share 60% From AECOM Analysis 

Cost Funded  by Sites Project Authority $3,510,800  
Interest Rate 4%  
Number of Years 40  
Capital Recovery Factor, 4%, 40 year 0.05052  
Annual Capital Cost,  $295,600  
SGPWA Requested Participation, AF 14,000  
SGPWA Allocated Class 1 Yield, AFY 9,748  
Total Sites Allocated Class 1 Yield, AFY 250,000  

SGPWA Share of Yield and Cost 0.039 
Based on fraction of Class 1/Total 
Class 1 

SGPWA Share of Annual Cost $6,916  
SGPWA Share of OM&R and Monitoring 
Costs, not including DWR transportation pass 
through charges $648  

SGPWA Total Annual Cost $7,565  

 

 
Figure 5 

SGPWA Funding Requirements for Sites Reservoir 
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Summary of SGPWA Future Funding Requirements 

Figure 6 shows the accumulated funding requirements for total annualized bond debt and 
OM&R for the existing SWP and EBX plus the California Water Fix and Sites Reservoir based 
on the cost presented above.  The SGPWA will need another $10 million in annual revenue 
between 2020 and 2035 to cover the costs for the CWF and Sites Reservoir.  After 2035, the 
revenue requirements drop off dramatically to a relatively constant $18 million, then eventually 
dropping to below $10 million as the bonds for CWF and Sites Reservoir are paid off. 

 
Figure 6 

SGPWA Funding Historic and Projected Funding Requirements 
including Existing SWP with EBX, California Water Fix and Sites Reservoir  

The costs for the SGPWA three primary water sources maybe be able to be funded with debt 
service property tax revenues.  Sites Reservoir was a part of the original SWP that was deferred 
and the CWF is only improving the reliability of the original SWP yield which has been eroded 
over the years by factors not known at the time the SWP was originally voted on would appear 
to be justification for using property tax revenues.  However this will need to be evaluated by the 
SGPWA’s legal counsel. 

These projects have the opportunity to provide a significant portion of the SGPWA’s future water 
supply requirement and a comprehensive strategy needs to be developed to fund these critical 
projects. 
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Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 

560 Magnolia Avenue 

Beaumont, CA 92223 

951-845-9581  www.bcvwd.org 

DATE:  January 2, 2018 

TO:  Dan Jaggers, General Manager 

FROM: Joe Reichenberger PE, Senior Engineer 

SUBJECT: Funding Strategies – White Paper No. 5 

 
White Paper No. 4 provided information on the capital and OMP&R costs for the original EBX 
Phases I and II, the California Water Fix (CWF), and Sites Reservoir.  Figure 1 shows the 
annual costs that SGPWA would be paying to DWR for these three components over time.  The 
peak payment amount is about $35 million annually for a short period of time from 2028 to about 
2035 when the original SWP Bonds are paid off.  After 2035 the annual payments are about $18 
million eventually dropping to about $13 million. 

 
Figure 1 

SGPWA Annual Payments to DWR for SWP w/EBX, CWF and Sites Reservoir 
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Sources of Funding 

SGPWA has a number of alternatives to fund the amounts in Figure 1. 

 Property Tax Revenue 
 SGPWA Rate/AF (“water rates”) 
 SGPWA’s Share of Riverside County’s 1% property tax which with shared with other 

agencies 
 Capacity fees charged to new developers 
 Bonds 

o Assessment District Bonds covering new development areas only 
o Revenue Bonds repaid with pledged water rates over time 
o General Obligation Bonds 
o Community Facilities District Bonds (Mello-Roos) 

 Combinations of the above 

Property Tax Revenue 

Property tax revenue is based on the SGPWA Tax Rate, currently $0.1825/$100 assessed 
valuation (AV), and the total Assessed Valuation in the SGPWA service area.  The 2016 AV in 
SGPWA service area based on data from Riverside County is $8.377 billion.  BCVWD’s portion 
of that is $4.519 billion, or 53.9% of the total.  In 2002, before much of the development took 
place the AVs were $2.436 and $0.841 billion (34.5%) respectively.  At the current tax rate and 
the 2016 AV, the annual property tax revenue is $15.234 million.  See Figure 1. 
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Figure 1 
SGPWA and BCVWD Assessed Valuation Over time 

The total property tax revenue collected by the SGPWA from 2002 through 2016 was $174.3 
million of which BCVWD’s residents contributed $89.5 million or 53% of the total taxes paid to 
SGPWA.  In fact since 2000, BCVWD, YVWD and the City of Banning contributed over 90% of 
the SGPWA’s total property tax revenue.  Figure 2 shows the property tax revenue paid to 
SGPWA over the years by each retailer. 

 

Figure 2 
Annual Property Tax Contributions to SGPWA by Retailers 

To project the future property tax revenue, the following assumptions were made: 

 Raw Land Value (2017) = $50,000/acre 
 4 new homes/acre 
 650 new houses/year (the City of Beaumont alone from 2002 through 2016 averaged 

772/year.  From 2013 through 2016, average was 449/year.) 
 Home value (2017) = $350,000
 New home inflation rate 2%/year (very conservative, 2017 increase was 7.7%, The 

Riverside County Assessor forecasts 5.0% for 2018 and 2019 and 3.0% for 2020, 2021, 
and 2022) 

 Land value escalation rate 2%/year 
 Home assessed value annual increase 2%/year, maximum per Proposition 13 
 Once a new home is built and sold, the selling price becomes the initial assessed 

valuation.  Per Proposition 13, the assessed valuation cannot increase by more than 
2%/year. 

 Real estate turnover was not assumed in the analysis although it is reported to be 8.7% 
in Riverside County as a whole.  This means that 8.7% of all residential homes are 
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resold and the assessed valuation would be the new, increased sales price.  As a result 
the projected tax revenues are conservatively low.  

 Base year was 2016 with total property tax revenue paid to SGPWA = $15,288,758. 
 Tax rate = $0.1825/$100 AV, the current tax rate; no increase was projected. 

A spreadsheet was developed to project the total tax revenue which could be used to fund the 
capital cost of SPW with EBX Phases I and II, CWF, and Sites Reservoir.  CWF and Sites 
Reservoir area assumed to be funded by DWR and SGPWA property tax revenue can be used 
to fund these projects.  A plot of the tax revenue based on the assumptions above and the total 
annual costs for SWP with EBX I and II, CWF, and Sites Reservoir are shown in Figure 3. 

 

Figure 3 
Annual Property Tax Revenue and Annual SGPWA Cost 

for SWP, EBX I & II, CWF, and Sites Reservoir 
In Figure 3 there is a leveling off of the property tax revenue from 2005 or so to 2016.  This due 
to a reported reassessment of homes by the County that lost value during the recession.  House 
values have risen since then and the assessed valuations are expected to grow.  Once the 
assessed valuation reaches the 2% per year straight line projection from the time of 
reassessment, and assuming the homes are not sold in the interim, the assessed valuation will 
again be increasing at the 2% per year maximum Proposition 13 rate.  Resell or turnover has 
not been included in the projections. 

Figure 3 indicates that from 2017 through 2035, there is a shortfall of revenue to pay the annual 
costs for the water projects.  Table 1 shows a sensitivity analysis of the cumulative shortfall 
based on different housing escalation rate assumptions.  Table 1 and Figure 3 do not include 
the beneficial impact of the turnover rate which is about 8.7% currently (a home resells every 
11.5 years).  As can be seen, the cumulative annual shortfall is very dependent on the housing 
escalation rate. 
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The new home price escalation rate would have an impact on the financing strategy.  At 4% or 
5% escalation rate, it may be possible to fund the shortfall from reserves.  This is discussed 
later. 

Table 1 
Sensitivity of Home Price Escalation Rate on Tax Revenue 

(based on current SGPWA Tax Rate $0.1825/$100 AV) 

New Home Price 
Escalation 

Percentage/year 

Maximum Annual 
Shortfall, millions 

Cumulative Annual 
Shortfall, millions 

2% $7.7 $63.3 

4% $7.4 $23.4 

5% $7.2 $16.3 

Other Sources of Supplementary Funding 

Water Rates 

SGPWA currently has a water rate charge of $317/AF delivered.  This charge was described in 
detail in White Paper No. 3 and includes Agency operational and administrative expenses, a 
rate stabilization component, SBVMWD pass through charge, a component for Yuba Accord 
water and a component for new water purchases.  The largest component is DWR’s pass 
through of $260/AF for energy and transport to SGPWA. 

This rate can be increased, however it is subject to the requirements of Proposition 218.   

Water rate increases encourages water conservation which may be beneficial in the long run, 
but does decrease revenue over time.  Agencies with significant “fixed” operating costs will be 
adversely impacted by revenue reductions due to conservation.   

SGPWA’s Share of Riverside County’s 1% Property Tax 

The largest tax item on the property tax is the 1% tax, i.e., $1/$100 AV or “General Tax Levy,” 
which stays with Riverside County.  A portion of this is re-allocated to agencies within Riverside 
County according to a not-well understood formula.  SGPWA gets a share of this 1% General 
Tax Levy.  This amounted to about $2.3 million on June 30, 2017.  This tax revenue is 
unrestricted and can be used for any purpose.  Many agencies use all or a portion of this to 
cover general operating expenses. 

Capacity Fee 

The SGPWA has been discussing a capacity fee for a number of years.  One of the most recent 
was a study prepared by David Taussig and Associates, draft 2015.  The study envisioned two 
components: a Facility Fee for new infrastructure and a Water Capacity Fee for new water 
rights.  Capacity fees are restricted funds and must be used only for the purpose intended. 
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The Facility Fee portion was to be applied to new residential (different rates for single family and 
multi-family) and new commercial (based on meter size).  Also included was a Water Capacity 
Fee applied to new residential and commercial based on water consumption and a $/AF cost 
($6,231/AF).  Single family water use was based on 0.546 AF/yr/single family unit. The fees 
were never implemented.  

A Capacity Fee could be implemented; it will require a new nexus study to ensure the fees are 
consistent with the costs.  Capacity fees are not subject to Proposition 218 requirements. 

It is commonly held that new development or new growth should pay for the supporting 
infrastructure and one way of ensuring this is to assess a capacity fee paid for by the developer 
of the property.  Many agencies assess capacity fees but the developers ultimately pass this on 
to the sales price of the home which is ultimately paid for by the purchaser.  Of course there is a 
market limit to the amount of fees that can be attached to the sale price before the home 
becomes unsellable at the particular price.  Attaching the capacity fee to the house increases 
the purchase price and down payment and makes homes unaffordable.   

Bonds 

The SGPWA Act (“Enabling Legislation”) specifically identified the authority of the SGPWA to 
issue bonds.  Specifically listed were: General Obligation Bonds, Revenue Bonds per 1941 Law, 
and 1911 Act Improvement Bonds.  On the surface, without legal counsel opinion it appears 
these vehicles could be used by the SGPWA to fund the future projects or fund the shortfall 
shown in Figure 3. 

General Obligation Bonds 

General obligation (GO) bonds are secured by a pledge of the full faith and credit of the issuer 
and/or by a promise to levy taxes in an unlimited amount as needed to pay the debt services.  
The State of California’s GO bonds are full faith and credit funded from the general fund pledge 
rather than from any revenue source.  Local agencies are not generally authorized to issue full 
faith and credit bonds and are only payable from ad valorem property taxes.  GO bonds are 
typically the least expensive debt available to government agencies.  They do require voter 
approval, typically 2/3 vote, and there may be debt limits imposed on the issuer.  Securing 
approval of GO bonds by local agencies is very difficult. 

Revenue Bonds 

Revenue bonds are paid back from a dedicated revenue source such as water rates or other 
financial source.  Revenue bonds do not require voter approval.  Interest rates are higher than 
GO bonds. 

Improvement (Assessment District) Bonds (1911 Act) 

Assessment bonds are authorized under the Improvement Act of 1911 and are repaid from 
taxes collected from those who benefit from the project.  An assessment is a levy or charge 
placed on real property by a local agency for a special benefit conferred on the real project from 
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a public improvement.  The assessments are paid from scheduled installments collected by 
direct billing to the property owner or through the tax rolls, or through proceeds from 
prepayment of assessments by the owners to discharge the unpaid tax lien. 

The SGPWA would be the sponsoring agency; a petition signed by the owners of the parcels 
interested in the particular improvement.  A benefit assessment district would have to be set up 
and an Engineer’s Report prepared to identify the benefits to each parcel.  Once the report is 
completed and disseminated, a ballot is prepared for the parcels to vote.  A public hearing is 
held, typically called a “protest hearing,” and the ballots collected and tabulated.  The 
assessment district is approved if there are more “yes” votes than “no” votes. 

It is not easy to fund an assessment district, particularly if it covers a large area. 

Historic SGPWA SWP and EBX I and II Funding 

Since inception of the Agency in the early 1960s, the SGPWA has funded its SWP obligations 
from property taxes collected within the Agency.  The first property tax rate was set at 
$0.10/$100 AV in July 1962.  The rates changed over time since then.  See Figure 4. 

 
Figure 4 

SGPWA Property Tax Rate Over Time 
When water deliveries started to BCVWD, the first retailer to purchase water, in 2006.SGPWA 
established a water rate, $/AF delivered.  The rate was $277/AF in 2008.  It was increased in 
2009 to the current $317/AF. This covers the various pass through charges identified in White 
Paper No. 3 and provides funding for rate stabilization and new water purchases. 

Tax Contributions to SGPWA Older vs. Newer Homes 

An analysis was performed on twenty homes within BCVWD which were purchased prior to 
1992 and from 1992 through 2016 to determine how much property tax was paid by each home 
from 1976 through 2017.  The homes were categorized by number of bedrooms.  House 
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descriptions, sales year, sales price, etc. were obtained from Riverside County Assessor’s 
Office.  Refer to Figure 5.  It is interesting to note that the 3-bedroom property purchased in 
1976 when the tax rate was $1.46/$100 AV actually paid less cumulative property tax to the 
SGPWA than homes purchased as late as 2008.  From Figure 5 it can be concluded that the 
owners of newer homes pay more in taxes to the SGPWA than some much older homes.  Much 
of this has to do with the effects of Proposition 13.   

This analysis was extended to the 2035 assuming the properties were not sold or reassessed.  
The results are shown in Figure 6.  The results are similar.  The newer homes pay a large 
portion of SGPWA’s property tax revenue and confirms that new development does pay.  
Agencies that have taxing power may want to consider using property tax to fund infrastructure 
rather than capacity fees.  It is not subject to the ups and downs of the market and provides a 
more stable form of revenue. 

 

Figure 5 
SGPWA Property Tax Rate Contributions by Specific Properties through 2017 
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Figure 6 
SGPWA Property Tax Rate Contributions by Specific Properties through 2035 

Anticipated Future Development in the SGPWA Service Area 

There are a number of projects which have been approved by the Cities of Calimesa, 
Beaumont, and Banning over the last few years.  Table 2 presents a summary of the known 
residential projects in the area.  There may be developments in other areas of the SGPWA, e.g., 
Cabazon and Mission Springs.  Some of the projects in Table 2 are under construction; the total 
units shown are and estimate of those yet to be constructed. 

Table 2 
Ongoing and Planned Developments in SGPWA Service Area 

Development Name Total Units 

City of Calimesa 

Mesa Verde 3,650 

Summerwind Ranch  3,841 

Subtotal Calimesa 7,491 

City of Banning 

Rancho San Gorgonio 3,385 

Butterfield  4,862 

Diversified Pacific 98 

St. Boniface 171 

Subtotal Banning 8,516 
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City of Beaumont/BCVWD 

Tournament Hills 300 estimated 

Sundance 1,000 estimated 

Fairway Canyon 1,500 estimated 

Heartland 922 

Four Seasons 500 estimated 

Kirkwood Ranch 403 

Potrero Creek Estates 700 

Noble Creek Meadows 648 

Hidden Canyon 411 

Sunny Cal Egg Ranch 560 

Jack Rabbit Trail 2,000 

The Preserve/Legacy Highlands 3,412 

Subtotal  Beaumont/BCVWD 12,356 

Total 28,363 

Funding Strategy for the Future 

Figure 3 showed a shortfall between the projected revenues using the current tax rate 
($0.1825/$100 AV) and the required annual payment to DWR for the original SWP, EBX I and II, 
not to mention the CWF and Sites Reservoir.  Just to cover the cost for the SWP and EBX I and 
II, a little of $24 million of revenue will be needed through year 2035. Current property tax 
revenues are about $16 million, leaving a shortfall of about $8 million.  The funding requirement 
will peak about 2035 when Sites Reservoir Project comes on line.  Projected tax revenues will 
increase so the annual shortfall will not change much.  Refer to Table 1. 

There are several options for SGPWA to cover this shortfall based on the funding options 
described above and shown in Figure 3 and Table 1: 

 Increase the property tax rate during this period 
 Withdraw money from reserves.  SGPWA has a reported reserve of $36.8 million as of 

June 2016 projected to be $42.0 million by June 2017. 
 Increase the water rate 
 Issue a Revenue Bond 
 Take out a “bridge loan” 
 Some combination of all of these 

Increasing the property tax rate may require about doubling the current rate to about $0.37/$100 
AV.  For a new house this would be about $650 more on property taxes.  For comparison, from 
1971 through 1977 the property tax rate was as high as $1.46/$100 AV. 
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Withdrawing this the much money on an annual basis for an extended period of time would not 
be recommended.  But a portion could be taken from reserves with the plan to increase the 
property tax rate sufficient to cover the remaining portion. 

The water rate could be increased.  Assuming about 11,000 AF/yr is imported the water rate 
would need to be $455/AF more than it is now ($317).  This surcharge would be a hardship on 
the current customers.  It is possible a portion of the shortfall could be covered by the water rate 
since a large portion (CWF) is improving the reliability of the water supply Table A.  Then when 
no longer needed, past year 2035, this “surcharge” could be eliminated. 

A revenue bond is a possibility as it would extend the payment term. 

A bridge loan is possible to cover a portion of the difference also, and might be an option if 
interest rates are not too high. 

The funding strategy could be a combination of all of these. 

Whatever funding strategy, or combination, is chosen, it must be flexible.  Changes in the 
development rate, housing prices, and housing turnover will have a major impact on the 
revenue generated from property tax.  Another consideration, and a very important one, is the 
impact of overall water conservation and the new, low water using “water smart” homes will 
have on the water demand.  SGPWA must take this in small steps, evaluating the strategy on a 
regular basis – perhaps every 2 to 3 years at most.   

Funding for Other Sources of Water 

Short term contracts e.g. AVEK-Nickel Water, one-time purchases, e.g. South Mesa Water 
Company, multiple year purchases, SBVMWD and Yuba Accord water would likely need to be 
funded from sources other than property tax for debt service.  Possible alternatives include: 

 Funding through water rates 
 Funding through temporary surcharges or water rates 
 Use of SGPWA’s Share of Riverside County’s 1% property tax which with shared with 

other agencies 
 A combination of the above methods 

Water Supply Requirements for SGPWA till 2040 

White Paper No. 1 identified the SGPWA imported water demands to the year 2050 as about 
28,000 AFY.  This is an extremely conservative projection and does not take into account: 

 Recycled water use in the service area by BCVWD and perhaps the City of Banning 
 Reduction in demand due to the new landscape ordinance and probable tightening of 

even the new landscape irrigation regulations over time 
 Construction of more water-smart homes which are quite effective in reducing water 

demand inside and outside the home.  BCVWD has observed a noticeable reduction in 
demand in these homes which has shown the demand dropping from about 0.64 
AFY/home (historical) to about 0.5 AFY/home – a 22% reduction 
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 A water conservation ethic that has been promoted at the state and local levels 
 Reduction in demand due to the cost of water 

Attached hereafter in Appendix A are nine scenarios which represent a snapshot in time as to  
how SGPWA demands might be met between now and 2040 using recycled water, Yuba 
Accord, SBVMWD, and AVEK-Nickel water until the CWF is in place and Sites Reservoir project 
is fully operational.  As can be seen by the attached information, the planning of future supplies 
is complex and has a significant number of variables that should be vetted by the regional water 
system managers and their respective Boards and Councils. 

 

 

 

Description of Appendix A Scenarios are as follows 

Scenario I (Pages A-1, A-2, and A-3) presents a “Best Case” supply scenario which includes 
the following conditions. 

Scenario 1A The California Water Fix and maximum supplies from Sites Reservoir, no 
conservation, and no decrease to water storage requirements for future 
dwelling unit drought proofing by BCVWD. 

Scenario 1B The California Water Fix and maximum supplies from Sites Reservoir, 
conservation, and no decrease to water storage requirements for future 
dwelling unit drought proofing by BCVWD. 

Scenario 1C The California Water Fix and maximum supplies from Sites Reservoir, 
conservation, and decrease to water storage requirements for future 
dwelling unit drought proofing by BCVWD. 

 

Scenario 2 (Pages A-4, A-5, and A-6) presents a “Worst Case” supply scenario which includes 
the following conditions. 

Scenario 2A The California Water Fix and minimum supplies from Sites Reservoir, no 
conservation, and no decrease to water storage requirements for future 
dwelling unit drought proofing by BCVWD. 

Scenario 2B The California Water Fix and minimum supplies from Sites Reservoir, 
conservation, and no decrease to water storage requirements for future 
dwelling unit drought proofing by BCVWD. 

Scenario 2C The California Water Fix and minimum supplies from Sites Reservoir, 
conservation, and decrease to water storage requirements for future 
dwelling unit drought proofing by BCVWD. 
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Scenario 3 (Pages A-7, A-8, and A-9) presents a “Worst Case” supply scenario with 
supplemental water supplies which includes the following conditions. 

Scenario 3A The California Water Fix and minimum supplies from Sites Reservoir, 
Supplemental Water Supplies including long term leases, no 
conservation, and no decrease to water storage requirements for future 
dwelling unit drought proofing by BCVWD. 

Scenario 3B The California Water Fix and minimum supplies from Sites Reservoir, 
Supplemental Water Supplies including long term leases, conservation, 
and no decrease to water storage requirements for future dwelling unit 
drought proofing by BCVWD. 

Scenario 3C The California Water Fix and minimum supplies from Sites Reservoir, 
Supplemental Water Supplies including long term leases, conservation, 
and decrease to water storage requirements for future dwelling unit 
drought proofing by BCVWD. 
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Appendix A 

 

San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

Analysis of Supply and Demand Scenarios 

Scenarios 1, 2, and 3 
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Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District

560 Magnolia Avenue

Beaumont, CA 92223

951-845-9581 www.bcvwd.org

DATE: May 16, 2018

TO: Dan Jaggers, General Manager

FROM: Joe Reichenberger PE, Senior Engineer

SUBJECT: Updated San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Supply Planning Spreadsheet –
White Paper No. 6, Rev. 4

Since the development of a series of White Papers (1 through 5) by BCVWD discussing 
imported water supply needs in the San Gorgonio Pass Area, in late 2017 and early 2018, the 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (SGPWA) has initiated a study to identify a potential rate 
structure to secure imported water supply for the entire Pass Area.  The previous White Papers 
provided the SGPWA, interested area water suppliers, and other parties in the Pass Area with a 
preliminary overview of imported water supply needs out to approximately year 2050 or so.
These White Papers were based on BCVWD’s planning efforts1 and SGPWA’s 2015 Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP). BCVWD believes that the next step for BCVWD is to refine 
the White Papers by developing a series of spreadsheets that any water supplier in the SGPWA 
area could input their own development rates, on a year by year basis, considering their own 
water supply planning needs, Water Supply Assessments (WSAs), projected demands, banking 
requirements, and evaluate the impact of their strategies on their own Beaumont Basin Storage 
Accounts over time. BCVWD has developed a set of spreadsheets, which currently include 
YVWD, City of Banning, and BCVWD, with some input from the listed water retailer in the 
SGPWA service area.  These spreadsheets are described in this White Paper No. 6.

The spreadsheets provide assistance to the SGPWA and the major water retailers as they 
develop strategies for the purchase and banking of imported water and the operation of their 
Beaumont Basin Storage Accounts over the next 20 years or so until the California Water Fix 
(CWF) and the Sites Reservoir Project (Sites Reservoir) become reality.  There is currently 
some uncertainty with implementation of these two projects. But over the next few years, the 
status of these two essential projects will become more certain, and during that time the 
SGPWA’s and local retailers’ long-term water supply strategies can be developed either with or 
without CWF and Sites Reservoir.

1 BCVWD’s 2013 Potable Water Master Plan and 2015 Urban Water Management Plan and others
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Significant Events Since the Original White Papers

Since the preparation of the earlier White Papers, the San Gorgonio Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan (SGIRWMP), Draft March 2018, was prepared by Woodard Curran for a 
group of stakeholders in the eastern half of the SGPWA service area (i.e., generally east of 
Highland Springs Ave.).  The stakeholders included the City of Banning, Banning Heights 
Mutual Water Company, Cabazon Water District, High Valleys Water District and the SGPWA.  
The SGIRWMP contained the region’s most up-to-date imported water supply requirements to 
supplement the local water sources to meet the region’s water demands.

The CWF took a major step forward, when, on April 10, 2018, the Board of Directors of the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan), voted to fund not only their 
share of the CWF Phase 1, but also to provide the additional funding necessary to allow for the 
construction of the full CWF, including Phase 2 (the second tunnel). Metropolitan voted to fund 
Phase 2, the Central Valley Project (CVP) contractors’ portion in anticipation that the CVP 
contractors would eventually need the water and purchase some or a portion of the Phase 2 
water from Metropolitan.  It is also possible that other SWP contractors may want to purchase a 
portion of the Phase 2 water.  Although there is an agreement to fund the full project, and the 
risk of not constructing CWF is greatly reduced, however, there are always risks with the full 
implementation of any major water resource project.

On May 8, 2018, the Santa Clara Valley Water District (Santa Clara) voted to approve their
share of the CWF, but also, possibly up to 200 cubic feet per second (cfs) of the 3,000 cfs 
capacity in the second tunnel held by Metropolitan for possible purchase by CVP contractors.

Following this, on May 14, 2018, Metropolitan, Santa Clara, and Alameda County Flood Control 
and Water Conservation District – Zone 7 (Zone 7 Water Agency) formed the Delta Conveyance 
Design and Construction Joint Powers Agency (DCA), the public agency that will be charged 
with the design and construction of the CWF. In parallel, the California Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) formed the Delta Conveyance Office (DCO) which will oversee the DCA.  
Metropolitan is the largest State Water Project contractor; Santa Clara and Zone 7 Water 
Agency are the two largest Bay Area State Water Project contractors.  This joint agreement 
lends significant credibility to implementation of the CWF. Construction of the CWF is expected 
to start once DCA has secured all of the permits which is expected to be later in 2018.

On February 5, 2018, the Sites Reservoir Project Authority (Sites Project Authority) received a
preliminary evaluation from the California Water Commission (CWC) on the public benefit of the 
Sites Project, i.e., wildlife refuge improvements, flood control, and recreation.  The initial 
valuation provided a Public Benefit Ratio (PBR) of 0.40.  Proposition 1 allows the State to invest 
in the public benefits associated with water storage projects.  To receive Proposition 1 Bond 
funding a project must have a public benefit of greater than 50% of the project’s funding 
request, (PBR = 0.50 minimum). The CWC staff requested more information before 
recommending a final public benefit score. On February 23, 2018, Sites Project Authority 
submitted an appeal of the PBR along with the requested information. On April 20, 2018, the 
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CWC issued a revised Public Benefit of $933 million for Sites Reservoir which resulted in a PBR 
of 0.67, greater than the minimum 0.50 required for Proposition 1 funding. The Commission will 
meet May 1-3, 2018 and issue a final determination. At the May meetings the Commission 
voted to increase the funding to $1 billion.

The public benefits are only one part of the overall scoring process, albeit a large part (one-
third).  There are three other components that need to be scored before a total score can be 
established which will become the basis for the CWC to make a conditional funding award.
Final public benefit scores are not expected to be finalized until summer 2018. Since the final 
PBR has not been officially determined, there is still some risk that Proposition 1 funding may
not be approved.  However, there may be other water suppliers willing to increase their share of 
participation and possibly purchase more of the project’s yield.  This will become more certain 
over the next few years.

In the meantime, the water supply agencies in the Pass Area could implement a strategy to use 
their banked water plus bank additional water which may be available and use their Beaumont 
Basin Groundwater Storage Account as a “reservoir” to meet demands during the next ten to 
twenty years until the risks of CWF and Sites Reservoir implementation are reduced and future 
water supply uncertainty eliminated. In simple terms, the Pass Area water supply agencies can 
use their Groundwater Storage to “buy time” and minimize costs associated with additional 
water supply purchases until the uncertainties are reduced and long term supplies are better 
identified.

The Beaumont Basin Watermaster’s 2017 Consolidated Annual Report and Engineering Report 
(Draft) in February 2018, (2017 Watermaster Report), updated the storage accounts of each 
water supplier and the overlier pumping rights allocated to each appropriator (BCVWD, City of 
Banning, YVWD and others).  The report provides the agencies with a more current starting 
base from which to analyze their storage account balance over time, and take action to adjust 
the amount of water banked as uncertainties with the CWF and Sites Reservoir are reduced.

Updated San Gorgonio Pass Area Imported Water Supply Planning Spreadsheet

A new spreadsheet has been developed by BCVWD for imported water supply planning in the 
San Gorgonio Pass Area which updates the assumptions in spreadsheets developed previously
to support BCVWD White Papers 1 through 5.  The basic conclusions presented in White 
Papers 1 through 5 remain essentially the same, though the new, updated spreadsheet, and the 
conclusions developed from it, provides refinements and allow the water supply agencies to 
adjust anticipated housing startups, build-out years for large developments, and the amount of 
in-fill development and commercial/institution development; adjust unit water demands for new 
and existing housing, and account for any anticipated conservation for new and existing 
demands, among other items.

The spreadsheet allows for imported water banking, adjustments to imported water use 
throughout the study period, and provides a graph of the agency’s annual groundwater storage 
account balance which is automatically updated with any input change. The purpose is to allow 
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the agencies to model, on a year by year basis, various imported water purchase and banking 
strategies vis-à-vis available imported water from SGPWA until such time as the CWF and Sites 
Reservoir are operational (2035 or so). Adjustments can be made to water demands using 
conservation factors on new and existing (older) housing units; water supply sources can 
include groundwater, recharged recycled water (indirect potable reuse), and captured storm 
water.  Beaumont Basin Watermaster’s redistribution of unused overlier rights and forbearance
water are included in the model.

Separate spreadsheet models have been developed for:

BCVWD
City of Banning, Banning Heights Mutual Water Company, High Valleys Water District
YVWD (Summerwind Ranch and Mesa Verde Area)
All combined

SGPWA Available Imported Water

At the present time (2018) the “firm” supplies of imported water available to SGPWA, (or in the 
final stages of being finalized), between now (2018) and CWF/Sites Reservoir operation (2035)
are:

Table A
Yuba Accord Water
SBVMWD (agreement is in final stages of development)
AVEK (Nickel Water)

CWF and Sites Reservoir are anticipated to be “on line” about 2035 or potentially a few years 
before.  As discussed above, although these two projects have taken major steps forward, there 
is still some degree of uncertainty with the projects’ implementation.  This White Paper No. 6,
and associated spreadsheet, focusses on the period between now and when CWF and Sites 
Reservoir come on line. The water supply agencies in the SGPWA that rely on imported water 
should develop importation and banking strategies taking into account their local water resource 
supply, their Beaumont Basin Storage Account and available imported water supply to meet 
demands until CWF and Sites become reality.

TTable A  

SGPWA’s contract with the Department of Water Resources (DWR) states a Table A amount of 
17,300 acre-ft/year (AFY).  Table A is the maximum amount of water the SGPWA can convey 
through the State Water Project (SWP) facilities. This amount of water is not available 
consistently every year.  In fall of each year, DWR provides an initial delivery allocation as a 
percent of Table A depending on amount of water in reservoir storage and anticipated 
hydrologic conditions.  The allocation can be increased or decreased depending on the 
precipitation during the winter; a final allocation is usually issued in spring and sets the amount 
of water available, as a percentage of Table A, from the SWP.  Since 1992, the allocation has 
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averaged about 65%. DWR has prepared a reliability study2 which indicated the SWP can 
deliver only about 62% of Table A (10,726 AF to SGPWA) in any one year. Table B-5B in 
DWR’s Bulletin 132-17 forecasts the amount of SPW delivered to SGPWA at 10,380 AFY.  For 
consistency purposes in this White Paper No. 6 and the spreadsheet, 10,380 AFY is the amount 
which SGPWA can rely on at the present time.

In the discussions over the CWF, experts believe the current SWP reliability of about 62% will 
decrease over time to 48% or possible even lower due to anticipated additional regulatory 
constraints to protect threatened and endangered fish within the Delta. The length of time over 
which this decline in reliability will occur is not certain, but to be conservative in this White Paper 
No. 6, it is assumed that by 2035 the SWP reliability is assumed to decrease to 48%.
Implementation of CWF will restore reliability and possibly even increase it above the current 
62%.

With Metropolitan funding their share plus second phase of the CWF, i.e., the Central Valley 
Project share, as described above, and the possibility that other State Water Contractors may 
not need the increased supply from the CWF, should make additional water available for long 
term acquisition by others, including SGPWA. This would add to the imported water considered 
in this White Paper.

For San Gorgonio Pass Area planning purposes, the SWP delivery reliability is assumed to 
decline, (in the spreadsheets), at rate of 0.8% per year (linear) from 2018 to 2035.  So by the 
year 2035, the reliability will be 48% and, from a conservative planning perspective, the SGPWA 
can expect only about 8,300 AFY.

YYuba Accord Water  

Through the Yuba Dry Year Transfer Program, the official name for Yuba Accord Water, 
SGPWA can purchase additional supplemental water from Yuba County Water District under an 
agreement.3 The amount of water available from the Yuba Accord varies year to year
depending on hydrologic conditions.  The SGPWA estimates that about 300 AFY, on the 
average, of Yuba Accord Water can be obtained.4 For purposes of White Paper No. 6, it is 
assumed that Yuba Accord Water available to the SGPWA will be 300 AFY.

San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (SBVMWD Water) 

The SGPWA is in the process of finalizing an agreement with SBVMWD to purchase up to 
5,000 AFY of SBVMWD’s Table A water in years that SBVMWD’s Board of Directors declares a 
surplus.  The availability of SBVMWD surplus water depends on hydrologic and groundwater 

2 DWR (2012). State Water Project Delivery Reliability Report 2011.  State of California Dept. of Water 
Resources, June.
3 DWR (2008). Agreement for the Supply and Conveyance of Water by the Department of Water 
Resources for the state of California to the Participating State Water Contractors under the Dry Year 
Water Purchase Program, March 31.
4 Refer to Table 3-1 of SGPWA 2015 UWMP
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conditions within SBVMWD’s service area per SBVMWD Ordinance 79.  SGPWA has the right 
of first refusal on the first 5,000 AFY of surplus water.  Assuming SGPWA exercises the right, 
the agreement states that SBVMWD must first offer 50% of the available supply to one or both
agencies that are in both SBVMWD and SGPWA, i.e., Yucaipa Valley WD and South Mesa 
Water Company.  Fifty percent of the water and any additional water “left over,” can be offered 
to other SGPWA retailers. The agreement is for a term of 15 years from the date of execution,
but SGPWA intends to renegotiate the terms and extend to some point in the future. Execution 
of the agreement is anticipated soon.

SGPWA estimates, based on past hydrologic conditions this is likely to occur about two years 
out of every five, or 40% of the time.  This is equivalent to 2,000 AFY in any one year.  The term 
of this agreement will be at least 15 years from now or until about 2032.5 For purposes of White 
Paper No. 6, the amount of water available from SBVMWD is 2,000 AFY.

AAVEK-Nickel Water 

In June 2017 SGPWA Board of Directors approved an agreement with the Antelope Valley-East 
Kern Water Agency (AVEK) for 1,700 AFY for 20 years (to 2037) with the right of first refusal to 
extend it for a second 20 years.  The water rights on the Kern River originally belonged to the 
Nickel Family LLC that were sold to Kern County Water Agency (KCWA) and subsequently 
leased to other parties in various amounts.  One portion (1,700 AFY) is under the control of 
AVEK, which offered the water to SGPWA.  This water is not subject to the reliability issues of 
the SWP.  Per the agreement SGPWA must take all of the 1,700 AF each year or pay for 1,700 
AF if the SGPWA does not take all of it in any one year.

Other Sources of Imported Water 

There are other sources of water available through the SWP which include:

Turn-back Pool Water (Water that other State Water Contractors have ordered from 
DWR, but decided they did not need the water that particular year and sold it back to 
DWR.  DWR in-turn offers it for purchase by other State Water Contractors.)
Article 21 Water (Water that is offered for purchase by DWR resulting from reservoir 
releases needed to accommodate impending storm or snowmelt runoff.  This water is 
available only on short notice and must be taken immediately.  Article 21 Water is over 
and above a State Water Contractor’s Table A amount.)
Short-term or Long-term Water Transfers or Exchanges (Water that can be obtained
through exchanges and transfers from other State Water Contractors who do not need 
all of their Table A water in a given year or years.)

There is considerable competition for the Turn-back Pool and Article 21 Water and its 
availability is uncertain from year to year.  SGPWA should take advantage of this water 
whenever it is available, but for purposes of this White Paper, no water will be assumed 

5 SGPWA 2015 UWMP
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available from any of these sources due to the unpredictability and consequently have not been 
included in the spreadsheets.

CCity of Ventura and Casitas Municipal Water District (Ventura Water) 

The Ventura County Watershed Protection District is one of 29 State Water Contractors, 
but the agency lacks the infrastructure at present to be able to take its 20,000 AFY of 
Table A water.  The County’s Table A is allocated to three entities: City of Ventura 
(10,000 AFY), United Water Conservation District (5,000 AFY), and Casitas Municipal 
Water District (5,000 AFY). Up until last year, these agencies sold their Table A water 
back to the “Turn-back Pool” (discussed above).  This year the City of Ventura (Ventura) 
and Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas MWD) are looking to exchanging water 
with other SWP agencies, like SGPWA.

The SGPWA staff has been in negotiations for a water exchange with Ventura and 
Casitas MWD for their Table A, totally 15,000 AFY.  The SGPWA is looking at a short 
term, (one year), exchange now, but may want to extend it to a more long-term 
arrangement.  A draft agreement was presented to the SGPWA Board on May 7, 2018.

Under the terms of the agreement SGPWA would receive all of Ventura’s and Casitas 
MWD’s Table A water allocation for 2018, or 4,500 AFY considering the Department of 
Water Resources’ current 30 percent allocation.  SGPWA would pay all of the 
Transportation Capital, Transportation Minimum, Conservation Capital and Conservation 
minimum charges, estimated to be about $2,230,000.  Each party to the agreement 
would be responsible for paying the variable costs for pumping the water to their
respective service areas.  Based on receiving 4,500 AF of water in 2018, the cost would 
be about $495/AF, plus variable pumping costs.

The SGPWA is obligated to return 40 percent of the Table A water taken from Ventura 
and Casitas MWD within a 10-year period.  This would be from SGPWA’s future Table 
A. 

Until the agreement is executed, Ventura and Casitas MWD water will not be considered 
as a firm supply in this White Paper.

Sale of State Water Project Contractors Incremental CWF Reliability Benefits

All south of the Delta SWP Contractors pay their proportionate share of the CWF costs. 
With the implementation of the CWF, there will be an increase in SWP reliability.  

Several SWP Contractors have indicated that, even with the reduction in SWP reliability 
(as discussed above), they believe they will have sufficient water to meet their long term 
needs.  Their incremental yield would be available for purchase or lease to other SWP 
Contractors like SGPWA.  With these “side deals,” the Seller receives 85% – 90% of the 
CWF cost from a Buyer and the Buyer receives the Seller’s Table A incremental 
reliability.  The Seller retains the right to purchase Article 21 Water, retains aqueduct 
conveyance capacity for non-project transfers, among other benefits.
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For discussion purposes, using a transfer of 50,000 AFY of  Table A, the SGPWA has 
estimated that anywhere between 100 AFY and 13,000 AFY may be available in any 
given year depending on the SWP allocation.  Based on a long term average DWR 
allocation of 60%, 3,500 AFY should be available to SGPWA under such a program.

But, for purposes of this White Paper, this will not be considered at firm, long term 
supply at this point in time.

Purchase or Leasing of Metropolitan’s CWF Phase 2 Water

As discussed above, Metropolitan is going to fund Phase 2 of the CWF and as such will 
have additional SPW for purchase or short or long term leases from other CVP or SWP 
Contractors.  SGPWA may be able to take advantage of this water if needed.  Again, for 
purposes of this White Paper, this will not be considered as firm supply at this time.

Preliminary Development of Water Supply Spreadsheet Models

CCity of Banning 

The Regional Water Management Group of the San Gorgonio Integrated Regional Water 
Management Region prepared the San Gorgonio Integrated Regional Water Management Plan 
(SGIRWMP) March 2018 (DRAFT).6 The SGIRWMP covered the SGPWA service area 
generally east of Highland Springs Avenue. The SGIRWMP integrated three separate studies: 

Water Supply Reliability Study
San Gorgonio Region Recycled Water Study
San Gorgonio Integrated Watershed and Groundwater Model Technical Memorandum

In addition, the City of Banning’s 2015 Urban Water Management Plan (2015 UWMP) was 
analyzed. Table 5-4 extracted from the 2015 UWMP shows the quantity of groundwater 
available to the City of Banning.  The quantity shown for the Beaumont Storage Unit is based on 
the reallocation of unused overlier pumping rights as part of the Adjudication.  The City of 
Banning is entitled to 31.43% of the unused overlier pumping rights.  The 2017 Annual 
Watermaster Report (Draft) indicates that Banning’s reallocated unused overlier pumping 
amount for 2020 is 1,450 AFY, slightly more than the 1,266 AFY shown.  It should be noted that 
this amount varies from year to year depending on hydrologic conditions and other factors and 
are evaluated by Watermaster yearly.  

6 With assistance from Woodard and Curran, consultants to the “Group”
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Source: City of Banning 2015 UWMP

The 2017 Watermaster Annual Report showed the total unused overlier pumping rights at 6,565 
AF, declining to 4,614 AF in 2020. Watermaster developed estimates for years 2018 through 
2022 and are included in the spreadsheet.  As some of the overlying parties develop their 
properties, the overlier rights will be used by the water and recycled water supplying agency and 
will no longer be available for reallocation.  As a result the total amount subject to reallocation 
will decrease over time. BCVWD made an estimate of the unused overlier pumping rights under 
a “developed” or “build-out” condition and determined the total unused overlier amount would be
1,800 AFY under full buildout.  The City of Banning’s share (31.43%) would be 560 AFY 
(rounded) at buildout.  The spreadsheet allows for the gradual reduction of the unused overlier 
pumping rights over time.

The City of Banning, in their 2015 UWMP, estimated that 2,718 AFY of SPW would be 
purchased from SGPWA and recharged into the Beaumont Basin (banked and extracted when 
needed). Historically from 2008, the City has recharged an average of 1,294 AFY.  The City 
has an 80,000 AF Groundwater Storage Account, which means they can store up to that 
amount.  The amount of groundwater the City of Banning had in storage as of December 31, 
2017 was 51,961 AF.

Banning’s 2015 UWMP identified Butterfield Ranch and Rancho San Gorgonio as two major 
developments; the water demands for the City and these two projects are shown in Table 3-1
extracted from the 2015 UWMP.
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Source: City of Banning 2015 UWMP

Butterfield Ranch was projected to start in 2015 and extend for 30 years to buildout in 2045 per 
the Project’s Water Supply Assessment (WSA).  As of 2018, the project has not yet started and 
will probably likely not start before 2020.  There are 4,862 EDUs proposed, or an average of 
160 EDUs per year over the 30 year build-out period.  Rancho San Gorgonio is planned for 
3,385 EDUs and initially projected to start in 2017 and be fully built out by 2034 (17 years) per 
the Project’s WSA (about 200 EDUs per year average over the build-out period).  This project 
has not yet started and probably will not start until 2020 or later.

The spreadsheet for Banning included two other projects:

Diversified Pacific (98 EDUs)
St. Boniface (171 EDUs)

Specific years when these projects are to begin were not stated, nor were the buildout years.  
The spreadsheet assume 2021 and 2023 respectively for starting and build out years of 5 and 
10 years respectively.  These can easily be changed in the spreadsheet.

Banning’s existing demand from the 2015 UWMP was 6,709 AFY in 2015, including 738 AFY 
water system losses.  (Actual delivery was 5,971 AFY as reported in Table 3-1 above.) From 
the SGIRWMP, the demand was indicated to be 6,879 AFY for the City of Banning, High Valleys 
Water District, and Banning Heights Mutual Water Company.  For purposes of developing the 
spreadsheet, the 2017 demand was estimated to be 7,125 AFY to account for the growth 
between years 2015 and 2017.  This can also be changed, if necessary.
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YYVWD (SGPWA Service Area Only) 

To develop the spreadsheet for YVWD, several references were reviewed for YVWD’s water 
supply and projected demands within their service area lying within the SGPWA boundaries:

2015 SGPWA UWMP
2015 San Bernardino Valley Regional UWMP
Mesa Verde Water Supply Assessment (WSA) – Draft August 11, 2017
YVWD Strategic Plan For Sustainable Future (Adopted August 20, 2008)

A preliminary spreadsheet was developed by BCVWD which was adjusted based on meetings 
between YVWD and BCVWD in late April 2018.

Table 2-4, extracted from the 2015 SGPWA UWMP shows the YVWD imported water demands
for 2020 through 2040.

Source: SGPWA 2015 UWMP

YWVD has three major developments within Calimesa which are within the service area of the 
SGPWA:

Summerwind Ranch (3,841 EDUs)
Mesa Verde (3,650 EDUs)
JP Ranch (500 EDUs per discussions with J. Zoba, YVWD)

The EDUs for Summerwind Ranch and Mesa Verde were taken from the Specific Plans for 
these projects. Grading is in process for Summerwind Ranch, so the first homes should come 
“on-line” in 2019.  Mesa Verde is estimated to start in 2022.  An estimated 20 year build-out time 
for Summerwind Ranch and Mesa Verde was assumed, resulting in an average of 192 and 183 
EDUs per year, respectively.  Per YVWD, future phases of JP Ranch will likely not start until 
2025 with a 10-year build-out period (about 50 EDUs per year). It should be noted there will be 
additional EDUs associated with the developments for related commercial and retail 
developments, schools, parks, restaurants, etc.

Water supply sources for these projects are:

Reallocated unused overlier pumping rights in the Beaumont Basin
Oak Valley Partners’ earmarked transfer right
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Banked groundwater from storage
Imported Water from SGPWA
Treated potable water from the YVWD’s Regional Water Treatment Plant

YVWD’s share (13.58%) of the reallocated unused overlier pumping right was determined from 
the 2017 Watermaster annual report for 2018 through 2022.  To project the amount available 
under more long term conditions, BCVWD made an evaluation of a fully developed condition of 
the developable overlier parcels as shown on the worksheet in the spreadsheet.  BCVWD 
believes the total unused overlier right at build-out will be about 1,800 AFY; YVWD’s share will 
be about 240 AFY (rounded).

Both Mesa Verde and Summerwind Ranch are part of the original Oak Valley Development that 
started with the Landmark Land Company of California in the 1980s.  The original Landmark 
Project was a master planned golf/recreational development.  Oak Valley Partners (OVP) took 
over the project and were involved in the Beaumont Basin Adjudication.  OVP has overlying 
groundwater rights in the Beaumont Basin [originally 1,806 AFY but reduced to 1,398.9 AFY,
(round to 1,399 AFY), after the safe yield was reduced in 2014].  These overlier groundwater 
rights will be transferred to YVWD to serve the Summerwind Ranch development only per 
YVWD.  This will include potable and recycled water.  

YVWD uses 700 gal/day/EDU for total water demand; but requires all new development to be 
dual-plumbed and requires the use of recycled water outside.  Potable water demands are 
estimated by YVWD to be 40% of the total water demand, i.e. 280 gal/day/EDU with the 
remainder, i.e., 420 gal/day/EDU to be recycled water.  It is BCVWD’s opinion that the 
Adjudication requires OVP to forebear the pumping of their 1,399 AFY overlier pumping right, on 
an acre-ft by acre-ft basis, for both potable and recycled water.  

YVWD has groundwater banked in the Beaumont Basin; at the end of 2017, per Watermaster,
the amount in storage was 15,776 AF.  YVWD has a 50,000 AF storage account.

The following Table (Table 1) was extracted from the Mesa Verde WSA.  The Mesa Verde WSA 
indicates 1,200 AFY is proposed to be recharged (banked) by YVWD from 2020 through 2040.
YVWD developed a Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future, The Integration and Preservation of 
Resources for a Sustainable Future (adopted August 2008) which identified a groundwater 
banking program for future reliability for droughts and disruption in the SPW supply as shown in 
Table 1.  The Plan indicates a Board Policy of banking of 15 percent of the total water supply 
used by the YVWD’s customers.  Data was not available to confirm the 1,200 AFY in Table 1; 
but 1,200 AFY will be used in this White Paper. YVWD can change it, if necessary.

The total of the drinking water demands for the Water Filtration Facility plus the Conjunctive Use 
Demands match with the projected imported water demands in the SGPWA 2015 UWMP as 
shown in Table 2-4 presented previously.
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Table 1
YVWD SGPWA Imported Water Demands

Source: Mesa Verde Project WSA Draft August 11, 2017, page 25

Table 1 also identified “New Development Long-Term Supply—Sustainability Program which 
relates to YVWD’s Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future mentioned above. YVWD requires all 
new developments to provide funding to secure 7.0 AF of supplemental imported water per 
EDU.  This amount of water is sufficient to meet the drinking water demands generated by each 
new EDU for a period of 20 years.  YVWD also offers a Crystal Status Development Program 
whereby the developer provides funding for 15.68 AF of supplemental imported water per EDU 
which is sufficient to meet the potable and non-potable (recycled) water demands of the new 
EDU for 20 years.  The difference between the two programs is that under the standard (7.0 
AF/EDU) program, development will be restricted, (i.e., no grading or building permits will be 
issued), when a Stage 2 water shortage is declared (10% cutback).  However, Crystal Status 
Development can continue through a Stage 4 Shortage (35% cutback).  The 7.0 AF/EDU will 
not need to be replenished for 20 years.  For this spreadsheet, the Standard 7.0 AF/EDU 
imported water purchase and storage is used, since it is difficult to determine how many new 
developments will purchase Crystal status.  This is conservative.

The spreadsheet assumes that 7.0 AF/EDU will be applied to all new developments (Mesa 
Verde and JP Ranch) in YVWD, except for Summerwind Ranch, which has overlier pumping 
rights available to meet its projected demands.

It should be noted there were some inconsistencies between in the imported water requirements 
between the YVWD’s imported water demands in the Mesa Verde WSA and YVWD’s imported 
water demands in SGPWA’s 2015 UWMP which YVWD should reconcile.  BCVWD staff is 
available to assist.

BBCVWD 

BCVWD’s source of supply consists of:

Edgar Canyon (Little San Gorgonio Creek) Groundwater 
Reallocated Unused Overlier Pumping Rights
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Forbearance Water 
Imported Water
Water from Groundwater Storage

The annual yield for Edgar Canyon is based on 33 years of pumping records.  The average 
annual production for the period 1983 – 2016 was 2,161 AFY, which was rounded to 2,100 AFY 
in the spreadsheet.

BCVWD estimated the long-term, fully developed unused overlying party pumping rights would 
be about 1,800 AFY.  BCVWD receives 42.51% of the unused overlier rights and would receive 
760 AFY (rounded).  BCVWD will be supplying the Sunny Cal Egg Ranch Development with 
both potable and recycled water at some point.  Sunny Cal Egg Ranch and associated partners 
are overlying parties and have pumping rights.  BCVWD estimates that fully developed demand 
from recycled and potable water is about 340 AFY.  The amount of forbearance water will 
increase over time from zero AFY to 340 AFY as the project develops.  This is reflected in the 
spreadsheet.

BCVWD has an 80,000 AF groundwater storage account in the Beaumont Basin.  BCVWD’s 
current (2017) groundwater storage account balance is 32,296 AF and at year 2017 potable 
water demand was 12,921 AFY.  This demand is projected to increase to 15,648 AFY (with 
conservation) by 2035.

Recycled water is assumed to only be used for non-potable uses and is not considered a 
potable water supply.  However, if the non-potable supply is provided to an overlying party like a 
golf course (Oak Valley Greens or Tukwet), BCVWD would be able to pump the equivalent AF 
as potable groundwater.  This would reduce the need for imported water in the spreadsheet.

The amount of imported water which BCVWD is able to purchase and recharge is only the 
amount left over after YVWD and the City of Banning have purchased the amount each needs 
to meet their demands and banking.  The total amount of imported water available is the sum of 
SGPWA’s Table A, SBVMWD Surplus, AVEK-Nickel Water, and Yuba Accord Water.  
Considering the 62% SWP Reliability, this amounts to 15,540 AFY in 2018 reducing to 12,160 in 
2035 as the SWP reliability decreases to 48% before the CWF becomes fully operational.  
BCVWD will be recharging all of the SPW available between now and 2035 -- 13,991 AFY in 
2018 reducing to 7,509 AFY in 2035.

Table 2 is a list of development projects within BCVWD.  Tournament Hills Ph. 4, Sundance, 
Fairway Canyon, Heartland, and Four Seasons are actually under construction; the others have 
been completely or partially through the planning process.  These projects were listed in the 
2015 BCVWD UWMP and 2013 Potable Water Master Plan.

The developments in Table 2 total over 12,500 EDUs; however BCVWD projects only about 
8,660 will be constructed or occupied between now and 2035.  This amounts to an average of 
over 480 EDUs/year for the 18 years of study.  
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Table 2
BCVWD Service Area Projects

Under Construction or in Planning Stages

Development
Total EDUs 
Remaining

Years to 
Build-out

Tournament Hills Ph 4 281 4

Sundance 1,262 5

Fairway Canyon 1,810 20

Heartland 1,081 20

Four Seasons 203 3

Kirkwood Ranch 391 12

Potrero Creek Estates 700 10

Noble Creek Meadows 648 15

Hidden Canyon 82 5

Sunny Cal Egg Ranch 529 10

Jack Rabbit Trail 2,000 25

The Preserve/Legacy Highlands 3,218 25

Taurek 244 20

TR 32950 Manzanita 95 10

Total EDUs 12,545

Unit demands for new EDUs is 0.546 AFY/EDU which correlates to the recent SGPWA Capacity 
Fee Study Single Family Dwelling Unit demand factors.  The spreadsheets separately calculate 
the support EDUs such as schools, commercial, industrial, retail, and other facilities.

Results of Spreadsheet Modeling

CCity of Banning 

The City of Banning analysis was performed with new EDU demand of 0.52 AFY/EDU and 
existing (prior to 2018) EDU demand of 0.62 AFY/EDU and does not consider any conservation.  
The City should review the appropriateness of these EDU demands.

An initial “run” of the spreadsheet starting with the amount of groundwater in storage of 51,961 
AF and no imported water, but using the City’s groundwater supplies only. Figure 1 shows the 
available water supply and demand.  Without any imported water, the City of Banning does not 
begin pulling from their storage account until 2031. Figure 2 shows the amount of water in the 
City of Banning’s Beaumont Basin Groundwater Storage Account.  It should also be noted that 
their groundwater storage account has a maximum banking capacity of 80,000 AF and reaches 
maximum capacity in 2025 or so and the account will remain level until 2031 when a relatively 
small amount of water begins to be withdrawn from storage.

The City may want to re-evaluate their need for imported water indicated in their 2015 UWMP 
for recharge between now and when CWF and Sites Reservoir are on-line.  For example the 
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City’s 2015 UWMP estimates an annual recharge of 2,718 AFY from now till 2040.  Assuming 
CWF and Sites Reservoir are on line in 2035, the volume of SWP purchased would be 46,200 
AF which has a total cost of $14.6 million based on the current rate of $317/AF.  If SGPWA 
raises their rates, this amount would be even greater.

Figure 1

Figure 2
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YYVWD 

Figure 3 shows YVWD’s supply and demand within the SGPWA’s service area, principally 
Calimesa,

Figure 3

The Calimesa/YVWD analysis was performed with new EDU demand of 0.37 AFY/EDU and 
existing (prior to 2018) EDU demand of 0.7842 AFY/EDU, (corresponds to 700 gal/day/EDU),
and does not considering any conservation.  This results in a starting (2018) demand of 500 
AFY.  YVWD and Calimesa should review the appropriateness of these EDU demands.

YVWD’s storage account starts out at 15,776 AF in 2017 per Watermaster’s Annual Report.  
Figure 3 clearly shows the impact of purchasing and banking the new development 
sustainability imported water, i.e. 7.0 AF/EDU.  In addition to the new development sustainability 
water, the spreadsheet assumes an additional 1,200 AFY will be purchased and banked.  If 
Figure 3 were extended beyond 2038, the supply would drop eventually reaching the demand, 
probably around 2050 or so unless imported water were purchased. Figure 4 shows the YVWD 
Groundwater Storage Account Balance; it reaches capacity about 2026 and remains full.  It 
would remain at capacity until about 2038 and then would gradually drop unless additional water 
were banked.
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Figure 4

YVWD may want to reconsider purchasing and banking all of the sustainability water in light of 
the impact on the storage account.  Maintaining storage accounts in a full, or near-full, condition 
may result in some water “leaking out” of the basin and would preclude taking advantage of any 
wet years either locally or in the SWP when Article 21 Water may be available for purchase at 
very low rates.

BBCVWD 

Figure 5 shows BCVWD’s supply and demand based on the following assumptions:

New EDU water demand = 0.546 AFY/EDU (accounts for separate calculation of 
associated EDUs such as commercial, retail, restaurants, schools, etc.)
Conservation of 10% on existing EDUs constructed before 2018 due to higher water 
costs, replacement of high water using turf with more water efficient landscaping in 
yards, common areas, and street medians; use of more water efficient, indoor 
appliances, etc.  Conservation of 5% on EDUs constructed after 2018.  The percentage 
is lower than the percent conservation on existing housing due to more stringent 
landscape ordinances now in place, reduced amount of landscape area in newer homes, 
and reduced turf and landscaping of common areas and street medians. Conservation 
percentage gradually increases from zero in 2018 to the respective percentages by year 
2035.
Imported water includes Table A (with reliability adjustment and reliability reduction over 
time), AVEK-Nickel water, SBVMWD Surplus, and Yuba Accord Water.
Recharging the modeled imported water after YVWD and City of Banning take all of 
their planned imported water. BCVWD plans on purchasing and banking all available 
imported water ranging from 13,990 AFY in 2020 and reducing to 7,509 AFY in 2035.  
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This reduction is due to reduced reliability of the SWP over time and the fact that other 
SGPWA member agencies will be increasing their imported water demands.
All recycled water is used to meet non-potable water demands.  It is believed, at some 
point in time, the demand for recycled water will decrease as landscapes, even those 
irrigated with recycled water, become more water efficient surplus.  This will result in 
more recycled water, over time, which can be advance treated and recharged becoming 
part of the potable water supply through indirect potable reuse.

Figure 5

Figure 5 shows that supply exceeds the demand until about 2026; at that point water will be 
withdrawn from groundwater storage to meet demands.  This point could be delayed, i.e. 
extended into the future, a) if more imported were available perhaps during wet years from 
SGPWA; b) YVWD deferred or reduced their purchase of imported water for their Sustainability 
Program; c) BCVWD could advance treat and recharge more recycled water; or d) a 
combination of all of these options.

Figure 6 shows BCVWD’s groundwater storage balance under the above assumptions. Figure 
6 shows the current groundwater storage account balance increasing from 32,296 AF in 2017 
per Watermaster’s Annual Report to about 50,000 AF in 2025 then dropping to about 10,000 AF 
by the time CWF and Sites Reservoir come on line.
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Figure 6

TTotal SGPWA 

Figure 7 aggregates the water demand/supply and groundwater storage accounts for BCVWD, 
YVWD (SGPWA Service Area Only), and the City of Banning (including Banning Heights Mutual 
Water Company and High Valleys Water District).  It shows the region can meet its demands 
with banked water and local supplies until about 2028 when a small amount of water must be 
drawn from storage.  As shown in Figure 8, the total regional storage account balance in 2028 is 
over 167,000 AF -- just above the entire “Temporary Surplus” established with the Adjudication.  

Conclusions and Recommendations

1. The spreadsheet and this White Paper No. 6 should be carefully reviewed by the City of 
Banning, the SGPWA, YVWD/Calimesa and BCVWD and each, respectively. adjusted to 
match local conditions of demand, development build-out rate, EDU demands, local 
supplies, etc.  A meeting should be held to discuss the findings and results and develop 
a “final” spreadsheet model that provides a best estimate of the need for imported water 
over time.

2. The finalized spreadsheet should be used by the SGPWA to develop imported water 
supply requirements between now and the time CWF and Sites Reservoir are in place.  
This should be done prior to any imported water purchases (other than Yuba Accord, 
Article 21 Water, SBVMWD Water, and AVEK/Nickel Water).

3. The model should be reviewed at least every two years to adjust for development, 
groundwater banked, unit demands, etc.
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Figure 7

Figure 8

4. The spreadsheet model clearly indicates that with currently planned development, water 
demands can easily be met using local supplies, groundwater in storage, and currently 
available imported water, even considering reductions in reliability of the SWP over time 
until the CWF and Sites Reservoir are in place.

5. There is enough water in storage regionally that other agencies can mutually assist each 
of the other agencies in the area by exchanging banked groundwater, if necessary.

 -

 20,000

 40,000

 60,000

 80,000

 100,000

 120,000

 140,000

 160,000

 180,000

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

20
34

20
35

Ac
re

 F
ee

t

Year

Region Groundwater Storage

Regional Groundwater Storage, AF

Temporary Surplus Created 
by Adjudication 160,000 AF

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District White Paper No. 6 (Rev 4)
May 16, 2018 21
Y:\Reichenberger Projects etc\BCVWD SGPWA Water Supply Forecasts\White Papers\BCVWD White Paper 6 Integrated Regional 
Water Supply Rev 4.docx

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 343 of 530



6. If the risks of not implementing CWF and/or Sites Reservoir increase over time, 
adjustments will need to be made.  SGPWA will need to acquire additional supplies from 
other SWP Contractors, participate in other water resource projects and water 
exchanges, or reduce water use through demand management measures.

7. With the implementation of CWF and Sites Reservoir there will be additional water 
supplies available for purchase or short or long term leases to meet demands well 
beyond 2050.
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Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District White Paper No. 7
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DATE: August 15, 2018

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Dan Jaggers, General Manager

SUBJECT: Funding Strategies for New and Existing Regional Water Supplies, Sites 
Reservoir and Other Sources – White Paper No. 7

This white paper is the seventh of a series of White Papers discussing San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency’s (SGPWA’s) and Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District’s (BCVWD’s) imported 
water needs to near build-out. This white paper focusses on SGPWA’s funding requirements 
for additional imported water supplies listed in Table 1 on the following page. Table 1 shows 
that the current and projected imported water available to SGPWA range from 24,900 AFY to 
almost 35,880 AFY depending on the actual yield.

Previous white papers have discussed funding and financing options for these sources.  Yuba 
Accord, SBVMWD Water, and AVEK-Nickel Water were assumed to be funded from SGPWA’s 
existing rate structure and were not included in any previous funding analyses. However, this 
option is still being evaluated by the SGPWA.  

The existing SWP Table A Transportation and Delta Water Charges, totaling about $24 million 
per year, will continue to be funded through property taxes and rates.  This payment will continue 
to year 2035 at which time the existing contracts expire.

The CWF funding for Phases 1 and 2, (“two tunnels”) has been committed and both tunnels are 
proposed to be constructed initially, pending environmental permits.  The CWF is anticipated to 
be funded by revenue bonds issued by the State or a Joint Powers Financing Agency with 
payment by State Water Contractors south of the Delta through their existing contracts with the 
DWR – extended as needed into the future.  In addition to other federal, State, and local permits, 
CWF requires changes to the water rights permits for the SWP and Federal Central Valley Project 
to authorize the proposed new points of diversion and recombination.  The hearings on the 
“change petition” are underway.  The CWF would be funded by SGPWA through their State Water 
Project (SWP) Debt Service taxes.  There are some fixed minimum Operation, Maintenance, 
Power, and Replacement (OMP&R) costs for the CWF that would be paid on an annual basis 
from debt service plus the variable OMP&R costs associated with transporting the water from the 
Delta to Cherry Valley.  The variable OMP&R costs are anticipated to be funded from water rates 
charged by SGPWA to the water retailers purchasing imported water.  Although the CWF will not 
be operational until about 2032, there will be costs for design and permitting that will have to be 
paid, beginning before 2018.
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Table 1
SGPWA Current and Projected Available Long Term Imported Water Supply

Source Low Yield 
Case, Annual 
Amount, AFY

High Yield 
Case, Annual 
Amount, AFY

Comment

Existing Table A 8,300 10,380 17,300 AFY but only 60% reliable 
(10,380 0 AFY) per Bulletin 132; to 
degrade to approximately 48% (8,300 
AFY) without California Water Fix 
(CWF)

Yuba Accord 300 300 When available

San Bernardino Valley MWD 
Surplus Table A Water (SBVMWD 
Water)

2,000 2,000 Up to 5,000 AFY available estimated 2
out of every 5 years (40%) of time =
2,000 AFY; agreement terminates in 
2032

Antelope Valley East Kern Water 
Agency (AVEK) Nickel Water,
(AVEK Nickel Water)

1,700 1,700 20 year agreement with option for 20 
year extension

California Water Fix (CWF) 2,478 3,119 Expected to increase reliability of State 
Water Project (SWP) by 14% (2,478 
AFY) to 17.62% (3,119 AFY) from 
48%

CWFSide Deal 3,500 7,500 Purchase (Transfer) of Additional 
Table A CWF increased yield to 
SGPWA from other SWP Contractors

Sites Reservoir 9,100 14,000 Assumes all Class 2 will convert to 
Class 1 Water (14,000 AFY); worst 
case with 65% assumed reliability.
(BCVWD has committed to 4,000 AFY 
of the 14,000 AFY)

Total Imported Water Potentially 
Available

24,900 35,880

Although all of the “South of the Delta” SWP Contractors will be paying their proportionate share 
of the CWF, for various reasons, a few SWP Contractors do not need the benefits of the increased 
yield and are interested in transferring (selling) their incremental yield to other interested SWP 
Contractors, such as SGPWA.  The buyer (in this case SGPWA, for example) would receive the 
seller’s CWA Table A Reliability Increase which depends on the particular DWR Allocation for the 
year.  These “side deals” work as follows.  The seller pays all SWP costs including the CWF cost
to DWR, but receives 85% reimbursement from the buyer.  The seller retains the right to purchase 
Article 21 water and retains conveyance capacity for non-SPW.  The buyer pays 85% of the sellers 
CWF cost and obtains the reliability benefit which is based on the DWR allocation for that year 
for the amount of Table A transferred.  The amount of SPW which could be obtained in this type 
of “side deal” could vary from about 3,500 AF to 7,500 AF assuming a 50,000 AF Table A transfer
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based on information published by the SGPWA.  The cost for this transfer would be funded from 
debt service taxes, which is an advantage.

Sites Reservoir was approved for $816 million of Proposition 1 funding on July 24, 2018; the 
California Water Commission also agreed to provide $40.8 million in early funding to assist in 
completing the needed environmental analyses and to obtain permits.  It is believed that the 
project participants will receive the combined total of their Phase I Class 1 and Class 2 water 
amounts, which for the SGPWA is 14,000 AFY, of which, 4,000 AFY is BCVWD’s committed 
participation.

Sites Reservoir will not produce water until about 2030 or so; however, there will be costs incurred 
by SGPWA to fund design, environmental studies, permitting, etc. until the Sites Project Authority 
(Sites Authority), the managing agency, can secure long-term funding.  SGPWA and other project 
participants have paid for Phase 1, which is now almost complete.  The Sites Reservoir Project 
Authority (Authority) will finance all Phase 2 costs.  The Authority’s current plan is a $350 million 
revolving line of credit with a bank with the funds available in early 2019.  The intent is an “interest 
only” payment through the end of Phase 2, after which, the line of credit will be refinanced with 
long-term bonds beginning in Phase 3.  The first payment on the line of credit is due in January 
2020.  The preliminary terms on the Line of Credit are 3% interest on the amount borrowed with 
a 0.75% fee on the undrawn balance.

Table 2 shows the estimated costs that will be incurred by SGPWA and BCVWD for participation 
in Sites Reservoir Phase 2.  This is to pay their proportionate share of the “interest only” line of 
credit.  The initial payment is due in November 2019.  In addition, in FY 2019 (ending 30 
September 2019), a payment is due to convert Class 2 Water to Class 1 Water.  This is shown in 
Table 3.

Table 2
Sites Reservoir Phase 2 Project Costs

Calendar Year Cost per AF based on 
Sites Reservoir Yield of 

335,000 AF

SGPWA Cost 
(14,000 AF)

BCVWD Share
(4,000 AF)

2019 $9.89 $138,460 $39,560

2020 $15.32 $214,480 $61,280

Due November 
2019

$25.20 $352,940 $100,840

2021 $20.88 $292,320 $83,520

2022 $11.11 $155,540 $44,440

Total $57.19 $800,660 $228,760
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Table 3
Sites Reservoir Cost to Convert Class 2 Water to Class 1 Water

Year Due Cost per AF to Convert 
Class 2 to Class 1

SGPWA Cost 
(5,201 AF)

BCVWD Share
(1,486 AF)

2019 $24.25 $126,125 $36,035

If the Sites Reservoir Project does not proceed to Phase 3 and all of the $350 million has been 
“drawn,” there would be a debt obligation of $1,045/AF for all participants.  For the SGPWA this 
would amount to $14.63 million for the 14,000 AF commitment.  (Note that BCVWD, at the present 
time, has committed to 4,000 AF of the 14,000 AF SGPWA commitment.)  Assuming the $350 
million debt is financed over 30 years, the annual payment would be $67.60/AF/year, or 
$946,000/year.  (BCVWD’s share would be $270,400.)

Phase 3 annual debt service costs would begin in 2022 or 2023 gradually ramping up to the 
maximum in year 2030 or so as shown in Table 4.  The values in Table 4 are based on an 
estimated $564/AF/year as the annual debt service for the project.1 A simple “S” curve was 
developed from experience.  The debt service cost includes the repayment of the Phase 2 Line 
of Credit.

Table 4
Sites Reservoir Estimated Debt Service Cost for Phases 3 and 4 and Beyond

Year Due Cost/AF/year (Estimated 
as “S” Curve)

SGPWA Cost 
(14,000 AF)

BCVWD Share
(4,000 AF)

2023 $135 $1,890,000 $540,000

2024 $165 $2,310,000 $660,000

2025 $220 $3,080,000 $880,000

2026 $380 $5,320,000 $1,520,000

2027 $490 $6,860,000 $1,960,000

2028 $510 $7,140,000 $2,040,000

2029 $535 $7,490,000 $2,140,000

2030 and 
beyond

$546 $7,644,000 $2,184,000

The cost for OMP&R cost for Sites Reservoir was estimated to be $98/AF/year.2  The annual 
costs for SGPWA and BCVWD are shown in Table 5. These OMP&R costs would be funded 
through water rates.

1 From SGPWA Presentation Aug. 13, 2018, “Sites Reservoir Project Status Report” by J. Davis
2 Ibid.
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Table 5
Sites Reservoir Estimated Annual

Operation, Maintenance, Power, and Replacement and Monitoring Costs

Year Start Cost/AF/year SGPWA Cost 
(14,000 AF)

BCVWD Share
(4,000 AF)

2030 $98 $1,372,000 $392,000

The Sites Authority will be working closely with the federal Bureau of Reclamation to secure 
Bureau participation and funding which will reduce the cost to the current participants.  Previous 
White Papers have assumed the Sites Project Authority would be responsible for 60% of the 
project cost with the rest from the State and federal agencies.  This may change since the Sites 
Authority anticipated slightly more Proposition 1 funding than the $816 million awarded.

In summary both the CWF and Sites Reservoir are moving forward, but there is always some risk 
that one or both may not be completed and operational.  Also, some participants in Sites Reservoir 
have indicated they will not continue participation in Sites Reservoir if the CWF does not proceed.
It is important that SGPWA continue to review and potentially secure low cost short and longer 
term water purchases/leases throughout the next 5 to 10 years until there is some degree of 
certainty with either the CWF or Sites Reservoir, or both.

Once there is certainty, SGPWA and the retail agencies can work together to refine imported 
water needs for the long term and develop a long-range, regional imported water supply plan 
considering conservation, more efficient landscaping, increased use of recycled water, and 
reduced indoor water use.

Purpose of this White Paper

The purpose of this White Paper is to provide:

A preliminary evaluation of the impacts of new short term, leased water sources, such 
as AVEK-Nickel Water in combination with Yuba Accord and SBVMWD Surplus Water 
on SGPWA water rates
Assessment of the impact of construction and operation and maintenance of the 
SGPWA Fiesta Recharge Facility, currently funded from the General Fund, will have on 
the Agency’s water rates
Financial impacts of reduced demands by SGPWA retailers due to local water 
resources development, storm water capture, and recycled water use
Financial impacts of downturns in housing construction affecting the Agency’s share of 
Riverside County’s 1% property tax, potential new connection revenue, and assessed 
valuation
Assess the iImpact of the OMP&R costs for the CWF and Sites Reservoir on SGPWA 
water rates
Options for fFunding for Sites Reservoir, if debt service taxes cannot be used as a 
funding source

Spreadsheet models will have been developed to address these issues.
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Supply Demand Model Refinement

The spreadsheet supply-demand model developed previously for White Paper No. 6 was refined 
to include:

The impacts of recycled water, storm water capture, captured groundwater, and other local 
water sources on the need for imported water
Adjustment factors to account for reduction in the irrigation of street median turf and the 
potential conversions of street medians and other common area to more drought-tolerant 
landscaping
Ability to adjust the amount of imported water purchased by a retailer to either bank water 
or withdraw water from their groundwater storage account
Reduced recycled water availability considering the recent restrictions on residential 
indoor water use to 50 gal/capita/day (gpcd) by 2030.  It is assumed the Commercial, 
Industrial and Institutional (CII) component of the wastewater will add to the indoor 
residential wastewater and would remain about the same as it currently is, i.e., about 15 
gpcd in BCVWD’s service area.  This is based on BCVWD’s annual water demand 
reporting to the Division of Drinking Water.
Forbearance water resulting from serving potable and non-potable water to overlying 
parties as stated in the Beaumont Basin Adjudication

Funding Model Refinement

White Papers No. 3 provided unit costs, ($/AF), for various sources of water; White Paper No. 4 
summarized the total funding requirements for the SGPWA including the current SWP and 
EBXI/EBXII plus CWF and Sites Reservoir.  White Paper No. 5 provided revenue forecasts for 
assessed valuation and potential property tax revenue to fund the CWF and Sites Reservoir 
(possibly). White Paper No. 6 refined future demand projections within the SGPWA service area 
and looked at meeting demands until CWF and Sites Reservoir Projects were operational – about 
2030 or so.

This White Paper No. 7 builds on the data from the previous white papers and refines the funding 
sources and requirements:

SGPWA General Fund
o General Operation and Administration
o Local capital projects, including the SGPWA Fiesta Recharge Facility and other 

Agency capital asset purchases
o DWR Variable OMP&R charges on the SWP and other water including Yuba 

Accord, SBVMWD Surplus, and AVEK-Nickel Water
o SBVMWD annual SWP operational and administrative charges performed  on 

behalf of the SGPWA in the delivery of SPW
o Purchase of Yuba Accord, SBVMWD Surplus, and AVEK-Nickel Water (possibly)
o SGPWA Fiesta Recharge Facility operation and maintenance
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o OMP&R of the CWF and Sites Reservoir Project which are assumed to be funded 
from the General Fund (possibly)

Debt Service taxes
o SWP, EBXI/EBXII, except for DWR Variable OMP&R
o CWF except for DWR Variable OMP&R

Connection Fees (potential)
o Sites Reservoir planning, design, and construction

The SGPWA General Fund revenue sources include: SGPWA’s share of the 1% Riverside County 
Property Tax, revenue from water sales, interest earned on investments, and other sources.

In the analysis in this White Paper, a conservative approach was taken; it was assumed that Yuba 
Accord, SBVMWD Surplus and AVEK-Nickel Water would not be funded from either debt service 
taxes or connection fees.  It was also assumed that the CWF would be funded from debt service 
taxes, but Sites Reservoir would not.  Again, this is believed to be a conservative approach which 
needs to be verified with SGPWA’s legal counsel. The purpose was to “bracket” the potential 
future costs.

Spreadsheet Funding Model Revenue and Expenditures

The following paragraphs describe some of the principal assumptions in developing the 
spreadsheet model that supports this White Paper.  The assumptions can easily be changed to 
test/verify other conditions.

SGPWA Administration and Operation Costs

SGPWA annual administration and operating costs were extracted from the Agency’s most 
recent audit3, and presented in Table 6 on the following page. 

Amortization costs, although presented in the audit, were not included.  In the analysis it was 
estimated that SGPWA would always have about $37,000 of annual capital asset purchases for 
miscellaneous items such as computers, vehicles, furniture, etc.  The SGPWA’s Fiesta 
Recharge Facility project estimate was listed as $8 million by the Agency and would continue 
through construction from 2017 through 2019 at $2.5 to $3 million per year.  The Noble Creek 
Turnout Expansion is listed as a capital project by the Agency funded from the General Fund in 
the 2017-18 budget, but this cost is to be reimbursed by BCVWD and was not included in the 
capital project expenditures in the spreadsheet model.  The Fiesta Recharge facility operation 
would begin in 2020 at an estimated rate of $120,000 per year based on BCVWD’s experience 
with their, much larger, facility.

3 SGPWA Audit (2017).  San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Financial Statements and Supplementary 
Information with Independent Auditor’s Report for years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, prepared by 
Eadie & Payne, LLP, October 12.
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SGPWA pays a pass through charge to SBVMWD for SBVMWD’s operation of the SWP 
facilities for SGPWA.  This cost was extracted from a 2009 Rate Study4 conducted by the 
Agency, and escalated 13% based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) to $112,000 per year.  

Table 6
2017-18 FY SGPWA General Fund Budget

General and Administrative

Salaries and Benefits $        725,900

Admin and Professional $        496,650

General Engineering $        302,000

Legal $        200,000

Conservation and Education $          54,000

Subtotal $    1,778,550

Capital Projects

Building/furniture/vehicles $37,000

Recharge Facility $2,500,000

DWR’s Variable OMP&R Charges

DWR’s Variable OMP&R Charges (DWR Variable Charges) amount to $260/AF.  This was 
determined in White Paper No. 3, Table 1.  This is the cost of delivering the SPW to the 
SGPWA and is currently included in the water rate paid to SGPWA by the retailers purchasing 
imported water.  For this analysis this is assumed to be the cost SGPWA would pay to DWR for 
conveying Yuba Accord, SBVMWD Surplus, AVEK-Nickel Water, and other water in the SWP 
system from the Delta to Cherry Valley.

SWP, EBXI, and EBX II Costs

The debt service, Fixed OMP&R costs and other costs for the SWP, EBXI and EBX II are paid 
for from debt service taxes based on DWR Bulletin 132 and were included in the previous white 
papers. These charges will continue to about 2035 or so when the current SWP contract 
expires.

Costs for Other Imported Water

The Agency has agreements with DWR for Yuba Accord Water, SBVMWD for surplus water, 
and Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency (AVEK) for Nickel Water.  These are described in 
detail in White Papers No.1 and 3. In the spreadsheet model it is assumed that the full quantity 

4 SGPWA (2009). Water Rate Study for the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency, Draft, prepared by David 
Taussig Associates, Inc., February 2.
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of these sources is could be delivered every year; it is further assumed that the agreements will 
be extended beyond current termination date.

Yuba Accord Water  

The Yuba Dry Year Transfer Program, the official name for Yuba Accord Water, allows the 
SGPWA to purchase water from Yuba County Water Agency. There are four components to the 
pricing, varying from $25/AF to $125/AF depending on the hydrologic condition (See White 
Paper No. 3). A conservative estimate of $125/AF has been assumed in the funding analysis.  
DWR’s variable charge of $260/AF applies to this water also; so the total cost of the water 
would be $385/AF.  SGPWA estimates that 300 AFY are available on the average so the 
average annual cost for this water is $115,500.  This has been rounded to $120,000 per year.

SBVMWD Surplus Water

The agreement to purchase surplus water from SBMVWD terminates in 2032; however, it is 
likely, with the agreement of both parties, it would be extended.  SBVMWD has a set rate, $100
to $400/AF, for the purchase of the surplus water depending on the SWP allocation percentage 
for the particular year.  The lower cost would occur in years with high allocation percentages.
BCVWD staff did an analysis, taking into account historical allocation percentages, and 
developed an average cost of $240/AF for the surplus water.  In addition to this cost, the 
SGPWA would pay DWR’s variable cost to convey the water to the Agency.  This is estimated 
to be $260/AF. The total cost for this surplus water is $500/AF or about $1,000,000/year for the 
2,000 AFY, on the average.  This will vary from year to year depending on the allocation, DWR’s 
variable charge, and the amount of water the Agency will purchase.

AVEK-Nickel Water

The SGPWA entered into a 20-year purchase agreement with AVEK in 2017 to buy 1,700 AFY 
of water from Nickel Farms.  This AVEK-Nickel Water is not subject to the reliability variations of 
the SWP.  The purchase agreement is “take or pay” and there is an option to extend it for 
another 20 years.  The water is available at the Tupman Turnout, west of Bakersfield, at a 
current price of $1,021.29.  In addition SGPWA will need to pay the pumping costs from the 
Turnout to Cherry Valley, estimated to be about $247/AF; total cost is then $1,268.29/AF.  This 
is rounded to $1,270/AF.  The AVEK-Nickel Water has cost escalation costs in the Agreement, 
3% per year or the increase in the CPI for Los Angeles, Orange, and Riverside Counties, 
whichever is greater.  Based on the Bureau of Labor Statistics for Los Angeles, Long Beach and 
Anaheim, the CPI increased about 2.5% per year for the last 18 years, so the 3% escalation in 
the agreement will be used in this White Paper.  The current annual cost for the 1,700 AF is 
$2,160,000.

Summary of Other Water Costs

Table 7 presents a summary of the “per acre-ft” and annual costs for other water which is 
projected to be purchased by SGPWA.

Table 7
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Summary Cost for Other Water Purchased by SGPWA
(including DWR Variable Charges)

Water Source
Annual Amount 
Purchased, AF Cost/AF

Annual Cost, 
($000s) Comment

Yuba Accord 300 $385 $120

SBVMWD 2,000 $500 $1,000

AVEK-Nickel 1,700 $1,270 $2,160
Subject to annual escalation of 

3% or more

City of Ventura/Casitas MWD One-year Exchange

In 2018 the SGPWA, the City of San Buenaventura (Ventura) and Casitas Municipal Water 
District (Casitas) entered into a one-year exchange agreement wherein SGPWA would receive 
all of Ventura’s and Casitas’ SWP allocation for 2018 or 5,250 AF based on DWR’s year 2018 
35% SWP allocation.  Forty percent of the water delivered (2,100 AF) will need to be returned to 
the agencies within a 10-year period as determined by the agencies and agreed to by SGPWA.  
SGPWA agreed to pay Ventura and Casitas for the Transportation Capital, Transportation 
Minimum, Conservation Capital, and Conservation Minimum charges imposed by DWR, totaling 
$2,230,000 for the water.  SGPWA will also pay the variable DWR Pass-through cost, estimated 
to be $260/AF or $1.365 million. SGPWA indicated the $2.23 million would be paid from debt 
service taxes.

CWF and Sites Reservoir Water Costs

It is assumed the CWF capital cost and other fixed costs will be paid for through debt service 
taxes similar to the SWP, EBXI and EBXII.  The DWR Variable OMP&R costs to convey the 
water through the SWP would be paid for through the water rate as is currently done.  There are 
some additional operating costs associated with the CWF, and it is assumed that SGPWA’s 
share of the annual operating cost, $150,000, will be paid for through the water rates beginning 
in 2032.

For this White Paper, Sites Reservoir capital and fixed costs will be paid for by some other 
funding source other than debt service taxes, a conservative approach.  (If it can be funded 
through debt service taxes, this will ease the funding burden and open up other options. This 
will need to be confirmed by the Department of Water Resources as well as the SGPWA’s legal 
counsel.)  The SGPWA’s share of the annual operating costs of $1.372 million for Sites 
Reservoir project, (refer to Table 5 presented previously), will be paid for through water rates 
beginning in 2030. (BCVWD’s share of the $1.372 million is $0.392 million.)

These costs are added to the General and Administration costs and the DWR Variable Costs to 
deliver the existing Table A water to Cherry Valley.  The baseline spreadsheet identifies these 
costs on an annual basis
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General Fund Revenues

The General Fund revenue is from three primary sources:

SGPWA’s share of Riverside County’s 1% property tax
Water sales to the retail agencies
Interest on investments

SGPWA’s Share of Riverside County’s 1% Property Tax

The annual amount the Agency receives is a portion of the 1% property tax collected by 
Riverside County through an apportionment process which is complex.  The complexities are 
brought about by the numerous and varied procedures and formulas used, and how each of 
these interrelate and affect the final apportionment.  Figure 1 shows the historical assessed 
valuation (AV) within the SGPWA and BCVWD since 2002 when the “development push” 
began.  As can be seen, there was a rapid rise in AV from 2002 to 2008.  It then leveled off, in 
fact dropped slightly from 2010 to 2011.  It began to rise again after 2013, but at a much more 
gradual rate, (2.5% per year). Note that BCVWD’s AV accounts for about 50% of SGPWA’s AV 
at the present time.

Figure 1
Historical Assessed Valuation in SGPWA and BCVWD

Figure 2 shows SGPWA’s historical share of Riverside County’s 1% property tax through the 
apportionment process extracted from the SGPWA annual audits.  The share tends to mirror the 
AV shown in Figure 1; however, it showed a significant decline from 2008 to 2011 and did not 
begin to pick up again until 2015. This drop adversely affects SGPWA’s unrestricted operating 
revenue. The AV 1% property tax share has gradually increased from 2015 to 2017 at about 
9% per year. The model allows for adjustment of this annual increase.  A 5% annual increase 
has been initially set to be conservative.
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Figure 2
Historical SGPWA Share of 1% Riverside County Property Tax

It is important to point out that the revenue is subject to fluctuation with the housing market and 
some decreases should be expected to occur over the next 20 years or so; this should be 
factored into the revenue stream.

Interest on Investments

SGPWA earns interest on their investments in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and 
other instruments permitted by the Agency’s investment policy.  The amount of interest income 
in 2017, per the audit, was $480,000.  This amount could increase or decrease depending on 
the market conditions and the amount of money collected by the Agency and invested.  For 
purposes of this model it is assumed this investment income will gradually decrease over time, 
(by assumed to be $20,000 per year), as reserves are used for capital projects, supplement 
shortfalls in revenue, and other Agency needs. 

Water Rates

The current water rate is $317/AF which generated about $4.752 million in FY 2017.  The 
amount of revenue from water sales depends on the amount of water available and sold. The 
model allows for the calculation of a “revenue neutral” SGPWA water rate under several 
assumptions:

CWF Sites Reservoir design, construction, and operation paid for through financing with 
the financing costs paid through a new connection charge
CWF Sites Reservoir design, construction, and operation paid for through financing with 
the financing costs paid through the water rate

Other assumptions of costs included in the water rates are described above and include the 
costs for Yuba Accord, SBVMWD Surplus, and AVEK-Nickel water.  It is assumed these costs 
are paid out of the General Fund, although, it is possible that Yuba Accord, SBVMWD Surplus, 
and other Table A water acquisitions, i.e., Ventura/Casitas, could be paid out of debt service 
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taxes.  This should be confirmed by the SGPWA Legal Counsel.  If these lease/purchase costs 
could be paid from debt service taxes, the water rate could be reduced.

Imported Water Available 

The reliability of the SWP is projected to decrease from about 60% current reliability (10,380 
AFY per DWR Bulletin 132) to 48% by 2035 (8,300 AFY) as discussed in White Paper No. 6
and shown in Table 1 herein. This will affect the total delivery of Table A water over time. This 
has been included in the model.  Depending on hydrologic conditions, the SGPWA may be able 
to deliver more than these Table A amounts; but to be conservative, the appropriate reliability 
factors were included in the model.

SBVMWD Surplus, Yuba Accord, and AVEK-Nickel Water are included in the model as 
available water supply in addition to the Table A water.  This adds another 4,000 AFY to the 
available water supply bringing the total to 14,380 AFY currently declining to 11,300 AFY by
2035. The one-year Ventura-Casitas Transfer was shown from for 2018.

In the model, in terms of purchase priority, it is assumed that SGPWA will purchase all of the 
Table A water available, adjusted for reliability plus all AVEK-Nickel Water, since they are 
obligated to purchase it.  If necessary, this will be supplemented by Yuba Accord and SBVMWD 
Surplus Water in that order, i.e. starting with the least costly water, Yuba Accord Water.

Imported Water Demand

The water demand model developed in previous White Papers was refined to include:

Future use of City of Beaumont recycled water in BCVWD’s non-potable water system 
beginning in 2020.  Because it may not be possible to use all of the recycled water 
available from the City due to low winter time water use and the reject water in from the 
membrane treatment system, a factor is included in the model which can be adjusted.  
An initial value of 75% was used.  Wastewater generation in the City is estimated to be 
0.25 AFY/EDU.
The water demand for BCVWD wais 0.546 AFY/EDU for new construction; 0.62 
AFY/EDU for existing EDUs constructed before 2017.  Ongoing studies underway by 
BCVWD staff indicated that the new housing units appear to be using less water than 
the older units possibly due to compliance with new landscape ordinances and the use 
of more water-efficient appliances such as dishwashers, clothes washers, toilets, and 
other plumbing fixtures.  BCVWD staff has observed annual water use as low as 0.50 
AFY/EDU.  The 0.546 AFY/EDU includes the impact of commercial, industrial, and 
institutional (CII) water demands associated with and supporting the new EDUs.  This 
also includes the non-potable demands associated with landscape irrigation of common 
areas, schools, etc.  It should be pointed out that the water demands for BCVWD have 
been significantly reduced from the demands in BCVWD’s 2015 Urban Water 
Management Plan (UWMP).  The water demands from the other retailers 
(YVWD/Calimesa and City of Banning) were verified by the two retailers as part of the 
work on previous White Papers. No changes were made in their demands.
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The growth in demand, i.e. EDU growth, was based on data presented in previous 
White Papers, which was reviewed by BCVWD, YVWD, and the City of Banning.  The 
growth in EDUs is believed to be realistic, based on projections made by the retail 
agencies and may differ from projections in the retailers’ respective UWMPs. Average 
growth rates in terms of EDUs/yr in BCVWD, City of Banning, and YVWD/Calimesa 
service areas within SGPWA boundaries over the period 2018 through 2035 are: 431, 
356, 392 respectively.  Total average projected EDUs within SGPWA service area from 
these three retailers is 1,229 EDUs/yr. It should be noted that this is greater than the 
historical average for these areas. If the average growth rates are lower, the growth in 
imported water demand will be reduded.

Some Model Results

Water Supply

Figure 3 shows the total amount of water available versus the actual demand within the SGPWA 
based on the growth assumptions stated above. Figure 3 includes the impacts of declining 
reliability in the SWP Table A.  The plot does not include the additional water supply from future 
single year or multiyear deals (Ventura and Casitas MWD) and the CWF, Sites Reservoir, or 
any of the CWF “side deals” described above.

Figure 3
SGPWA Imported Water Supply vs Actual Projected Demand

Figure 3 shows there appears to be adequate water supply available to accommodate the 
projected growth, averaging 1,229 EDUs/year until about 2030, at which time retail agencies 
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can use “banked” water to meet their needs until CWF and Sites Reservoir become operational.  
It is anticipated that this would occur before 2035.  Figure 3 shows there is extra water available 
between now and 2028 or so which could be purchased and banked either by the retailers or 
the SGPWA.  In the development of Figure 3, it was assumed that BCVWD would only 
purchase 1,000 AFY for drought proofing until 2020 when recycled water would be available 
from the City of Beaumont.  This is a slight departure from BCVWD’s 2015 UWMP.  However, 
depending the on SGPWA’s water rate, BCVWD may purchase additional water for “banking” 
since there is more than enough available.

Once CWF and Sites Reservoir are operational the amount of imported water available will be 
somewhere between 24,900 AFY and 35,880 AFY as shown in Table 1.  This is more than 
SGPWA will need for a long time.

Water Rates

Figure 4 shows the SGPWA water rate needed to maintain a “revenue neutral” position under 
two conditions:

Sites Reservoir design and construction paid for with either debt service taxes or through 
connection charges; variable operating costs would be paid from water rates
Sites Reservoir design, construction and operation paid for through the water rates

In the analysis for Figure 4, it is assumed that all of the Agency’s operation, purchase of Yuba 
Accord, SBVMWD Surplus, AVEK-Nickel Water and other water would be paid from the 
Agency’s General Fund.  It also assumes a 5% annual increase in the Agency’s share of the 1% 
Riverside County property tax. It also assumes that water purchases are as anticipated in 
Figure 3.
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Figure 4
SGPWA Imported Water Rate for Revenue Neutral Position

It appears a water rate in the $375 to $400/AF range would be adequate for the near term and 
future if Sites Reservoir design and construction is financed and paid through connection 
charges or debt service taxes.  If Sites Reservoir is paid for through the water rates, a rate 
between $800 to $1,000/AF would be needed.  

Figure 3 assumes that SGPWA will continue to participate in Sites Reservoir to the current 
amount (14,000 AF with 4,000 AF of that funded by BCVWD).  If this changes, the rates would 
change correspondingly.  It should be pointed out that Figure 3 does not include the impact of 
reimbursement for 4,000 AF participation by BCVWD.

Connection Charges for Sites Reservoir

An alternative to increasing the water rate is to pay for Sites Reservoir design and construction 
through connection charges for new EDUs.  The analysis in the model shows that a connection 
fee of about $3,720/EDU would accumulate enough money to fund the financing until about 
2030 or so, at which time the connection fee should be re-evaluated based on projected growth.  
This should only be considered a rough estimate.  A much more detailed assessment needs to 
be made if this is the method of financing Sites Reservoir.

As discussed above, the estimated connection fee assumes that SGPWA will continue to 
participate in Sites Reservoir to the current amount (14,000 AF with 4,000 AF of that funded by 
BCVWD).  If this changes, the rates would change correspondingly.  It should be pointed out 
that Figure 34 does not include the impact of reimbursement for 4,000 AF participation by 
BCVWD.
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Conclusions

There appears to be enough water available from SGPWA plus that amount and what is 
currently in banked storage to meet imported water demands until CWF and Sites 
Reservoir are on line.  This assumes that the region’s local water resource projects, 
including recycled water, are implement by 2020.
Sites Reservoir design and construction may be best funded by debt service taxes or 
connection fees rather than rates, although a combination of rates and connection fees 
is also possible.
The analysis presented in this White Paper is subject to change depending on changes 
in development growth, i.e, slowdowns in housing market, reductions in AV, etc.  These 
changes could cause an increase in the water rates (fewer connections to spread cost 
across).
The retailers and SGPWA need to refine their projections and evaluate the long term 
needs for water supply with and without CWF and Sites Reservoir due to their current 
uncertainty of these projects.
SGPWA should continue to look for lease/purchase of Table A, which can be funded 
through debt service due to the uncertainty of CWF and Sites Reservoir.  This should 
continue until CWF and/or Sites Reservoir is a certainty.  At that point the SGPWA along 
with the regional water retailers should re-evaluate their position in Sites Reservoir,
considering long term water demand projections, imported water supplies, current 
availability of short term deals, and possible use of water in storage to meet near term
water supply needs.
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Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District

560 Magnolia Avenue

Beaumont, CA 92223

951-845-9581 www.bcvwd.org

DATE: September 12, 2018

TO: Dan Jaggers, General Manager

FROM: Joe Reichenberger PE, Senior Engineer

SUBJECT: Updated SGPWA’s Imported Water Demands Accounting for BCVWD’s Reduced 
Demands and Sites Reservoir Participation---DRAFT FOR REVIEW

At the recent SGPWA Board Meeting, SGPWA provided an updated estimate of the Agency’s
imported water demands and supplies based on the imported water demands in their 2015 
Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) and the Agency’s new water purchases and projects.
Table 2-4, extracted from the Agency’s 2015 UWMP is shown below below, which includes the 
imported water demands of the principal agencies.

Source: SGPWA 2015 UMWP

The “other” demands in Table 2-4 are estimates of future demand from agencies within SGPWA 
service are that do not have current imported water demands on the Agency, including South 
Mesa Water Company, Cabazon Water District, Banning Heights Mutual Water Company, High
Valleys Water District, Mission Springs Water District and Morongo Band of Mission Indians.

BCVWD has revised its water demands since the 2015 UWMP estimates in Table 2-4 above to 
account for the recent water conservation legislation, the results of studies performed by 
BCVWD on the water use in some of the new developments, use of City of Beaumont recycled 
water, and other local water resource projects.  In addition, at the time BCVWD’s imported water 
demands were provided to SGPWA for their UWMP, BCVWD had not made a commitment of 
4,000 AF participation in Sites Reservoir.  As a result the BCVWD demands that were 
presented by SGPWA at the Board Meeting were significantly higher than BCVWD’s current 
estimated demands. Table 1 below presents BCVWD’s adjusted projected demands under 
various conservation scenarios.

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District September 12, 2018
1 DRAFT FOR REVIEW
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Table 1
Adjusted Projected BCVWD Imported Water Demands (AFY)

Condition 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040

5% Conservation on 
Existing and New EDUs

9,000 10,652 11,992 12,506 13,000

5% Conservation on 
Existing EDUs Only

9,003 10,674 12,056 12,632 13,200

No Conservation 9,079 10,940 12,512 13,278 14,000

In Table 1, the year 2040 demands were estimated as the BCVWD “White Paper” demands 
were only extended to 2035, when California Water Fix and Sites Reservoir would be on line.

The imported demands were based on 0.546 AFY/EDU and included the use of recycled water 
with a 75% capacity factor (only 75% of available recycled water actually utilized), storm water 
capture and other local water resources development.

The Sites Reservoir yield is believed to be reduced.  SGPWA committed to a 10,000 AF 
participation; BCVWD committed to 4,000 AF participation.  Table 2 shows the projected yield, 
based on the data provided by SGPWA.

Table 2
Sites Reservoir Yield Under Various Conditions

Original 
Participation, AFY

Projected, AFY

Average Year
(60% Year)

Wet Year
(75% Year)

Dry Year
(30% Year)

SGPWA 10,000 5,000 8,000 5,000

BCVWD 4,000 2,000 3,200 2,000

A spreadsheet was developed based on SGPWA’s presentation, adjusting BCVWD’s imported 
water demands as stated above and adjusting for the new Sites Reservoir yield. Three 
scenarios were presented by SGPWA:

Average for the period 2020 to 2040
Dry Year extending continuous from 2020 to 2040
Wet Year extending continuous from 2020 to 2040

The latter two scenarios are probably unrealistic. The results of the analysis is summarized in 
Table 3.

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District September 12, 2018
2 DRAFT FOR REVIEW
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Exhibit 1 

 

San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

Updated Imported Water Demands and Supplies  

Provided at SGPWA September 10, 2018 Engineering 
Workshop 
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Attachment C 

Notice of Exemption Filed with the Riverside County Clerk 
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Notice of Exemption  FORM “B” 

 

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 

TO: 

 

 

 

Office of Planning and Research 

P. O. Box 3044, Room 113 

Sacramento, CA  95812-3044 

FROM: 

(Public 

Agency) 

Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District 

560 Magnolia Avenue 

Beaumont, CA 92223-2258 

 

 

 

 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

or 

County Clerk 

County of:  Riverside 

2720 Gateway Drive 

Riverside, CA 92507 

 

1. Project Title: Annexation of Parcel Map No. 28348 to the Beaumont Cherry 

Valley Water District 

2. Project Applicant: Israel Levy 

15862 Vincennes St., 

North Hills, CA 91343 

3. Project Location – Identify street 

address and cross streets or attach a 

map showing project site (preferably a 

USGS 15’ or 7 1/2’ topographical map 

identified by quadrangle name): 

The project site encompasses approximately 30.25 acres 

south of Fourth Street east of Risco Circle and west of Vielle 

Avenue. (See FFigure 1 – Project Area.) 

The project site is located in the north half of the southwest 

quarter of Section 9, Township 3 South, Range 1 West. San 

Bernardino Base and Meridian. (See FFigure 2 – USGS Map.) 

4. (a) Project Location – City: Beaumont 

(b) Project Location – County: Riverside 

5. Description of nature, purpose, and 

beneficiaries of Project: 

The project is the annexation of the territory within Parcel Map 

28348 to the Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District.  

6. Name of Public Agency approving 

project: 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 

7. Name of Person or Agency undertaking 

the project, including any person 

undertaking an activity that receives 

financial assistance from the Public 

Agency as part of the activity or the 

person receiving a lease, permit, 

license, certificate, or other entitlement 

of use from the Public Agency as part 

of the activity: 

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 

8. Exempt status:  (check one)  

 (a)  Ministerial project.  

 (b)  Not a project.  

 (c)  Emergency Project.  

 (d)  Categorical 

Exemption.   

  State type and 

section number: 

 

 (e)  Declared Emergency.  
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Notice of Exemption  FORM “B” 

 

 (f)  Statutory Exemption.   

  State Code section 

number: 

      

 (g)  Other.  Explanation: The Project falls under CEQA’s “General Rule” Exemption 

per CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3), which states: 

The activity is covered by the general rule that CEQA 

applies only to projects which have the potential for 

causing a significant effect on the environment. Where 

it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility 

that the activity in question may have a significant 

effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to 

CEQA. 

The change in the jurisdictional boundaries of BCVWD will 

not in and of itself result in any physical change in the 

environment. BCVWD does not have land use authority. 

Land use authority rests with the City of Beaumont for the 

area proposed for Annexation. Further, the construction and 

operation of the parking lot for Randolph Foods at 929 4th 

Street (City of Beaumont Plot Plan PP2018-0094), which is 

the only new development within PM 28348, was 

determined to be exempt from CEQA by the City of 

Beaumont Planning Commission on May 8, 2018. 

Additionally, there have been no entitlement applications 

submitted or development proposed for the remaining 

parcels in PM 28348. Finally, no additional water or 

wastewater facilities are proposed or needed to serve the 

annexation area. 
 

9. Reason why project was exempt: The proposed annexation is an adjustment of jurisdictional 

boundaries and as such will not result in any change in the 

environment. The City of Beaumont has land use authority and 

would be responsible for preparing CEQA documents for any 

future development within the annexation area. No additional 

water or wastewater facilities are proposed or needed to serve 

the annexation area.  

10. Lead Agency Contact Person: Daniel K. Jaggers 

Telephone: (951) 845-9581 

11. If filed by applicant: Attach Preliminary Exemption Assessment (Form “A”) before filing. 

12. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?   Yes     No  

13. Was a public hearing held by the lead agency to consider the exemption?   Yes    No  

If yes, the date of the public hearing was: __________________ 

 

Signature:__________________________________        Date:_______________ 

Title:___Daniel, K, Jaggers, General Manager 

 

    Signed by Lead Agency               Signed by Applicant 

Date Received for Filing:          

(Clerk Stamp Here)  

 
Authority cited:  Sections 21083 and 21100, Public Resources Code. 

Reference: Sections 21108, 21152, and 21152.1, Public Resources Code. 
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Annexation of PM 28348 to BCVWD
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Figure 2 - USGS Map

Copyright:© 2013 National Geographic Society, i-cubed
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Preliminary Exemption Assessment  FORM “A” 

 

PRELIMINARY EXEMPTION ASSESSMENT 

(Certificate of Determination 

When Attached to Notice of Exemption) 

1. Name or description of project: Annexation of Parcel Map No. 28348 to the Beaumont Cherry Valley Water 

District 

2. Project Location – Identify street address 

and cross streets or attach a map 

showing project site (preferably a USGS 

15’ or 7 1/2’ topographical map 

identified by quadrangle name): 

The project site encompasses approximately 30.25 acres south of Fourth 

Street east of Risco Circle and west of Veile Avenue. (See FFigure 1 – 

Project Area.) 

The project site is located in the north half of the southwest quarter of 

Section 9, Township 3 South, Range 1 West. San Bernardino Base and 

Meridian. (See FFigure 2 – USGS Map.) 

3. Entity or person undertaking project: 

      

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 

560 Magnolia Avenue 

Beaumont, CA 92223-2258 

4. Staff Determination: 

The Lead Agency’s Staff, having undertaken and completed a preliminary review of this project in accordance with the 

Lead Agency's "Local Guidelines for Implementing the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" has concluded that 

this project does not require further environmental assessment because: 

 

 a.  The proposed action does not constitute a project under CEQA. 

 b.  The project is a Ministerial Project. 

 c.  The project is an Emergency Project. 

 d.  The project constitutes a feasibility or planning study. 

 e.  The project is categorically exempt. 

Applicable Exemption Class:  

 f.  The project is statutorily exempt. 

Applicable Exemption:       

 g.  The project is otherwise exempt on 

the following basis: 

The Project falls under CEQA’s “General Rule Exemption per 

CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3), which states: 

The activity is covered by the general rule that CEQA 

applies only to projects which have the potential for 

causing a significant effect on the environment. Where 

it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility 

that the activity in question may have a significant effect 

on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA. 

The change in the jurisdictional boundaries of BCVWD will not 

in and of itself result in any physical change in the 

environment. BCVWD does not have land use authority. Land 

use authority rests with the City of Beaumont for the area 

proposed for Annexation. Further, the construction and 

operation of the parking lot for Randolph Foods at 929 4th 

Street (City of Beaumont Plot Plan PP2018-0094), which is 

the only new development within PM 28348, was determined 

to be exempt from CEQA by the City of Beaumont Planning 

Commission on May 8, 2018. Additionally, there have been 

no entitlement applications submitted or development 

proposed for the remaining parcels in PM 28348. Finally, no 

additional water or wastewater facilities are proposed or 

needed to serve the annexation area. 
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Preliminary Exemption Assessment  FORM “A” 

 

 h.  The project involves another public agency which constitutes the Lead Agency. 

Name of Lead Agency:       

 

Date:       Staff:       

 Daniel K. Jaggers, General Manager 

 Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 
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Annexation of PM 28348 to BCVWD

M
ap

 c
re

at
ed

 J
ul

y 
3,

 2
01

9.
 H

:\2
01

9\
19

-0
04

4\
G

IS
\V

ic
in

ity
.m

xd

San  Bernardino Co.
Riverside Co.

Lake
Perris

e

Canyon
Lake

Diamond Valley
Reservoir

RIVERSIDE

PROJECT
SITE

^MORENO
VALLEY

SAN
BERNARDINO

COLTON
REDLANDS

PERRIS

HIGHLAND

HEMET

LAKE
ELSINORE MENIFEE

YUCAIPA

SAN
JACINTO

CALIMESA

BEAUMONT BANNING

LOMA
LINDA

·|}þ38
·|}þ210

·|}þ330·|}þ18

·|}þ259

·|}þ60

·|}þ74

·|}þ79

·|}þ243

§̈¦10

§̈¦215

§̈¦10

§̈¦15

£¤66

£¤66
Map
Area

0 2 4 6 Miles

I

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 389 of 530



Figure 2 - USGS Map

Copyright:© 2013 National Geographic Society, i-cubed
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Information on the following items is included in the full Agenda Packet. 

Attachment 2 – December 12, 2018 Board of Directors Staff Report, Item 12 with Item
7 from March 8, 2017 Board of Directors Staff Report
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Location: Beaumont-Cherry Valley Recreation and Park District – Noble 
Creek Community Center, 390 W. Oak Valley Pkwy
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Item 12 

STAFF REPORT 
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Office/Warehouse
Space

Total Space
Size

(sq. ft.)
Office size

(sq. ft.)

Average Day
Demand

(GPD)

Estimated
Domestic Water
Demand (EDU's)

1 3,000 sf 220 sf 249.4 0.43
2 1,500 sf 220 sf 156.6 0.27
3 2,025 sf 220 sf 185.6 0.32
4 3,570 sf 220 sf 278.4 0.48
5 1,500 sf 220 sf 156.6 0.27
6 1,500 sf 220 sf 156.6 0.27
7 1,500 sf 220 sf 156.6 0.27
8 1,500 sf 220 sf 156.6 0.27
9 3,000 sf 220 sf 249.4 0.43

Sub Total 19,095 sf 1,980 sf 1,745.8 3.01
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Item 1

STAFF REPORT 

and
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11.3.1 Air Gap

11.2.2 Approved Backflow Prevention Assembly

11.2.3 Approved Testing Laboratory

11.2.4 Approved Water Supply

11.2.5 Atmospheric Vacuum Breaker Backsiphonage Prevention Assembly 
(AVB)

11.2.6 Auxiliary Water Supply
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11.2.7 Backflow

11.2.8 Backflow Prevention Assembly

11.2.8.1

11.2.8.2

11.2.8.3

11.2.8.4

11.2.8.5

11.2.8.6

11.2.8.7

11.2.9 Backpressure

11.2.10 Backsiphonage 

11.2.11 Certified Backflow Prevention Assembly Tester 

11.2.12 Consumer (Customer) 
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11.2.13 Contaminant 

11.2.14 Critical Service 

11.2.15 Cross-Connection

11.2.15.1 Direct Cross-Connection

11.2.15.2 Indirect Cross-Connection

11.2.16 Double Check Valve Backflow Prevention Assembly (DC) 

11.2.17 Double Check Detector Backflow Prevention Assembly (DCDA) 

11.2.18 Health Hazard/Non-Health Hazard A Health Hazard or (Contaminant)

A Non-Health Hazard or (Pollutant)

11.2.19 Industrial Fluids 

11.2.20 Internal Protection 
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11.2.21 Manifold Assembly 

11.2.22 Plumbing Hazard 

11.2.23 Pollution – 

11.2.24 Potable Water –

11.2.25 Pressure –

11.2.26 Pressure Vacuum Breaker Backsiphonage Prevention Assembly (PVB) –

11.2.27 Public Potable Water System –

11.2.28 Readily Accessible –

11.2.29 Reclaimed Water –

11.2.30 Reduced Pressure Principle Backflow Prevention Assembly (RP) –
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11.2.30 Reduced Pressure Principle Detector Backflow Prevention Assembly 
(RPDA) –

11.2.31 Sanitary Sewer –

11.2.32 Service Connection –

11.2.33 Service Protection –

11.2.34 Spill-Resistant Pressure Vacuum Breaker Backsiphonage Prevention 
Assembly (SVB) – 

11.2.35 System Hazard –

11.2.36 Used Water 

11.2.37 Site Supervisor 

11.2.38 Water Supplier 
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11.2.39

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 422 of 530



new non-residential services
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new residential services

existing non-residential services

existing residential services
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AWWA/ANSI C510 07 Standard for Double Check Valve Backflow Prevention 
Device; AWWA/ANSI C511 07 Standard for Reduced Pressure Principle 
Backflow Prevention Device; and, have met completely the laboratory and field 
performance specifications of USCFCCCHR established in the most current 
edition of the Manual of Cross-Connection Control (i.e. 10th edition)  

Foundation for Cross-Connection Control and Hydraulic Research 
University of Southern California Research Annex 219 
3716 South Hope Street 
Los Angeles, California 90089-7700 
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Manual 
of Cross-Connection Control
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not test the device.
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Item 12 

STAFF REPORT 
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SRD Design Studio, Inc. 
_______________________________________________________ 
Civil Engineering - Environmental Consulting  

 
June1, 2020,  

 

 
Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 
560 Magnolia Avenue 
Beaumont, Ca. 92223        
 
RE: Legacy Highlands WSA  
 
 
Dear Mr. Jaggers 
 
Thank you and your staff to preparing the comprehensive WSA for the project and bring 
it before your board on May 28, 2020 engineering workshop meeting.  
 
We are providing additional information on questions and/ or comments brought up by 
board members during the discussion on our project item: 
 
1. Director William indicated correctly that water quality data reports which were part of 
the agenda package were indecipherable.  If district staff needs water quality reports, we 
will be happy to provide them again. There were field well development reports prepared 
by independent well drillers were legible and was included in the agenda showing that 
water quality is good for outside non-potable use of the project for irrigation needs. 
Please let us know if you need copies of water quality lab reports conducted by Babcock 
Laboratories.  
 
2. Director Ramirez asked a question if our supplemental water system proposed for 
irrigation needs of the project will enhance district ground water ? 
 
As we have provide to the district that legally we can only use our water for our own 
project needs and therefore it will indirectly make more district water available for other 
projects. 
 
We have, however, pointed out that we plan to comply with the City water distribution 
and use standards as necessary. 
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3. President Covington asked a question if we planned to have our irrigation water use 
distribution system.  
 
We have already developed water wells capable of supplying non-potable water, of 
suitable quality, far in excess of the non-potable water demands of our project. We will 
construct reservoir and non-potable water distribution infrastructure needed to serve our 
project. We will use the wells and non-potable infrastructure, on an interim basis, to meet 
all irrigation demands of Legacy Highlands. When BCVWD is able to deliver recycled 
water to meet the irrigation demands of our project, we will dedicate the reservoir and 
non-potable irrigation water distribution infrastructure to be owned and operated by 
BCVWD. 
 
We are agreeable to dedicate water infra-structure to BCVWD, according to conditions 
stated in the City of Beaumont letter to BCVWD, dated May 21, 2020, to the extent that 
BVCWD requires those dedications as roughly proportional to meet essential water needs 
of Legacy Highlands. 
 
We fully and completely understand that and commit to abiding by the project 
development conditions contained in the staff report as described in more detail: 
 
We will work with the City and District to provide all necessary information as required 
for supplemental water.  
 
In summary we restate that that we are requesting the water district for potable use supply 
for our project which district staff had already determined to be sufficient to meet our 
project needs. We are not requesting or asking the water district to supply non- potable 
water until such time as the District is able to deliver non-potable irrigation water to our 
Project. 
 
We appreciate the time and efforts district staff have extended to us to take the project 
WSA to conclusion and approval by its board on June 10, 2020 
 
Please feel free to contact us should have any questions or require additional information 
for the next board meeting. 
 
We look forward to your concurrence in this approach to allow BCVWD to issue a 
favorable WSA for Legacy Highlands.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
David Golkar 
 
David Golkar, PE. 

P.O Box 5147 Beverly Hills, Ca. 90209 
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Prepared by DRAFT
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DRAFT
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Sale of State Water Project Contractors Incremental CWF Reliability Benefits

Purchase or Leasing of Metropolitan’s CWF Phase 2 Water

DRAFT
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DRAFT

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 454 of 530



DRAFT
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DRAFT
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2.1 Senate Bill 221 (SB 221) 

et seq.

(c) A development agreement that includes a subdivision, as defined in Government Code 
§666473.7, shall not be approved unless the agreement provides that any tentative 
map prepared for the subdivision will comply with the provisions of §666473.7. 

(a)(1) For purposes of this section, the following definitions apply: 
“Subdivision” means a proposed residential development of more than 500 dwelling 
units, except that for a public water agency that has fewer than 5,000 service 
connections, “subdivision” means any proposed residential development that would 
account for an increase of 10 percent or more in the number of the public water 
system’s existing service connections. 

(b)(1) The legislative body of a city or county or the advisory agency, to the extent that it is 
authorized by local ordinance to approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove the 
tentative map, shall include as a condition in any tentative map that includes a 
subdivision, a requirement that a sufficient water supply shall be available.  Proof of 
the availability of a sufficient water supply shall be requested by the subdivision 
applicant or local agency, and shall be based on written verification from the applicable 
water supply system within 90 days of a request. 

(i) Government Code §666473.7 shall not apply to any residential project proposed for a 
site that is within an urbanized area and has previously been developed for urban 
uses, or where the immediate contiguous properties surrounding the residential project 
site area, or previously have been, developed for urban uses, or housing projects that 
are exclusively for very low and low-income households. 

(a)(2) “Sufficient water supply” means the total water supplies available during normal, 
single-dry, and multiple-dry years within a 20-year projection that will meet the 
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projected demand associated with the proposed subdivision, in addition to existing and 
planned future uses, including but not limited to agricultural and industrial uses.   

2.2 Senate Bill (SB 610) 

et seq.

(1) A proposed residential development of more than 500 dwelling units. 

(2) A proposed shopping center or business establishment employing more than 1,000 
persons or having more than 500,000 square feet (sq. ft.) of floor space. 

(3) A proposed commercial office building employing more than 1,000 persons or having more 
than 250,000 sq. ft. of floor space. 

(4) A proposed hotel or motel, or both having more than 500 rooms. 

(5) A proposed industrial, manufacturing, or processing plant, or industrial park planned to 
house more than 1,000 persons, occupying more than 40 acres of land, or having more 
than 650,000 sq. ft. of floor area. 

(6) A mixed-use project that includes one or more of the projects specified in this subdivision. 

(7) A project that would demand an amount of water equivalent to, or greater than, the amount 
of water required by a 500 dwelling unit project.1

Will the water supplier’s total projected water supplies during normal, dry, and multiple dry 
years during a 20-year projection meet the projected water demand of the proposed project, 
in addition to the water supplier’s existing and planned future uses, including agricultural 
and manufacturing uses? 
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2.3  Summary 

et
seq.

3.1 Background ground ground
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 Coalition v. Sonoma County Water Agency 
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3.2 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 2015 UWMP 

“It is the stated goal of SGPWA to import supplemental water and to protect and enhance local 
water supplies for use by present and future water users and to sell imported water at wholesale 
to local retail water purveyors within its service area. Based on conservative water supply and 
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demand assumptions over the next 25 years in combination with conservation of non-essential 
demand during certain dry years, the [Urban Water Management] Plan successfully achieves 
this goal. It is important to note that this document has been completed to address regional 
resource management and does not address the particular conditions of any specific retail 
water agency or entity within the SGPWA service area. The retail urban water suppliers 
within SGPWA service area are preparing their own separate UWMPs, but SGPWA has 
coordinated with the retailers during development of this Plan to ensure a level of consistency 
with the retailers to the extent possible.4 [Emphasis added] 
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3.3 BCVWD’s 2015 UWMP  

4.1 Project Description 
DRAFT
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4.1.1 Existing On-site Wells DR
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4.2 Estimated Water Demand 
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5.1 Overview of BCVWD’s Water System and Operation 

5.2 Potable Water System 
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5.3 Imported Water and Recharge Facilities 

5.4 Non-potable (Recycled) Water System 
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6.1 Regional Water Supply and Demand Spreadsheet Models 
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6.1.1 City of Banning 

DRAFT
ing ng 

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 480 of 530



DRAFTTT

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 481 of 530



DRAFT

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 482 of 530



6.1.2 YVWD/City of Calimesa 
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6.1.3 BCVWD 

6.1.3.1 City of Beaumont Development 
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6.1.3.2 Cherry Valley Growth and Development 

6.1.3.3 Supply Demand Model for BCVWD DRAFT
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6.2 Summary of Member Agency Imported Water Demands on SGPWA 
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7.1 State Water Project (SWP) Table A  

7.2 Yuba Accord Water  DRAFT
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7.3 San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (SBVMWD Water) 

DRAFT
unicipal Water District (SBVMWWater District (SBVMW

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 496 of 530



7.4 AVEK-Nickel Water 

7.5 City of Ventura and Casitas Municipal Water District (Ventura Water) and Other 
Exchanges
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7.6 Delta Conveyance [formerly California Water Fix (CWF)] 
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7.7 Sites Reservoir DRAFT
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7.8 Sale of State Water Project Contractors Restoration of DCP Reliability Benefits 

7.9 Purchase or Leasing of Metropolitan’s Original CWF Phase 2 Water 

7.10 Other Sources of Imported Water 

7.10.1 Article 21 Water 
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7.10.2 Turn-back Pool Water 

7.10.3 Short-term or Long-term Water Transfers or Exchanges 

7.10.4 Recommendations for SGPWA 

7.11 Summary of Available Imported Water Supplies 
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7.12 Contingency Plan 
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9.1 Water Source Availability 

9.1.1 Groundwater 

9.1.1.1 Beaumont Basin
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9.1.1.2 Edgar Canyon DRAFT
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9.1.2 Imported Water 
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* Values are Rounded 

9.1.3 Recycled Water DRAFTTTTTTTTTTTFFTTFTFFTTFTFFTTFT
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9.1.4 Storm Water and Other Local Water Resources 

9.2 Water Demands During Critical and Multi-year Dry Periods DRAFTTTTTTTTTTTTFFTTFTFFFTFTFTTTources ource
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BCVWD’s plan, which is shown in BCVWD’s 2015 UWMP envisions banking anywhere 
from 1,000 AFY to 2,500 AFY to drought proof new development.  This is accounted for 
in the spreadsheet each year.  Should there be a year when the projected amount cannot 
be delivered by SGPWA, any deficiency will be made up in successive years when 
adequate supply is available.  As stated in BCVWD’s 2105 UWMP23

DRAF
h is shown in BCVWD’s 2015 UWh is shown in BCVWD’s

o 2,500 AFY to drought proof newo 2,500 AFY to drought pro
heet each year.  Should there be heet each year.  Should there b

d by SGPWA, any deficiency will y SGPWA, any deficiency will 
e supply is available.  As stated is available.  As stated i

AFT
AFAFTTTTTTTTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFT
AFT
AFT
AFAFAFAFTFTTTTTTTTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFFFTFTTTTTTTTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFFTTTTTTT
AAFAFFTFTFTFTTTTTTTTTT
AF

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 522 of 530



DDDDDDRAFT

DRDRRRDRRRRRRRDRDRDRRD
2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 523 of 530



DRAFT

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 524 of 530



DRAFT

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 525 of 530



DRAFT

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 526 of 530



DRAFT

2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 527 of 530



2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 528 of 530



2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 529 of 530



2020-06-10 - BCVWD Regular Board Meeting - Page 530 of 530




